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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Unit holders of India Grid Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of India Grid Trust (hereinafter 
referred to as "the Inv IT") and its subsidiaries (the Inv IT and its subsidiaries together referred to as " the 
Group") comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 , 2023, the consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Statement of Changes in 
Unit Holder's Equity, the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, the consolidated 
Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns 
at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the Inv IT, the underlying 
Holding Companies ("HoldCos") and each of its subsidiaries for the year then ended, and a summaty 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes (hereinafter referred to as " the 
consolidated financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other 
financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the 
information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) 
Regulations, 2014, as amended including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together 
referred as the " lnvlT Regulations") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent 
with lnv!T regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2023, its 
consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash movements and its 
consolidated movement of the unit holders' funds for the year ended March 3 1, 2023, its consolidated 
net assets at fair value as at March 31 , 2023 , its consolidated total returns at fair value and the net 
distributable cash flows of the Inv IT, the underlying HoidCos and each of its subsidiaries for the year 
ended March 3 1, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibi I ities for the Aud it of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the 
'Code of Ethics ' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions 
of the Inv IT Regulations and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a who 
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and in fanning our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For 
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
repo1t. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of 
the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. 
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of audit 
procedures performed by us and by other auditors of components not audited by us, as reported by them 
in their audit reports furnished to us by the management, including those procedures performed to 
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Non applicability of Appendix D 'Service Concession Arrangements' of Ind AS 115 'Revenue 
from contracts with customers' (as described in Note 28 of the consolidated financial statements) 

The Group through its subsidiaries acts as a 
transmission licensee under the Electricity 
Act, 2003 holding valid licenses for 25/35 
years. Generally, the subsidiaries have 
entered into Transmission Services 
Agreements ("TSA") with Long Term 
Transmission Customers ("L TTC") through 
a tariff-based bidding process to Build, Own, 
Operate and Maintain ("BOOM")/ Build, 
Own and Operate ("BOO)" the transmission 
infrastructure for a period of 25/35 years or 
have entered into Power Purchase 
Agreements ("PPA") with Solar Energy 
Corporation of India ("SEC!"), a limited 
liability company owned 100% by the 
Government of India, for development of 
solar power project, generation and sale of 
solar power with a contractual period of 25 
years at a fixed tariff. 

The Management of Investment Manager 
("the management") is of the view that the 
grantor as defined under Appendix D of Ind 
AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires 
transm1ss1on licensee or solar power 
developer to obtain various approvals under 
the regulatory framework to conduct its 
operations both during the period of the 
license or power purchase agreement as well 
as at the end of the license period or expiry 
date of power purchase agreement. In the 
view of management, generally the grantor's 
involvement and approvals are to protect 
public interest and are not intended to 
control, throu h ownershi , beneficial 

Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
following: 

• We obtained and read the TSAs/ PP As to 
understand roles and responsibilities of the 
grantor. 

• We read and evaluated the TSAs/ PPAs to 
understand whether the grantor controls 
significant residual interest in the 
infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement through ownership, beneficial 
ownership or otherwise. 

• We discussed with the management 
regarding the extent of grantor's involvement 
in the transmission/ solar assets and grantor's 
intention not to control the significant 
residual interest through ownership, 
beneficial entitlement or otherwise. 

• We assessed the positions taken by other 
entities in India with similar projects/TSAs/ 
PP As as to the extent of involvement of the 
grantor and the consequent evaluation of the 
applicability of Appendix D for such entities 
and confirmed our understanding. 

• We read and assessed the disclosures 
included 111 the consolidated financial 
statements for compliance with the relevant 
accounting standards requirements. 
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Key audit matters 

entitlement or otherwise, any significant 
residual interest in the transmission/solar 
infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement. Accordingly, management is 
of the view that Appendix Dis not applicable 
to the Group for all transmission assets 
operating under BOOM/ BOO model and for 
Solar assets. 

Considering the judgement involved in 
determining the grantor' s involvement and 
whether the grantor controls, through 
ownership, beneficial entitlement or 
otherwise, and any significant residual 
interest in the transmission/solar 
infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Key judgements and estimates used in the application of Appendix D 'Service Concession 
Arrangements' of Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with customers' a subsidiary of the 
Group - Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited (JKTPL) (as described in Note 28 of the 
consolidated financial statements) 
JKTPL acts as a transmission licensee under 
the Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid 
licenses for 25 years issued by Haryana 
Electricity Regulation Commission. JKTPL 
has entered into TSA with Haryana Vidyut 
Prasaran Nigam Limited through a tariff­
based bidding process to Design, Build, 
Finance, Operate and Transfer ("DBFOT") 
the transmission infrastructure for a period 
of 25 years. 

The Group constructs transmission 
infrastructure and operates and maintains 
such infrastructure for a specified period of 
time. The infrastructure constructed by the 
Group is not recorded as property, plant and 
equipment of the Group because the TSA 
does not transfer to the concessionaire the 
right to control the use of public services 
infrastructure. The group only has the right 
to operate the infrastructure for the provision 
of public services on behalf of the grantor, as 
provided in the contract. Thus, under the 
terms of the TSA, the Group only acts as a 
service provider. Hence this arrangement is 
accounted for under Appendix D - 'Service 
Concession Arrangements ' to Ind AS 115 -
' Revenue from contracts with customer' . 

Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
following: 

• 

• 

We evaluated terms of the TSA to understand 
roles and responsibilities of the grantor. 

We tested, on sample basis, the base data and 
suppo1ting documents for basis of key 
assumptions and estimates used by the 
management. 

• We read and evaluated the TSA to understand 
whether the grantor controls significant 
residual interest in the infrastructure at the 
end of the term of the arrangement through 
ownership, beneficial ownership or 
otherwise. 

• We evaluated the management ' s assessment 
process for applicability of Appendix D of 
Ind AS 115 for transmission projects based 
on the terms of the agreement and tested the 
judgements/ estimates relating to future cash 
flows over the concession period, and 
discounting rate used to discount expected 
cash flows. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

The Group has classified the concession 
arrangements under financial asset model 
since the operator has an unconditional 
contractual right to receive cash or other 
financial assets from or at the direction of the 
grantor for the services. 

Accordingly, the above matter was 
determined to be a key audit matter in our 
audit of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

• We tested the arithmetical accuracy of the 
valuation models. 

• We read and assessed the disclosures 
included in the consolidated financial 
statements for compliance with the relevant 
accounting standards requirements. 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and service concession arrangements 
(as described in Note 3, 7 and 28 of the consolidated znancial statements) 
The Group owns and operates various power Our audit procedures included, among others, 
transmission and generation assets. The following: 

the 

carrying value of the power transmission and 
generation assets as at March 31, 2023, • 
included under property, plant and 
equipment and service concession 
arrangements is INR 180,623.56 million. 

In accordance with Ind AS 36 and Ind AS 
I 09, at each reporting period end, 
management assesses the existence of 
impairment indicators of prope1ty, plant and 
equipment and service concession • 
arrangements. In case of existence of 
impairment indicators, property, plant and 
equipment and service concession 
arrangements balances are subjected to 
impairment test. • 
The processes and methodologies for 
assessing and determining the fair value is 
based on complex assumptions, that by their • 
nature imply the use of the management's 
judgment, in pa11icular with reference to 
identification of forecast of future cash flows 
relating to the period covered by the • 
respective subsidiary's transmission license 
or solar power purchase agreement, debt 
equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, • 
residual value, etc. 

Considering the judgment involved in 
determination of fair values due to inherent 
unce11ainty and complexity of the 
assum tions used in determination of fair 

We obtained an understanding of the Group ' s 
process on assessment of impairment of prope1ty, 
plant and equipment and service concession 
arrangements and the assumptions used by the 
management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. We have tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls. 

We obtained and read the valuation repo11 of the 
Group's independent valuation expet1, and 
assessed the expert' s competence, capability and 
objectivity. 

We evaluated the independent valuation expet1' s 
methodology, assumptions and estimates used in 
the calculations. 

We tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues 
considered in the respective valuation models are 
in agreement with TS As/ PP As/ tariff orders. 

We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
and validity of the data used in the calculations. 

In performing the above procedures, we involved 
valuation specialists to perform an independent 
review of methodology and key assumptions used 
in the valuation. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

values, this is considered as a key audit • We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
matter. the notes to the consolidated financial statements 

Classification of unit holders' funds as equity (as described in Note 28 of the consolidated 
financial statements) 
The lnvlT 1s required to distribute to 
Unitholders not less than ninety percent of 

Our audit procedures included, among others the 
following: 

• We obtained and read the requirements for 
classification of financial liability and equity 
under Ind AS 32 and evaluated the provisions of 
SEBI C irculars for classification/presentation of 
unit holders' funds in the financial statements of 

its net distributable cash flows for each 
financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the 
unitholders ' funds contains a contractual 
obligation of the lnvlT to pay to its 
Unitholders cash distributions. The 
Unitholders' funds could therefore have 
been classified as compound financial 
instrument which contains both equity and 
liability components in accordance with Ind • 
AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. 
However, m accordance with SEBI 
Circulars No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 
October 20, 2016 and No. 
CIR/IMD/DF/ 127/2016 dated November 28, 
2016 ("SEBI Circulars") issued under the 
lnvlT Regulations, the unitholders' funds 
have been classified as equity in order to 
comply with the mandatory requirements of 
Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI 
Circular dated October 20, 2016 dealing 
with the m1111mum disclosures for key 
financial statements. 

Considering the judgment required for 
classification of unit holders ' funds as 
equity, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

an Infrastructure Investment Trust. 

We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the consolidated financial statements for 
compliance with the relevant requirements of 
lnvlT regulations. 

Acquisition of Transmission/ Solar Special Purpose Vehicles ("SPVs") classified as asset 
acquisitions (as described in Note 28 of the consolidated.financial statements) 

The Group acquires operational Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
transmission/ solar SPVs from the Sponsor following: 
or from third pa1iies. The purchase 
consideration primarily pertains to the fair • 
value of the transmission assets/ solar assets. 
All such assets are operational assets with 
fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission 

We read the relevant guidance under Ind AS on 
determining if the acquired SPY constitutes a 
business. 

We assessed the activities of the transmission/ 
solar SPVs. 

We read and assessed the Group 's accounting 

Services Agreements/ Power Purchase • 
Agreements (TSAs/PPAs) for 25/35 years. 
The only key activity for these SPVs is the 
maintenance of the transmission assets/ solar • 
assets which is outsourced to third pariies. policy for recognition and classification on the _ 

acquisition of transmission/ solar SPVs. , f ~
1
, 

7-p~~ 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern 
vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of • 
business under Ind AS, including evaluation 
under the optional concentration test, and 
also keeping in view the relevant guidance 
on similar fact pattern available under 
accounting standards applicable 111 other • 
jurisdictions, the management classified the 
acquisition of transmission/ solar SPVs as 
asset acquisition. 

Considering the management judgement 
involved in determining if the acquisition of 
transmission/ solar SPVs constitute business 
or asset, it is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

We discussed with the management the key 
assumption underlying the Group's assessment 
and tested the underlying data used for 
classification made by the Group. 

We read and assessed the disclosures 111 the 
consolidated financial statements for compliance 
with the relevant accounting standards 
requirement. 

Computation and disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement 
of Total Returns at Fair Value as per Inv IT regulations 

(as described in Note 28 C?f the consolidated.financial statements) 

The Group is required to disclose Statement Our audit procedures included, among others the 
following: of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of 

Total Returns at Fair Value pursuant to SEBI 
circulars issued under the Inv!T regulations • 
which requires fair valuation of the assets. 
Such fair valuation has been carried out by 
the independent valuer appointed by the 
Group. 

For the purpose of the above, fair value is 
determined by forecasting and discounting 
future cash flows. 

• 

The processes and methodologies for 
assessing and determining the fair value is 
based on complex assumptions, that by their • 
nature imply the use of the management ' s 
judgment, in particular with reference to 
identification of forecast offuture cash flows 
relating to the period covered by the 
respective subsidiary's transmission license, 
debt equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, 
residual value, etc. 

Considering the judgment involved 111 • 

determination of fair values due to inherent 
unce1iainty and complexity of the 
assumptions used in determination of fair 

We read the requirements oflnv!T regulations for 
disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at 
Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair 
Value. 

We discussed with the Management and obtained 
an understating of the Group's policy on the 
assessment of fair value and the assumptions used 
by the management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. 

Obtained understating of the Group's process for 
preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair Value 
and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value as 
per Inv IT regulations and the assumption used by 
the management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. We have tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls. 

We obtained and read the valuation report by the 
lnvlT's independent valuation expe1i, and 
assessed the expert's competence, capability and 
objectivity. -~& 
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17~fl) 

i~~A'£o r-::,~J 



SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered A ccol! n'.ant s 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

values, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. • We evaluated independent valuation expert's 

methodology, assumptions and estimates used in 
the calculations. 

• We tested on sam pie basis that the tariff revenues 
considered in the respective valuation models are 
in agreement with TSAs/ PP As/ tariff orders. 

• We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
and validity of the data used in the calculations. 

• In performing the above procedures, we used our 
valuation specialists to perform an independent 
review of methodology and key assumptions used 
in the valuation. 

• We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Classification of Khargone Transmission Limited ("KgTL") as a subsidiary 
as described in Note 28 o the consolidated inancial statements 

In the current year, the Group has entered Our audit procedures included, among 
into a share purchase agreement with Sterlite following : 

others, the 

Power Transmission Limited (the "Selling 
shareholders") for acquisition of equity stake • 
in Khargone Transmission Limited 
("Kg TL") on January 21, 2023. Pursuant to 
the Agreement, the Group has finalized 
purchase consideration for entire equity • 
stake of the Selling sharehoiders and has 
paid purchase consideration for acquisition 
of 49% paid up equity capital in the KgTL. • 
Additionally, the Group has also given a 
non-refundable, interest free advance to the 
selling shareholders comprising of 51 % of • 
the purchase consideration which would be 
adjusted with the actual transfer of 51 % 
equity stake. 

Based on the contractual terms in the above 
agreement, the Group has following rights: 

• 

We obtained and read the share purchase 
agreement with the selling shareholder for 
acquisition of equity stake in Kg TL. 

We obtained understanding of management's 
assessment of whether the Group controls Kg TL. 

We read and understood the Group ' s accounting 
policy for consolidation. 

We discussed with management the contractual 
terms and rights available to the Group pursuant 
to the agreement. 

We read and evaluated the requirements for 
consolidation of entity under Ind AS 110. 

• Right to nominate majority of directors 
on the Board of directors of KgTL; 

• We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the consolidated financial statements. 

• Right to direct the Selling shareholders 
to vote according to its instructions in 
the AGM/EGM or any other meeting of 
shareholders of K TL; 
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Key audit matters 

• Non-disposal undettaking from the 
Selling Shareholders for the remaining 
51 % equity stake in KgTL; 

Considering the requirements under Ind AS 
110, the Group has assessed whether it 
controls KgTL on the basis of the above 
rights under the Agreement. Accordingly, 
the Group has consolidated Kg TL as a I 00% 
subsidiary from the date of acquisition. 

Considering the judgment required 111 

assessing whether the Group controls Kg TL, 
this is considered as a key aud it matter. 

Other Info rmation 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

The management of lndiGrid Investment Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager") is responsible 
for the other information . The other information comprises the infonnation included in the Annual 
repott but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor' s report thereon. The 
Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's repoti. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such 
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the annual repo11, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Management of the Investment Manager ('the Management') is responsible for the preparation and 

presentation of these consolidated financia l statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 

financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, 

consolidated cash movements and the consolidated movement of the unit holder's fund s for the year 

ended March 31 , 2023, the consolidated net assets at fair value as at March 31 , 2023, the consolidated 

total returns at fair value of the Inv IT and the net distributable cash flows of the Inv IT, the underlying 

HoldCos and each of its subsidiaries in accordance with the requirements of the Inv IT regulations; 

Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1 )(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to 

the extent not inconsistent with Inv IT Regulations. The respective Board of Directors of the com pa · 
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included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the management, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager 
and the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Management and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial repor1ing process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As pa11 of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity ' s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of ou,· auditor' s repm1. However, future events oo· conditions may cause th; "'S: :p,C: (<~ 
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Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation . 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial 
information we have audited, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which 
have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for 
our audit opinion . 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Inv IT and such other entities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
repoti unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repo11 because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 

(This space has been intentionally left blank) 



SR BC & CO LLP 
Char te red Account ant s 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial 
statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2( I )(a) of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended, to the extent not inconsistent with Inv IT 
Regulations. 

( d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Group. 

For S RB C & CO LLP 
Chattered Accountants 
!CAI Finn Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

,¢ ~ 
per Huzefa Ginwala 
Paitner 
Membership Number: 111757 
UDIN: 23111757BGYQJVI243 
Place of Signature: Pune 
Date: May 12, 2023 



IND/A GRID TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. milllon unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Property. plant and equipment 

Right of use asset 

Intangible assets 

Capital work·in-procress 

Financial assets 

Other financial asset s 

Other non-current .isscts 

Current assets 

Financial as~ets 

i. Investments 

ii. Trade· receivables 

iii. Cash and cash equivalent 

iv. Bank Balances other than (iii) above 

v. Other fin.>ncial assets 

Other current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Unit capital 

Other equity 

Other reserves 

Equity attributable to Non-controlling interests 

Total unit holders' equity 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i. Borrowings 

ii. Leases 

m. Other financial liabilities 

Employee bcmefit obligations 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i. Borrowings 

ii. Leases 

iii. Trade payables 

a. Total outstanding dues of micro and sma ll enterprises 

b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

iv. Other financi.il li.ibilit ies 

Employee benefit obligations 

Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Summary of sisnificant .iccounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Notes 
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2.2 

ForSRBC&COLLP 

Chartered Accountants lndlgrld Investment Managers Limited {oils Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

C . c.J-\-\ s ,~v-> . 
per Hutefa Gmwala 

Partner 

Membership Number 1117 

Place Pune 

Date 12 May 2023 

6 ~Q,C., 
:l, 

~ .,.Ji 
}-:---

( ,, Harsh Shah 

CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02496122 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

'1; ~-> 
"~,p ~ ,<'t'~ 

~ 1:,-~~r:ou~ '~, 

Urmll Shah 

Company Secrctilry 

Membership Number A23423 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,77,840.92 1,67,849.54 

109.88 32.51 

461.15 497.95 

782.13 36.42 

2,673 .94 3,289.66 

1,026.52 639.81 

1,82,894.54 1,72,345.89 

4,462.46 1,451.73 

4,180.21 3,898.15 

3,166.23 11,873.37 

3,870.50 3,167.87 

3,339.58 2,675.69 

210.30 157.65 

19,229.28 23,224.46 

2,02,123.82 1,9S,S70.35 

65,903.15 65,903.15 

(16,326.20) (11,720.89) 

827.89 796.58 

50,404.84 54,978.84 

1,35,674.58 1,11,311.50 

93.30 26.58 

311.58 286.41 

11.46 8.43 

958.19 1,049.411 

1,37,049.11 1,12,682.36 

9,256.73 22,036.95 

25.03 15.04 

8.61 9.0S 

740.74 1177.24 

4,207.80 5,067.05 

18.89 23.33 

412.07 280.49 

14,669.87 27,909.15 

1,51,718.98 1,40,591.51 

2,02,123.82 1,95,570.35 

r ! 
I ·'• 

N~~=-~ 
,,.,;vi~ Sharma 

Chief Financi.il Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT ANO LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

INCOME 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Income from investment in mutual funds 
Interest income on_ investment in fixed deposits 

Other finance income 
Other income 

Total Income Ill 

EXPENSES 
Employee benefit expenses 

Transmission infrastructure maintenance charges 

l egal and professional fees 
Annual listing fee 

RatinR fee 
Valuation expenses 

Trustee fee 

Audit Fees 
- Statutory audit fees 

-Tax .Judi! fees 

- Other services {including certification) 

Other expenses 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Finance costs 

Impairment/ (reversal of impairment) of property, plant and equipment and service concession receivable 

Total expenses (II) 

Regulatory Deferral Income 

Profit before tax(lll=l·llI 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred taic 

Income tax for earlier years 

Tax expense {IV) 

Profit for the year (Ill-IV) 

Other comprehensive income 
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to prom or loss in subsequent periods 

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to.profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Profit for the year 

Attributable to: 

Unit holders 

Non-controlling interests 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Attributable to: 

Unit holders 

Non-controlling interests 

Total comprehensive income for the ye;;ir 

Attributable to: 

Unit holders 

Non•controlling interests 

Earnings per unit 

Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 

(Computed on the basis of profit for the year) 

Summary of sicnificant accoun ting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

/\s per our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Notes 
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2.2 

ForSRBC&COllP 
Chartered Accountants lndlgrld Investment Managers Limited (as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02496122 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 

UrmllShah 

Company Secretary 
Membership Number /\23423 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 

23,318.12 
362.SS 

239.37 

1.93 
220.91 

24,142.88 

3Sl.96 

526.64 

171.95 
11.38 

24.SS 

5.89 
7.70 

15.16 
3.10 

1.45 

1,304.86 
7,040.70 

10,108.90 

(120.l•J 

19,454.40 

4,688.48 

0.90 

4,687.58 

119.78 

(91.25) 

1.26 

29.79 

4,657.79 

2.74 

2.74 

4,660.53 

4,657.79 

4,555.72 

102.07 

2.74 

2.56 

0.18 

4,660.53 

4,S58.28 

102.25 

6.51 

31 March 2022 

22,221.83 
193.62 

146.37 

9.48 
173.11 

22,744.41 

288.3S 
441.51 

176.12 

9.83 

31.SS 

8.58 
4.63 

13.98 

3.05 

2.67 

1,163.12 

6,654.86 

10,501.48 

(54.97) 

19,244.76 

3,499.65 

6.93 

3,492.72 

43.66 

10.97 

5.34 

S9.97 

3,432.75 

0.80 

0.80 

3,433.55 

3,432.75 

3,484.12 

(51.37) 

0.80 

0.46 
0.34 

3,433.55 

3,484.58 

(51.03) 

S.03 

·Na~in Sharma 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unli?ss otherwisi? stated) 

A. Unitcapltal 

Balance as at 01 April 2021 
Units issued during the year (Refer note 11) 

Issue expenses 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Units issued durinc the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2023 

8. Other equity Other comprehensive 

income 

As at 01 April 2021 2.68 

Pront for the year 

Other comprehensive in com@ 0.46 

Add/Less: Transferred to self insurance reserve/from ret ained earnings 

Less: Distribution durinl! the year (refer note below) 

As at 31 March 2022 3.14 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 2.56 

Less: Distribution during the year (refer note below) 

As at 31 March 2023 S.70 

Note: 

Retained earnings/ 

Accumulated deficit 

(6,392.58) 

3,484.12 

50.44 

18,866.01) 

(11,724.03) 

4,555.72 

19,163.59) 

(16,331.90) 

Nos. In million 

583.49 

116.69 

700.18 

700.18 

Self Insurance Reserve 

68.13 

(68.13) 

(0.00) 

(0.00) 

Rs. In million 

53,145.69 

12,836.49 
(79.03) 

65,903.15 

65,903.15 

(Rs in m!lllon) 

Total other equity 

(6,321.77) 
3,484.12 

0.46 

(17.69) 

(8,866.01) 

(11,720.89) 

4,555.72 

2.56 

(9,163.59) 

(16,326.20) 

The distribution relates to the distributions made during the financial year along with the distribution related to t he last quarter of FY 2021-22 and docs not include the distribution relating to the last quarter of FY 

2022-23 which will be paid after 31 March 2023. 

The distributions made by lndiGrid to its unit holders are based on the Net Dist ributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of lndiGrid under the lnvlT Regulations and hence part of th e same includes repayment of capital as well. 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part o f the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ForSRBC&COllP 

Chartered Accountants lndlgrld Investment Managers Limited (as Investment Manager of Ind la Grid Trust) 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

.tr.~ .. b \\~-
per Huz.efa Ginwala 

,, - • I -:Jr .J ,~-,,11;..,.~--
11··--
v Harsh Shah 

Partner CEO & Whole Time Director 

Membership Number: 111 DIN: 02496122 

Place : Pune Place : Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 ...._:::,,,...~;:;--- Date: 12 May 2023 

UrmllShah 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number A23423 

Place: Mumbai 

Date ; 12 May 2023 

Navin Sharma 

Chief Financial Ofricer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A, cash flow generated from operating activities 

Net profit as per statement of profit and loss 
Adjustment for ta>Cation 
Profit before tax 

Non-cash adju stment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows 
Deprecialion and amortization expense 
Impairment /{reversal of impairment) of property, plant & equipment 
Foreign C>CChange {loss)/gain ,on borrowing 

fimrncccost 
Income from investment in mutual funds 
Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 
Other finance income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Movements in working capital : 
- trade payables 
- other current and non-current financial liabilities 
• other current and non-current liabilit ies 
• trade receivables 
• other current and non-current financial asset 

· other current and non-current asset 

Changes in working capital 

cash generated from operations 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 

Net cash flow generated from oper.itlng activities (A) 

B. Cash flow (used in) investing activities 

Purc hase of property plant and equipment (including capital work-in-progress} 

Purchase of equity shares/NCD/CCD of subsidiaries 
Acquisition of other assets (net of other liabilities) 
Proceeds from sale property plant & equipment 
Interest income on Investment in fixed deposits 
Income from investment in mutual funds 
Interest on others 
Investment in mutual funds 
Proceeds from mutual funds 
Investment in fixed deposits (net) 

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (Bl 

C. Cash flow (used in)/from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of unit capital 
Unit issue expense incurred 

Proceeds of long term borrowings 
Repayment of long term borrowings 
Acquisition of borrowings 
Acquisition of non controlling interest 
Poymcnt of upfront fee:; of long term borrowings 
Finance costs 
Payment of dividend to non controlling interest 
Payment of distributions to unitholders 

Net cash flow (used ln)/from financing uctivitles (C) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+ 8 + CJ 

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of year (0) 

cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year (A+ B + C + D) 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

4,660.S3 3,433.55 
29.79 59.97 

4,690.32 3,493.52 

7,040.70 6,654.86 
(120.14) (54.97) 

(53.23) (126.93) 

10,162.13 10,628.41 
(362.55) (193.62) 
(239.37) (146.37) 

(1.93) (9.48) 

21,115.93 20,24S.42 

172.30 4611.11 
(501.93) 707.57 
128.49 15.92 
3110.27 (668.26) 

(377.17) (70.78) 

(31.75) 0.22 

(269.79) 448.78 

20,846.14 20,694.20 

(490.08) 112.42 

20,356.06 20,806.62 

(17,82~.59) (11,050.09) 

(165.99) 

(578.41) (970.89) 

0.03 
197.13 117.83 
362.55 193.62 

1.93 9.48 
(62,466.58) (46,028 .77) 
59,455.85 44,577.04 

(325.32) (1,850.63) 

(21,179.44) (15,168.37) 

12,836.49 
(79.03 ) 

37,700.00 51,600.00 
(26, 145.39) (70,721 .01) 

7,106.84 
(807.65) 

(156.51) (272.57) 

(10,048 .99) (10,530.72) 

110:94) (99.31) 
(9,161.93) (8,864.21) 

(7,883.76) (19,831.17) 

(8,707.14) (14,192.92) 

11,873.37 26,066.29 

3,166.23 11,873.37 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. mill!on unless otherwise stated) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents: 

Balances with banks: 

- On current accounts"' 

- Deposit with origina l maturity of less than 3 months U 

Tota l cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 

"'Out of total amount, Rs. 13.04 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 11.38 million) pertains to unclaimed distribution to unitho1ders. 

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities (including current maturities} :• 

Particulars 

01 April 2021 

Cash flow 

- Interest 
• Proceeds/{repayments) 

Foreign exchange loss on borrowing 

Accrua l 

31 March 2022 
Cash flow 

- Interest 

• Proceeds/(rcpayments) 

Foreign exchange loss on borrowing 

Accr ual 

31 March 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As pe r our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ForSRBC&COLLP 

Charte red Accou nta nts lndlgrld Investment Managers Limited (as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

Firm Regist ration No. 324982E/E300003 

Partner .--:::==::,,.~ CEO & Whole Time Director 
Membership Number· 111 OIN: 02496122 

Place: Pune Place: Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 ...,_:::::=:::::::r Date: 12 May 2023 

Urmll Shah 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number A23423 
Place : Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 

1,232.09 
1,934. 14 

3,166.23 

31 March 2022 

11,873.37 

11,873.37 

Long term borrowincs 

(Including current 
maturities) 

Navin Sharma 

1,46,588.90 

(10,346.09) 

(12,286.69) 

(126.90) 

10,628.41 
1,34,4S7.63 

(10,048.99) 

11,398.10 

(53.23) 

10,162.13 

1,45,91S.64 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: 12 May 2023 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Olsclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the Inv IT Regu lations) 

(Atl amounts in Rs. million unl ess otherwise stated) 

A. STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE AS AT 

Particulars 31 March 2023 

(Rs. In million 

31 March 2022 

Book value Fair va lue Book value Fair value 

A. Assets 2,02,123.82 2,44,705. 79 1,95,570.35 2,32,81 3.33 

B. Liabilities and Non•Controlling Interest (at book value) 1,52,546.87 1,52,546.87 1,41,388.09 1,41,388.09 

C. Net Assets (A·O) 49,576.95 92,158.93 54,182.26 91,425.23 

D. Nu mber of units · 700.18 700.18 700.18 700.18 

E. N/\V(C/D) 70.81 131.62 77.38 130.57 

Fair values of subsidiaries/SPVs are calculated based on their independent fair va lue done by experts appointed by the Group. The fair value of all these revenue-generating assets is determined using t his method. 

The Group holds 100% equity/beneficial interest in all SPVs except PrKTCL, in which it ho lds 74% with the ba lance 26% held by PGCIL and accounted for as non-controll ing interest in the financi al statements. 

Project wise breakup of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2023 

Project 

Bhopal Dhulc Transmission Company Limited 

Jabalpur Transmission Company limited 

Maheshwaram Transmission limited 

RAPP Trans mission Company Limited 
Puru lia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited 

Patran Transmission Company limited 

NRSS XXIX Transmission limited 

Odisha Generation Phase•II Transm ission Limited 

East North Interconnection Company Limited 
Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited 

Jhajja r KT Transco Private Limited 

Parbati Koldam Tra nsmission Company limited 

NER !I Transmission Limited 

lndiGrid Solar•! (AP) Private Limited 

lndiGrid Solar•II (AP) Private limited 

Kallam Transmission Limited 

Raichur Sholapu r Tra nsmission Company Private Umited 1 

Khargone Tran sm ission Limited2 

Sub-total 

/\ssets (in lndiGrid and intermediate holdinP comoanies) 
Tota l assets 

1. The Group has acquired Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited with effect fro m 09 November 2022. 

2. The Group has acquired Khargone Transmission limited with effect from 02 March 2023. 

B. STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURNS AT FAIR VALUE 

Particula rs 

Total comprehensive income (as per the statement of profit and loss) 

Add/ (Less): other changes in fair value not recognized in total comprehensive income 

Total Return 

31 March 2023 

19,967.13 
17,745.12 

6,032.73 

'1,469.01 

6,967.36 

2,727.06 

47,251.64 

14,959.25 

12,011.12 

12,211.11 
3,646.13 

8,978.53 

53,514.34 

3,461.16 

3,658.88 

1,301.30 

2,830.70 

16,773.05 

2,38,505.62 

6,200.17 
2,44,705.79 

31 March 2023 

4,660.53 

5,339.00 

9,999.53 

(Rs. in million) 

31 Ma rch 2022 

21,000.16 

17,216.04 

6,007.60 

4,524 .97 
6,835.12 

2,693.67 

47,854.07 

14,906.52 

12,013.95 
12,446.29 

3,524.22 

9,792.84 

53,738.42 

4,080.18 

4,090.17 

243.38 

2,20,967.60 

11,845.73 

2,32,813.33 

31 Marth 2022 

3,433.SS 

411.27 

3,844.82 

1. F.:iir value of assets as at 31 March 2023 and as at 31 March 2022 and other changes in fair value for the year therl ended as disclosed in the above tables are based on fair valuation report issued by the 

independent valuer appointed under the lnvlT regulations. 

2. Sensitivity ana lysis with respect to significant unobservable inputs used in the fair valu e measurement has been disclosed in Note 29A. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 



IND/A GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/OF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts In Rs. millJon unless otherwise st~ted l 

A) Sta tement of Net Distributable Cash flows (NOCFs} of India Grid Trust 

Description 

Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the fo rm ofinterest 
Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the form of dividend 
/\ny other income accruing at lndiGrid level and not captured above, including but not limited to interest/return on surplus cash invested by lndlGrid 

Ca sh flows received from the Portfolio Assets towa rd s the rC!paym ent of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets by lndiGrid 

Proceeds from the Portfo lio Assets for a capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as permitted, subject to applicable law 

Proceeds from sale or assets or the Portfolio Asset not distribu!cd pursuant to an c.1rlier pl,1n to re-invest, or if such proceeds arc not intended to be 
invested subsequently 

Total cash inflow at the lndiGrid level (A) 

Less: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at lndiGrid level, including but not limited to lhe fees of the Investment Manager and Trustee 

Less: Costs/retention associated with sale of assets of the Portfolio Assets: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds of Portfolio Assets; 

-transaction costs paid on sale of the assets of the Portfolio Asse ts; and 

-capital gains talCes on sale of assets/ shares in Portfolio Assets/ other investments. 

Less: Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with Ri?gulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Reculalions 

Less: Repayment of clCtcrnal debt at the lndiGrid level and at the level of any of the underlying portfolio .1ssets/special purpose vehicles (Excluding 
rennancinu) 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone lndiGrid level 

Less: Amount invested in any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or interest 

Less: Repair work in relation to the projects undertaken by any of the Portfolio Assets 

Total cash outflows/ retention at lndiGrid level (Bl 

Net Distributable cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 

B) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) o·f underlying Holdcos and SPVs 

(i) lndiGrid Limited (IGLJ (Holdco) 

Description 

Profit/I loss) a fter lax as per profit and loss nccount (Al 
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/ Less: Oecrease/(increase) in working capital 
/\dd: Interest accrued on loan/non.convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable t ransaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvJT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any pr<;>fit / (loss) recognised in profit <_1nd loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, lf <my 
Add/less: Any other item of non•cash expense/ non cash income {net of actual cash flows for these items) 

any dccrease/incre.ise in c.:rrying amount of :in .::;set or a li.ibi!ity recocnised in profit and loss account 01, measuremen t of lhe asscl or lhc lidbili ly at fair 

-interest cost ilS per effective interest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwind ing of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

•portion re serve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excludinc any reserve required by any law or as per lender's .agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of elCternal debt (principal)/ redeemable preference sha res/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancinB) / net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Distributable cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

I 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
17,768.08 

221 .90 
259.18 

1,665.40 

19,914.56 

{10,236.69) 

(31 .96) 

(597.79) 

(10,866.44) 

9,048.12 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
(338.72) 

36.97 
(52 .72) 

390.71 

(69.51) 

30S.45 

(33.271 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited} 

16,885.69 
282.66 
161.96 

4,132 .52 

21,462.83 

(9,371.42) 

(23.62) 

(2,609.64) 

(35.00) 

(12,039 .68) 

9,423.15 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 
(960.78) 

25.16 
(31.28) 

537.24 

187.60 

718.72 

(242.06) 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosu res Pursuant To 5EBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 

(All amounts in Rs. mill!on unless otherwise sl ated) 

Iii) Bhopal Ohule Transmission Company limited (BOTCL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/Less: Oecrease/(increase) in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on 5ale of infrastructure as~ets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-direclly attributable transaction costs; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 

-proceed$ reinvested or planned to be reinve~ted as per Reeutation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Rceulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds arc not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital e>1penditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash nows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recor,nised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actua l paid); 

-deferred ta>1; 

-unwinding of lnte,est cost on interest free loan or other debentures; 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront foes 

Loss on account of MTM of F/W & ECB 

Non Cash Income - Reversal of Prepayment penalty 

Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc . (Excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRJ\ requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+BI 

Note: Ounng the penod, amount bemg at least 90'.li. has already been d1stnbuted to lnd1Gnd. 

(iii) Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited (JTCL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/Less : Decrease/(increase) in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/Jess: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

J\dd: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add; Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be Invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and Joss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: /1.nv other item of non-cash c;;pemc / non c.;sh income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in c.:irrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at l.:iir 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective Interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

Less: Rep.iyment of e>1ternal debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (E>1cluding refim1ncing) / net cash set aside to comply with 

OSRA requlremenl under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments fB) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 

Note: Dunng the penod, amount bemg at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Gnd. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

I 

Vear ended 

31 March 2023 

(Audited I 

1728.481 

714.41 
{143.73) 

2,410.28 

195.78) 

12.46 

151.97 

3,049.61 

2,321.13 

Yea~ ended 

31 March 2023 

(Audited) 

12,133.24) 

725.11 

184.461 

2,879.29 

IS.SOI 

3,511.44 

1,378.20 I 

Vear ended 

31 March 2022 

(Audited I 
(157.551 

709.21 

179.661 

1,239.73 

166.971 

3.39 

1116.66) 

1,689.04 

1,531.49 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

!Audited) 

(1,815.28) 

410.58 

165.801 

2,856.80 

26.91 

3,228.49 

1,413.21 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMO/OF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts in Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated} 

(iv} Maheshwaram Transmission Limited {MTL} (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/less: DecrcasC!/(incrC!ase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on lo.in/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on salC! of infraHructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable tr.insaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

/\dd: Proceeds from s.ilc of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re·invcst, if such proceeds arc not intended to be invested 

subsequently, ncl of any profit/ (loss} recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any 

/\dd/less: /\ny other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income_{net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liabili ty at fair 
value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

•deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reseive for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

•reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Exdudine any reserve required by any law or as per !ender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of externa l debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding ref inancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustmenb (D) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+BJ 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Gr1d. 

(v) RAPP Transmission Company Limited (RTCL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {Al 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Decrease/( increase) in working capita! 

/\dd: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to !ndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain o~ sa le of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

•directly attributable transaction costs; 
•proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructu re assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fa ir 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and .1ctual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

•unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interesl rate lower than market rale of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

•reserve for debenture/ loan redemption {Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable "preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancine) / net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (BJ 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A-t-B) 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lndtGnd. 

(This space is intentionally left blan 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
(174.14) 

121.77 
(19.12) 

591.57 

(0.94) 

693.28 

519.14 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 

13.49 

86.05 
(48.93) 

30S.15 

(0.92) 

341.35 

354.84 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

(177.74) 

121.75 
(7.62) 

589.97 

(0.02) 

704.0B 

526.34 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

{Audited) 

20.22 

85.93 
1.80 

318.60 

0.07 

406.40 

426.62 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 
(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/OF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(vii Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited (PKTCL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Oecrcasc/{increase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less; loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7){a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

/\dd: Proceeds from sille of infrastructure as5ets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to rc •invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss .iccount 

less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other item of non-~ash e:rcpense / non cash income (net.of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued .it interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-ponion rese,ve for major m.iintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

•rcsetve for debenture/ loan redemption {Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per tender's aereement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (DI 

Net Distributable cash Flows (Cl= (A+B) 
Note: During the period, amou nt being at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Gnd. 

(vii) Patran Transmission Company Limited (PTCLJ (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: DC!preciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/less: Decrease/(increase) in working capital 
Add: lnterC!st accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add; Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 
,proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-i nvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if uny 
Add/less: Any other item of non•cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

•any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability .it foir 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan rndemption {Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortiiation of Upfront fees 
less: Repayment of external debt {principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adiustments IB) 

Net Distributable cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Gnd . 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

I 

I 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 

Year ended 

22.15 

1113.13 

(25.17) 

539.67 

(2.47) 

5.44 

660.60 

682.75 I 

31 March 2023 
(Audited) 

(83.72) 

141.64 
(21.42) 

235.77 

(1.30) 

354.69 

270.97 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited! 

vear ended 

47.46 

143.03 
(18.24) 

557.65 

(0.65) 

1.26 

683.05 

730.51 

31 March 2022 
(Audited! 

(115.32) 

159.75 
(3.88) 

249.67 

(6.13) 

399.41 

284.09 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 

(All amounts In Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

(viii) lndiGrid 1 Limited {IGll) (Holdco) 

Description 

Profit/I loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/less: Decrease/(increase) in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lnd!Grid 

Add/le~s: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly att ributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not int ended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (l oss) recognised in profit and loss account 

less: Capital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these i i ems) 

-any decrease/increase in carryinc amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the assl!t or the liability at fair 

value; 

-int erest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost o n Non convertible debentures issued at intcrcsl rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reseive for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statemen t; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

less: Repayment of externa l debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments {B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows· (C) = (A+B) 

Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distnbuted to lnd1Gr1d. 

(ix) NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited {NRSS) (SPV) 

Description 

Proflt/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/ Less: Decrease/(incrcase} in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/!ess: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be sett led from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7l(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add : Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlie r plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less : Capital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of act ual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in prorit .:and loss account on me;Jsurement of the asset or the liability al fai r 
value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred t ax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Distrlbutable Cash Flows IC)= (A+B) 

Note: During the period, amount bemg at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Gnd. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

Year ended 

31 March 2023 

(Audited) 

(37.50) 

(8.27) 

35.51 

27.24 

(10.26) 

Year ended 

31 March 2023 

{Audited) 

273.11 

829.12 

(277.71) 

3,818.79 

27.57 

92.77 

4,490.54 

4,763.65 I 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

(Audited I 
118.78) 

(2.63) 

4.75 

(0.35) 

1.77 

(17.01) 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

(Audited) 

102.42 

828.28 

8S.47 

3,920.38 

(19.82) 

16.45 

4,830.76 

4,933.18 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 
(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(M) JndiGrid 2 limited (IGL21 (Holdco) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairm ent and amortisation 
Add/less: Decrease/(increasel in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on lo.in/non-convertible debentures issued to lnd iGrid 

Add/less: loss/cain on sale of infrastructure assets 
Add: Proceeds from sale of infr.istructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 
•directly attributable transaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7){a) of the lnv1T Regulations 

/\dd: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest. if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other item o! non-cash expense/ non cash income !net of actual cash flows for these items) 
•any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a lia bility recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value; 

•interest cost as per effective int erest rate method {difference between accrued and actual paid); 

•deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 
•portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 
•reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excludinc any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net 0/strlbutable Cash Flows (C) = {A+B) 

(xi) Odlsha Generation Phase•II Transmission limited (OGPTL) (SPV) 
Description 

Profit/(loss) after taK as per profit and loss account (Al 
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/less: Dccrease/(increase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 
Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 
Add: Proceeds from sa le of infrastructure assets adjusted for the foUowing: 
-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

•directly attributable tr.insaction ccists; 
•proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7l(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re•invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other it.em of non•cash expense/ non cash income (net of actua l cash fl ows for these items) 
•any decrease/inc rease in carrying amount of an asset or a li ability recognised in profit and loss account on measure ment of the asset or the liability at_fair 
v.ilue; 

-interest cost as per effec tive interest rate method (diffcrence between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 
•portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excludini:: any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refi nancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (Bl 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 
Note: Durmg the penod, amount bemg at least 90% has already been d1stnbuted to lnd1Gnd. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

Veare ndi?d 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
(96.30) 

(0.46) 

93.12 

Vear ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 

92.66 

(3.64) 

(522 .85) 

413.29 
(47.90) 

1,642.69 

(1.58) 

2,006.50 

1,483.65 

Vear ended 
31 March 2022 

fAuditedl 
(99.13) 

Vear ended 
31 March 2022 

I Audited) 

0.30 
91.22 

(0.15) 

91.37 

(7.76) 

(439.85) 

398.84 
(97.69) 

1,559.59 

(8.67) 

12.19 

1,864.26 

1,424.41 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Clrculars 
{SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts in Rs. million unl ess otherwise stated) 

(xii} East-North tnterconnectlon Company Limited jENICl)(SPV) 
Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 
Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Decrease/(increase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 
Add/less: Loss/gain on sa le of infrastructure assets 
/\dd: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets .idjustcd for the following: 
•related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

•directly attributable transaction costs; 
•proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7l(a) of the lnvll Regulations 
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequent ly, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and !oss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other item of non•cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual .cash flows fo r these items) 
-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of ,m asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the> asset or the li ability at fair 
value; 

•interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

•deferred tax; 
•unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 
-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss stateme nt; 

-reserve for debenture/ loJn redemption (Excluding .iny reserve required by any IJw or as per lender's agreement) 
Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ rede.emable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adlustments (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been d1stnbuted to lnd1Gnd. 

{xlll) Gurgaon•Palwa1 Transmission limited (GPTLI {SPV) 
Description 

Profit/(loss) after lax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depredation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/less: Decrease/(lncrease) in working capital 
/\dd; Interest accrued on Jo;m/non•convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 
Add/less: loss/gain on sale of infrJstructure assets 
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

·related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 
•directly attributable transaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7)(a) of the lnvll Reculations 
Add: Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re•invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ {loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

less: Capita! expenditure, if .i ny 
Add/less: Any other item of non•cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

•<my decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 

value; 

•interest cost as per effective interest rate method (diff~rence between accrued and actual paid); 
-deferred tax; 
•unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 
•portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

•reserve for debenture/ !oJn redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
~ess: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Exc luding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (Bl 

Net Distributable cash Flows (C) - (A+B) 

Note: During the period, .imount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lndiGrid. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

{Audited) 
(436.68) 

565.19 
(72.51) 

1,261.47 

(6.76) 

1,747.39 

1,310.71 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
(507.30) 

362.69 
(69.78) 

1,467.49 

(15 .52) 

1,744.88 

1,237.581 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Aud ited) 
(466.85) 

564.83 
33.21 

1,304.78 

(5.59) 

1,897.23 

1,430.38 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audiledl 

r,Jiii\\ 
'• ,i} 

!.~;.;_j 

(414.53) 

358.42 
(4.31) 

1,437.73 

(70.25) 

(37.60) 

1,683.99 

1,269.46 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMO/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMO/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the Inv IT Regulations) 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless othetwise stated) 

(kiv} Jhajjar KT Transco Private limited (JKTPL) (SPV) 
Description 

Profit/(loss) after ta ,c as per profit and loss account (Al 

Add: Depreciation, impairm ent and amortisation 

Add/Less: Dccrcase/(increase) in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale o f infrastructure assets adjusted ror the following: 

-re lated debts settled or due to be settled fr om sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7){a) of the tnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure ,mets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to rc•i nvcst. if such proceeds arc not intcndc.d to be invested 

subseq ucnlly, net of any profit/ (Joss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Cap ital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/ mcrease in currying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
-interest cost as pe r e ffective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

•portion reserve for major maintcn<1ncc which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ lo<1n redemption (Excluding <1ny reserve required by any li!w or as per lender's <1greement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Ad ·ustments {O) 

Net Distributable cash Flows (C) = (A+D) 

Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd1Grid. 

(xv) Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited (PrKTCL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after ta,c as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/Less: Dccrcasc/{increase) in working capital 

Add: Interest accrued on lo<1n/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: loss/gain on sale of infrastructui-e assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infr.:istructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly att ributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add; Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profil and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, If any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measu rement of the asset or the lia bility at fair 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective inte rest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which h.is not been accounted for in profit and Joss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption {Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ red eemable preference shares/ debentu res, etc. (Excluding refinancin~) / net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments 18) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (Cl = (A+B) 

Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% h.is .ilre<1dy been distributed to lndiGrid. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

I 

Year ended 

31 March 2023 
· (Auditedl 

(2.21) 

0.24 

151.11 
225.62 

(65.71) 

3.21 

314.47 

312.26 

Year ended 

31 March 2023 
(Audited) 

258.10 

435.56 
(131.73) 

212.71 

{4.24) 

(8.41) 

S03.89 

761.98 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

(Audited) 
10.23 

0.18 

145.23 

246.67 

0.80 

(I.IS) 

391.73 

401.96 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 

fAudited) 

75.19 

391.82 
175.92 

108.02 

(4.25) 

(7.59) 

23.22 
(186.68) 

500.46 

575.65 



INDJA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 
(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMO/OF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise sta ted) 

(xvi ) NER II Transmission Limited INER) jSPV) 
Description 

Profit/Closs) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Dccrcasc/(incrcase ) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastruc ture assets adjusted fo r the following: 

·related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

•directly at tributable transact ion costs; 
•proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlie r plan to re-invest. if such proceeds arc not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

less: Capital expend iture, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non·casli expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/incre.1se in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which ha s not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excludine any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments {B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 

Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lndiGrid. 

(xvii) lndiGrid Solar-I (AP} Private limited (ISPLl) ISPV) 
Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account {A) (pertaining to period post acquisition by lndiGrid} 

Add: Depreciation, impr1irment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Decrease/(increase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

/\dd: Proceeds from s.ile of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recogn ised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, If any 
Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid}; 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

•portion reserve for major maintenance which ha s not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per fender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. jE:,ccluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments {D) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 
~ Being the date of acqui sitio n by lnd1Gnd. 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% ha s already been distributed to lndiGrid. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

I Audited) 
(1,375.14} 

984.12 
(179.48) 

4,215.86 

(34.76) 

4,985.74 

3,610.60 I 

Year ended 
31 March 2023 

(Audited) 
(144.26) 

172.26 
141.32 
443.75 

10.53) 

(66.16) 

690.64 

546.38 

Year ended 
31 March 2022 

{Audited) 
(1,258.63) 

983.03 
(471.21} 

4,180.04 

(000) 

4,691.86 

3,433.23 

13 July 2021 • to 31 March 

2022 
{Audited) 

(262.81) 

122.69 

21.13 
403.20 

(1.76) 

22.20 

567.46 

304.6S 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 
(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
(All amounts in Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

(xvii i) lndiGrid Solar•ll (AP) Private Limited (ISPL2) (SPV) 
Description 

Profit/I loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) (pertaining to period post acquisition by lndiGrid) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisatmn 
Add/less: Decrease/(in crease) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: loss/gain on sa te of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

•related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transactlon costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of th e lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds arc not intended to be invested 
su bsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: capital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non •cash expense/ non cash income {net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-any decrease/increase in carrying amount of an .:isset or a liabili ty recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability a t fair 
value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest co~t on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which ha s not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
l ess: Repayment of external debt {principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (bcluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with 
DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net Dlsttlbutable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 
• Being the date of acqu1s1t1on by lndiGrid. 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lnd iGrid. 

(xix) Kallam Transmission limited (KTL) (SPV) 

I 

Year ended 13 July 2021 • to 31 March 
31 March 2023 2022 

(Audited) (Audit ed) 
(143.15) (242.16) 

173.70 123.57 
156.28 (2 .73) 

451.~ 395.63 

(0.87) (1.53) 

(46.22) 21.S8 

733.93 S36.52 

590.78 294.36 

Description 28 December 2021"' to 31 28 December 2021 • to 31 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) (pertaining to period post acquisition by lnd[Grld} 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 
Add/Less: Decrcase/(increc'.l se) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 
-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Rec:ulations 

Add: _Proceeds from s.ile of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an ei'.Jrlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 
subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit i'.lnd toss account 

Less: capital expenditure, if any 

Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items} 

-any decrease/Increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value; 

-interest cost as per e ffec tive interest rate method (difference between accrued i'.lnd actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 
-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate tower than market rate of interest 

-portion reseive for major maintenance which ha s not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
l ess: Repayment of external debt (princ ipal)/ rede emable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with 
OSRA requirement under roan agreements 

Total Adjustments ID) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (CJ= (A+B) 
• Being the date of acqu1s1t1on by tnd1Gr1d. 
Kallam Transmission Limited is under construction project and hence project shall not generate any NDCF. KTL shall gene rate NDCF post Commercial operation. 

(This space is intentionally left blan 

March 2022 March 2022 
(Audited) (Audited) 

lb c.-­

.~~ 
A':.C.0~, 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Disclosures Pursuant To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 
{All amounts in Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

{xx) Raichur 5holapur Transmission Private limited {RSTCPL) ISPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) (pertaining to period post acquisition by lndiGrid) 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/Less: Oecrease/(increase) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 
-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributctble transctction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds arc not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expend iture, if any 

Add/less: Any othe r item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-a ny decrease/increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 
value; 

•interest cost as per effective interest rate melhod (difrerenc:e between accrued and actual paid}; 

•deferred tax; 

-unwinding of Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 
-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 

less: Repayment or external debt {principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

DSRA requirement under loan agreements 

Total Adlustments fB) 

Net Oistributilble Cash Flows (C) = {A+B) 

• Being the date of acqu1s1t1on by lnd1Gnd consortium. 

Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lndiGrid. 

(xxl) Khargone Transmission limited (KgTL) (SPV) 

Description 

Profit/(loss) after tax as per profit and loss account (A) (pertaining to period post acquisition by lnd iGrid} 

Add: Depreciation, impairment and amortisation 

Add/Less: Oecrease/(lncrease) in working capital 
Add: Interest accrued on loan/non-convertible debentures issued to lndiGrid 

Add/less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets 
Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

-directly attributable transaction costs; 

-proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18{7)!a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 

subsequently, net of any profit/ (loss) recognised in profit and loss account 

Less: Capital expenditure, if any 
Add/less: Any other item of non-cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for these items) 

-an"y decrease/increase in currying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit and loss account on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 

value; 

-interest cost as per effective interest rate method (difference between accrued and actual paid); 

-deferred tax; 

-unwinding or Interest cost on Non convertible debentures issued at interest rate lower than market rate of interest 

-portion reserve for major maintenance which has not been accounted for in profit and loss statement; 

-reserve for debenture/ loan redemption (Excluding any reserve required by any law or as per lender's agreement) 

Amortization of Upfront fees 
Less: Repayment of external debt (principal)/ redeemable preference shares/ debentures, etc. (Excluding refinancing)/ net cash set aside to comply with 

□SR/\ requirement under loan acrecments 

Total Adjustments (B) 

Net O!stributable Cash Flows (C) = {A+B) 
• Being the date of acquls1l\on by lnd1Gr1d consortium, 
Note: During the period, amount being at least 90% has already been distributed to lndiGri d. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

09 November 22 • to 31 

March 23 (Audited) 
(13.41) 

25.97 

70.73 
114.46 

(108.69) 

102.47 

89.06 

02 March 23 • to 31 Milrch 

23 
(80.16) 

48.25 

55.23 
168.74 

272.22 

192.06 



India Grid Trust 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

1. Group information 

The Consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of India Grid Trust ("the Trust" or "lndiGrid") and its 
subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) for the year ended March 31, 2023. lndiGrid is an irrevocable trust settled by Sterlite Power 
Transmission Limited {the "Sponsor") on October 21, 2016 pursuant to the Trust Deed under the provisions of the Indian Trusts 
Act, 1882 and registered with Securities Exchange Board of India {"SEBI") under the SEBI {Infrastructure Investment Trust) 
Regulations, 2014 (as amended from time to time) as an Infrastructure Investment Trust on November 28, 2016 having 
registration number IN/lnvlT/16-17 /0005. The Trustee of lndiGrid is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee"). The Investment 
manager for lndiGrid is lndigrid Investment Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager" or the "Management"). 

The objectives of lndiGrid are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of 
the lnvlT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of lndiGrid is to own and invest in power transmission/ solar 
assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unitholders. 

As at March 31, 2023, Group has following project entities ("Special Purpose Vehicles" or "SPVs") which are transmission 
infrastructure projects and Solar Projects developed on Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ('BOOM') or Build, Own and Operate 
('BOO') basis: 

1. Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited ('BDTCL') 
2. Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited ('JTCL') 
3. RAPP Transmission Company Limited ('RTCL') 
4. Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited ('PKTCL') 
5. Maheshwaram Transmission Limited ('MTL') 
6. Patran Transmission Company Limited ('PTCL') 
7. NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited {'NTL') 
8. Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited {'OGPTL') 
9. East-North Interconnection Company Limited {'ENICL') 
10. Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited ('GPTL') 
11. Parbati Koldam Transmission Comp9ny Limited {'PrKTCL') 
12. NER II Transmission Limited ('NER') 
13. Kallam Transmission Limited {'KTL') 
14. Raichur Solapur Transmission Company Private Limited {'RSTCPL') 
15. Khargone Transmission Limited {'KgTL') 

As at March 31, 2023, Group has following project entities which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Design, 
Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer {'DBFOT') basis : 

1. Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited {'JKTPL') 

These SPVs have executed Transmission Services Agreements ('TSAs") with Long term transmission customers under which the 
SPVs have to maintain the transmission infrastructure for 25 or 35 years post commissioning. 

As at March 31, 2023, following project entities which are engaged in generation of electricity through Solar projects developed 
Build, Own, Operate and Maintain (;BOOM') basis: 

1. lndiGrid Solar - I (AP) Private Limited {'lndiGrid Solar- I') 
2. lndiGrid Solar - II {AP) Private Limited ('lndiGrid Solar- II') 

These SPVs have executed Power Purchase Agreements {"PPAs") with Solar Energy Corporation Limited {'SECI' ) for sale of 
electricity for 25 years post commissioning. 

The address of the registered office of the Investment Manager is Unit No 101, First Floor, Windsor Village, KoleKalyan Off CST 
Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz {East) Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400098, India. The financial statements were authorised for 
issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on May 12, 2023. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The Consolidated financial statements comprise of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consol idated Statement of Cash 
Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the year then ended, the Consolidated 
Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the Consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and 



India Grid Trust 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 M arch 2023 

the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows ('NDCFs') of the Trust, the underlying holding company ("HoldCo") and each of its 
subsidiaries for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015(as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind AS") read with SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder ("lnvlT 
Regulations") . 

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basi s, except for the following assets and 
liabilities which have been measured at fair value: 

• Derivative financial instruments 
• Certain financial assets measured at fair value (e.g. Liquid mutual funds) 

The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern . 

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions, except when otherwise indicated. 

2.2 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2023. 

Control is achieved when the Group is ·exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has 

the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if 

the Group has: 

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee) 

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the 

Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and 

circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights 

The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights 
holders 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or 
more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary 
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or 
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial 
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member's 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting 
policies. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the 
parent, i.e., year ended on March 31. 

Consolidation procedure: 

(a). Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. 
For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized 
in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date . 

(b). Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of 
each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill. 

(c). Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between 
entities of the group. lntragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial 
statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses 
resulting from intragroup transactions: 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the unit holders of the Trust and to 
the non-controlling interests (if any), even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, 
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Gr9up's 
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accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between 
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the 

Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 

Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests 

Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 

Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received 

Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained 

Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss 

Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as 

appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. 

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The following is the summary of significant accounting _policies applied by the Group in preparing its consolidated financial 
statements: 

a) Acquisition of Transmission and Solar SPVs classified as asset acquisitions 

The Group acquires operational transmission and Solar Project SPVs from the Sponsor or from third party. The purchase 

consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission and Solar assets. All such assets are operational assets with 

fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) for 35/ 25 years and fixed tariff rate per unit under 

power purchase agreement ('PP.A.') for 25 years. The only key activity for these SPVs is the maintenance of the transmission assets 

and project assets which is outsourced to third parties and partially done in house. There are few employees in these entities 

and no other significant processes are performed for earning tariff revenues. 

Based on evaluation of the above fact pattern vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and also keeping in 

view the relevant guidance on similar fact pattern available under accounting standards applicable in other jurisdictions, the 
management has classified the acquisition of transmission SPVs as asset acquisition. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current 
when it is: 

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. 
The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 
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c) Foreign currencies 

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in _INR, which is its functional currency. The Group does not have 
any foreign operation. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at their respective functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. 

d) Fair value me<1surement 

The Group measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

· All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable; 

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period . 

In estimating the fair value of transmission assets/projects, the Group engages independent qualified external valuers to perform 
the valuation. The management works closely with the external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and 
inputs to the model. The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change in fair value with 
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. The management reports the valuation report and 
findings to the Board of the Investment Manager quarterly to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the 
transmission/ solar projects. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movement in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be 
re-measured or reassessed as per the Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs 
applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant ___ ~,.-. 

documents. -==- K:;• 
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

• Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 298) 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 28) 
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 29A) 

e) Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The 
Group has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before 
transferring them to the customer. 

Power transmission services 

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power transmission services rendered in India to Long Term 
Transmission Customers (LTTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services Agreements (TSAs) executed by the Group 
with L TTCs for periods .of 35/25 years. The Group is required to ensure that the transmission assets meet the minimum availability 
criteria under the respective TSAs. The Group's performance obligation under the TSAs is to provide power transmission services. 
The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's 
performance as the Group performs. Accordingly, the revenue from power transmission services is recognised over time based 
on the transmission asset availabilities and the tariff charges approved under the respective CERC tariff orders and includes 
unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting period. The payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of 
monthly invoice by the customer. 

Solar Business - Electricity generation 

Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue arrangement is based on long term PPA with its customer SEC! . As 
per the PPA, the Group's performance obligation is to supply solar power at a rate specified in the PPA. Revenue is recognised 
over time for each period based on the volume of solar power supplied to the Customer as per the terms stated in the PPA at 
the metering point of the Customer. Estimates used in the revenue recognition as mentioned above are re-assessed periodically 
and are adjusted if required. 

Regulatory Assets and reve_nue: 

The group determines revenue gap for the period (i.e shortfall in actual returns over assured returns)_based on the principles laid 
_down under the CERC regulations and tariff orders issued by CERC. In respect of such revenue gaps, appropriate adjustments, 
have been made for the respective periods on a conservative basis in accordance with accounting policies and the requirement 
of Ind AS 114, " regulatory deferral accounts" read with guidance note on Accounting for rate regulated activities issued by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. (" ICAI" ). 

Service Concession Arrangements: 

The group through one of its subsidiaries also has operating and maintaining the power transmission system including sub-station 
constructed to provide services for a specified period of time in accordance with the transmission agreement entered into with 
the grantor. · 

Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115, this arrangement is considered as Service Concession Arrangement and in accordance with para 
16 of the Appendix D to Ind AS 115, rights to receive the consideration from the grantor for providing services has been 
recognised as "financial assets". 

Finance Income for Service Concession Arrangements under finance assets model is recognised using effective interest rate 
method. Revenue from operations and maintenance services are separately recognised in each period as and when services are 
rendered. 

Contract balances 

A receivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of time is 
required before payment of the consideration is due). Amounts which have been billed to the customers are disclosed as Trade 
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receivables and amounts which are to be billed to the customers (and not conditional on the group's future performance) are 
disclosed under Other financial assets. Refer accounting policies for financial assets in Financial instruments - initial recognition 
and subsequent measurement. 

f) Interest income/Dividend income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable. 

Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Group's right to receive is 
established. 

g) Taxation 

Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. 
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 
date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation 
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment 
by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the 
treatment. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, 
except: 

• When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss; 

• In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse 
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the 

financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things, reflect the potential impact of climate-related 

development on the business, such as increased cost as a result of measures to reduce carbon emission. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a !~gaily enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxa tion authority. 

Sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid, except: 
When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the 
tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. 
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
balance sheet. 

h) Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long­

term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the plant and equipment are required to 

be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major 

inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the · 

recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred. 

No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of plant and equipment. 

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is 

capitalised as part of the construction costs to the extent the expenditure can be attributable to construction activity or is 

incidental there to . Income earned during the construction period is deducted from the total of the indirect expenditure. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Asset Category Useful Life considered Useful life (Schedule II#) 

Leasehold land Lease Period* 30 
Buildings (substation) 25 30 
Substations 25-35 40 
Transmission lines 25-35 40 
Plant and machinery 2-5 15 
Solar power plants 25 40 
Data processing equipments 3-5 3-6 
Furniture and Fittings 5-7.5 10 
Office equipments 4-5 3 
Vehicles 8 8 
Roads 10 10 

# Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 which is applicable to the subsidiary companies. 
* Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the useful life of the asset or the lease period, whichever is lower 

The Group, based on technical assessments made by technical experts and management estimates, depreciates buildings 

(substation) and certain items of plant and equipment, data processing equipment, furniture and fittings, office equipment and 
vehicles over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
which is applicable to the subsidiary companies. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and 
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising·on derecognition of the asset (calculated 

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit 

or loss when the asset is derecognised. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 

year end and adjusted prospectively, if il ppropriate. 



India Grid Trust 
Notes to Consolidated Financia l Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

i) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis. Software is amortised over the estimated 
useful life ranging from 5-10 years. 

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e ., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit 
and loss, when the asset is derecognised. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life 
of the asset is different from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. 

j) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sa le are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs 
are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs . 

k) Leases 

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to 

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Group as lessee 

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low­

value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use 

the underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available 

for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for 

any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 

direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right­

of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 

assets, as follows: 

Office Premises 5-10 years 

Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 

to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any 

lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under 

residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 

reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 

recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that 

triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement 

date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying 

amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lea se payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a 

change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those 

leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also 

applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. 

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term. 

Group as lessor 

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as 

operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is accounted on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs 

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 

over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they 

are earned. 

I) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of 
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators. 

The Group bases its impairment calculations on detailed budget and forecast calculations. These budgets are prepared for the 
entire project life. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised . The reversal is limited so that 
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a 
revaluation increase. 

_The Group assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-reduction legislation 
that may increase costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially 
impact the measure of recoverable amount, these assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value­
in-use amounts. 

m) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, 
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually 
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement . 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognised as a finance cost. 
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n) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another.entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit 
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) 
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or.sell the asset. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics 

and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant 

financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset 

at its fair value plus, in th_e case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables 

that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured 

at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with 

customers. 

Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost 
ii. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI 
A 'debt instrument' is classified as FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, 
and 

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and 
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned 
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Group does not have any 
financial assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCI. 

Debt instrument at FVTPL 
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at 
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. /;:\~~;t~., 

"Qi 
~)~q 
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Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Equity investments 
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale 
of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Group has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferr_ed nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an a'sset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Gr.oup continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated 
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Majority of the financial assets of the Group which are not reflected at fair value pertain to trade and other receivables. 
Considering the nature of business, the Group does not foresee any credit risk on its trade and other receivables which may cause 
an impairment. Also, the Group does not have any history of impairment of trade and other receivables , 

For the financial assets which are reflected at fair value, no further impairment allowance is necessary as they reflect the fair 
value of the relevant financial asset itself. 

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit 
-or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash 
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash 
flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms. 
ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since 
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months 
(a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, 
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL). 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Group's financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables and derivative financial 
instruments. 

Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading a'nd financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date 
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to' P&L. 
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 
recognised in the statement of profit or. loss. 

loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into accou·nt any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

De recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract -
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An 
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified 
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, 
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to 
a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies 
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or 
loss. 

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Group does not separate 
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. 
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their 
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for 
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in 
fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no 
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are 
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Group's senior management determines change in the business model 
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Group's operations. Such changes are evident to external .s-· ·--

P•"'"· A ,haoge m <he bosioess model"""" whoo <he Gm,p ei,hec begios oc ceases <o pecfocm ao ach,dy <ha< is sigoiftcao, «:) 
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to its operations. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification 
date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Group does not 
restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 

Original Revised Accounting Treatment 
classification Classification 
Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous 

amortised cost and fair value is recognised in statement of profit or loss. 
FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR 

is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount. 
Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous 

amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
reclassification. 

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying 
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at 
amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other 
adjustment is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit or loss at the 
reclassification date. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

o) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting 

The Group.uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign 

currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on 

the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as 

financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Since the Group does not meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting, it has not applied hedge accounting in respect of its 
derivative contracts. 

p) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management. 

q) Cash distribution to unit holders 

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised and a legal 

obligation has been created. As per the lnvlT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in unitholders' equity. 

r) · Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting 

preference dividends and attributable taxes if any) by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The 

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a 

rights issue, split, and reverse split (consolidation of units) that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a 

corresponding change in resources. 
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to unit holders of the 

Trust and the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 

units. 

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

(il Amendments to Ind AS 103: Reference to the Conceptual Framework 

The amendments replaced the reference to the !CAi's "Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 

Statements under Indian Accounting Standards" with the reference to the "Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 

under Indian Accounting Standard" without significantly changing its requirements. 

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue 

of potential 'day 2' gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The 

exception requires entities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appen dix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, respectively, instead of the 

Conceptual Framework, to determirie whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date. 

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to business 

combinations occurring after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date 

of initial application). 

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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(All amounts in Rs. million unless otheiwise stated) 

Note S: Ca ital work-in-pro ress (CWIP) 

Opening ba lance 
Additions 

Transfer/ capita lised/ disposed 

Total 

CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2023 

Projects in progress• 

Pro 'ccts temporarily suspended 

Total 

CWIP Ageing Schedule as at 31 March 2022 

Projects In progress• 
Pro ·ccts temporarily suspended 

Total 

Less than 1 year 

746.06 

746.06 

Less than 1 year 

3S.09 

3S.09 
The Kallam Transmission Limited (KTL Project) is currently under construction with scheduled commissioning in September 2023. 

Note 6: Investments 

Current 

Unquoted mutual funds (valued at fair value through profit or Joss) 
Acgregate book and market value of unquoted Investments 

Axis Overnight Fund• Direct Growth- 1,38,097.81 units ( 31 March 2022: 6,496.68 units) 

581 Uquid Fund • Direct Growth - 1,10,412.78 units ( 31 March 2022: 40,632.11 units) 

SBI Overnight Fund • Direct Growth- 25,164.86 units ( 31 March 2022: 33,551.75 unts) 

HDFC Liquid Fund - Direct Plan-Growth Option -1,04,156.74 units ( 31 March 2022: 18,762.47 unit s) 

HDFC Overnight Fund -G rowth· Direct plan - 25,453.63 units (31 March 2022 : Ni!) 

HSBC Overnight Fund -Growth- Direct plan - 21,165.32 units (31 March 2022: Nil) 

ICICI Prudential liquid Fund - Direct Plan-Growth Option• 1,30,974.30 units ( 31 March 2022: Nil) 

ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund-Growth- Direct plan - 7,31,129.55 units ( 31 March 2022: Nil) 

Kotak Uquid Fund Direct Plan Growth - 1,01,305.40 units ( 31 March 2022: 18,249.48 units) 

Kotak Overnight Fund -Growth- Direct plan - 1,36,324.81 units (31 March 2022 : Nil) 

Mirac Asset cash Management Fund - Growth - Direct Plan - 2,86.989.45 units (31 March 2022: Nil) 

Nippon India liquid Fund- Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option ( 31 March 2022: 51,909.77 units) 

Axis Liquid Fund • Direct Growth-1,50,148.18 units ( 31 March 2022: 1,16,032 units) 
Nippon India Overnight Fund • Direct Growth Plan - 10,69,229.61 units ( 31 March 2022: 56,979.86 units) 

Nippon India liquid Fund - Direct Plan-Growth Option - 89,545.82 units ( 31 March 2022: Nil) 

UTI liquid Cash Plan• Direct Plan - Growth { 31 March 2022: 71,285.10 units) 

Aditya Birla Sun life Liquid Fund- Growth-Direct Plan -12,44,935.23 units ( 31 March 2022: 5,76,59~.20 units) 

Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund -Growth-Direct Plan - 90,503.89 units ( 31 March 2022: 8,267.23 units) 

Tota l 

Note 7: Othe r flnancla l iJ·ssets (unsecured, considered f,Ood) (c.irrled at amortised cost) 

Non-Current 

Service Concession Receivable 
Less : Provision for expected credit loss 

VGF Recelvable" 

Securi ty deposits 

Bank deposits for remaining maturity of more than 1 yearU (refer note 11) 

Total 

Current 

Contract assets• unbilled revenue• 
Service Concession Receivable 

VGF Receivable" 

Advances receivable in cash or kind 
Interest accrued on deposits 

Security deposits 

Others 

Total 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

34.74 0.36 

34.74 0.36 

Amount in CWIP for a period of 

1-2 years 2-3 years 

0.36 

0.36 

31 March 2023 

36.42 
1,124.86 

1379.15) 

782.13 

More than 3 years 

0.97 

0.97 

More than 3 years 

0.97 

0.97 

31 March 2023 

144.57 

389.02 

91.83 

460.71 

84.72 

24.83 

158.28 

243.60 

460.78 

163.02 
682.06 

37S.SO 

128.70 
493.10 

452.02 

109.72 

4,462.46 

31 March 2023 

2,628.27 

1182.63) 
2,445.64 

58.06 

67.55 

102.69 

2,673.94 

2,817.85 
337.00 

26.42 

140.17 

1.15 

16.99 

3,339.58 

• Unbilled revenue is the transmission charges and sale of solar power for the month of March 2023 amounting to Rs. 2,817.85 million (31 March 2022 : Rs. 1,958.43 million) billed in the month of April 2023. 

31 March 2022 

97.09 

29.88 

l90.5S) 

36:42 

Total 

782.13 

782.13 

Total 

36.42 

36.42 

31 March 2022 

7.30 

135.43 
144.78 

78.Sl 

78.53 

270.35 

274.31 

6.SO 

248.6S 

197.87 

9.50 

1,451.73 

31 March 2022 

2,787.29 

1182.63) 

2,604.66 

143.62 

61.38 
480.00 

3,289.66 

1,958.43 
344.10 

222.50 

37.88 

93.34 

0.23 

19.21 

2,675.69 

"The Group was eligible to apply for the Viability Gap Funding {VGF) subject to the compliance of certain conditions of VGF Securitization Agreement, Letter of Intent and Power Purchase Agreement. During the previous year, the Group had, filed 

an application to the 5ECI requestine for VGF disbursement, confirming compliance with the terms and conditions attached to Grant, including creation of charge on 23 June 2021. The Group has received the VGF tranches from SECI during the 
current year. 

ff Includes amount of Rs 79.40 million (31 March 2022: NIL) is kept in Debt Service Reserve Account ('DSRA') / Interest Service Reserve Account ('ISRA') as per borrowing agreements with lenders. 
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(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 8: Other assets (unsecured, considered good) 

Non-Current 

Capital advances (unsecured, considered good) 

l ess: Provision for doubtful advances 

Advance income ta11:, including TDS (net of provisions) 

Deposits paid under dispute (rerer note 33) 

Deferred Income on security deposit 

Others 

Total 

Current 

Prepaid c11:pcnscs 

Balance with statutory authority 

Deferred income on security deposit 

Advance Gratui ty Fund 

Others 

Total 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

259.08 

110.83) 

248.25 

496.02 

151.64 

74.SS 

56.06 
1,026.52 

120.48 

24.02 

3.96 

8.13 
53.71 

210.30 

31 March 2022 

268.04 

(10.83) 

257.21 

99.96 

151.67 

75.90 

55.07 

639.81 

107.67 

24.02 

3.63 

6.87 

15.46 

157.65 
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{All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 9: Trade receivables (carried a t amortised cost) 

Trade receivables 

less:Allowancefordoubtfuldebts 

Total 

Current portion 

Non •current portion 

Break•upof security details: 

•Secured, considered f,OOd 

•Unsecured, considered f,OOd 

-Trade receivables which have siRnlficanl increase in credit risk 

•lr;;idereceivables-creditimpaired 

Impairment allowance (Allowance for bad and doubtful debts): 

-Unsecured,consideredr,ood 

-Provision for impairment 

•Trade recc-ivables • credit impaired 

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 

Undisputed Trade Receivables • considered good 

Undisputed Tr.ide Receivables · which have sicnif1cant increase 

in credit risk 
Undispuled Trade reccivabh? - credit impaired 

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good 

Disputed Trade Receivables• w hich have significant increase in 

credit ri sk 

Disputed Trade Receivables• credit impaired 

Total 

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 

Undisputed Trade Receivables • considered good 

Undisputed Tr.1de Receivables • which have significant increase 

in credit risk 

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired 

Disputed Trade Receivables• considered good 

Disputed Trade Receivables• which have significant Increase in 

credit risk 

Disputed Trade Receivables• credit impaired 

Tot .11 

Current but not due 

Current but not due 

Lessthan6months 

2,861.34 

2,861.34 

Lessthan6months 

2,736.84 

2,736.84 

31MarchZOZ3 

'1,186.29 
{6.08) 

4,180.21 

4,180. 21 

4,180.21 

6.08 

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment 
6months-lycar 1-2years 2·3years 

90.57 245.68 

149.12 

90.57 245.68 149.12 

Outst;ind!np, for following periods from the due date of payment 

6months • 1year 1•2ye.irs 2-3ye.irs 

77.59 98.14 

152.07 833.51 

77.59 250.21 833.51 

31March2022 

3,904.23 

(6.08) 

3,898.lS 

3,898.15 

3,898.15 

6.08 

Morethanlyears 

833.51 

6.08 

839.59 

Morcth.tn3ye.irs 

6.03 
6.08 

Neither trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person, nor any trade or other receivable arc due from firms or private companies respectively In which any 

director is a partner, a director or a member within the Group. 

Trade Receivables includes Rs. 710.61 mill ion (March 31, 2022 - Rs 710.61 million) billed on NTPC for the period from the readiness of the Transmission Lines to the date of actual Power Flow. As per the order Issued by the CERC, tariff for this 

is period was to be paid by NTPC. NTPC h.1s filed appeal wi th the AppellJtc Tribunal of Electricity against the order of the CERC. NTPC has also filed an stay application against the bill ra ised by the Group. APTEL has admitted the stay 

application and asked no coercieve action should be taken place till the hc.:iring of the said applic.:11ion. 

Further, the Group has provided amount payable to beneficiaries corresponding to the above recoverable amount and Jccording to the prevailing practice the amount shall be paid as and when the same is realised from NTPC. Interest 

recoverable/payable on these amounts shall be accounted for on actuality In view of uncertainty mvolved. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due on invoicing/ billing. 

~c Note 37 on credit risk of trade receivables, which explains how the Group manages and measures credit quati ly of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

Total 

3,197.59 

982.62 

6.08 

4,186.29 

Total 

2,912.57 

985.58 

6.08 
3,904.23 
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(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated} 

Note 10: Cash and c.ash equivalents (c.arried at amortized c.ost) 

Oa!anccwith banks 
• in current accounts" 

Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Total 

31 Marc.h 2023 

1,232.09 

1,934.14 

3,166.23 

31 March 2022 

11,873.37 

11,873.37 

Balances with banks on current acco unts docs not ea rn interest . Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash-requirement of the Group and earn interest at the 
respective deposit rates. 

" Out of total amount, Rs. 13.04 mjltion (31 March 2022: Rs. 11.38 million) pertains to unclaimed dist ribution to unitholders. 

Note 11: Other bank balances 

Non-Current 

Bank deposits with origi"nal maturity of more than 12 months 

Amount disclosed under head other non current firiancial asset (refer note 7) 

Total 

Current 
Deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months H 

Deposit with original maturity for more than 12 monthsft 

Total 

II Details of lien marked deposits: 

1. Rs. 2,993.76 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 2,322.58 million) is kept in interest service reserve account {'ISRA')/debt service reserve account ('DSRA') as per borrowing agreements with lenders. 

2. Rs. 17.10 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 149.58 million) held as lien by bank against ban k guarantees. 

3. Rs. 0.08 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 0.08 million) pledged with Sales Tax Department. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

102.69 

(102.69) 

2,112.94 

1,757.56 

3,870.50 

31 March 2022 

480.00 
(480.00) 

1,234.44 
1,933.43 

3,167.87 
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{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 12: Unit Capital 

a. Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

As at 01 April 2021 

Units issued during the year (refer note below) 

Issue eKpenses (refer note below) 

As at 31 March 2022 

Issued during the year 

As at 31 March 2023 

Note: 

31 Marth 2023 

Number of units 
(In million) 

S83.49 

116.69 

700.18 

700.18 

31 March 2022 

Amount 
{Rs. In million) 

53,145.69 

12,836.49 

(79.03) 

65,903.15 

65,903.15 

(i) During the previous year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had issued 116,695,404 units of India Grid Group ("lndigrid" and such units, the "units 0

'), for cash at a price of Rs. 110.00 per unit (the "issue price''), aggregating to Rs. 12,836.49 mi llion 

to the eligible unitholders (as defined in the Letter of Offer) on a rights basis in the ratio of one lot for every five lots (each lot comprising 1,701 units) held by them on the record date, being 30 March 2021. The Allotment Committee of the Boa rd 

of Directors of lndiGrid Investment Managers Limited ('Investment Manager'), considered a nd approved allotment of 116,695,404 rights units to the eligible unitholders of lndiGrid on 22 April 2021. 

(ii) Issue expenses of Rs. 79.03 million was incurred in connect ion with issue of units which is shown as reduction from Unitholdcrs capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments; Presentation. 

b. Terms/richts attached to units 

The Group has only one class of uni ts. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Group. Each holder of unit is entitled to one vote per unit . The Unitholde rs have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash 
Flows of the Group at least once in every six months in each financial year in accordance with the lnvlT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportioii to the number of units held by the 

unitholdcrs. The Group declares and pays distribution in Indian rupees. 

A unitholdcr has no eqlJitable or proprietary interest in the projects of lndiGrid and is not entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects (or any part thereof) or any interest in the projects {or any part thereof} of lndiGrid. A unitholder's right 
is limited to the right to require due administration of lndiGrid in accordance with the provisions of the Group Deed and the Investment Management Agreement. 

c. Unitholdc rs hold Inc: more than S percent Units in the Trust 

Esoteric II Pte. limited 

Government of Singapore 

Larse n And Toubro limited 

31 March 2023 

{Nos. in million) 

165.90 

140.18 

39.02 

% holding 

23.69% 

20.02% 

5.57% 

31 March 2022 

{Nos. in million) 

165.90 

140.18 

38.07 

%holding 

23.69% 

20.02% 

5.44% 

d. The Group has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of Incorporation till the balance sheet date. Further the Group has not issued a ny units for consideration other than 
cash from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date. 

Note 13: Other Equity 

Rct.iincd earnings/ (Accumul.ited deficit) 

Balance as per I.1st financial statements 

Add: Profit for the year 

Less: Distribution paid to unitholders 

Add: Transferred from se!f Insurance reserve 

Closing b.ilancc 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Bzi!ancc as per bst fin.:nci.::I ~t.:tcmcnts 

Movement in OCl (tet) durinc the year 

Closing balance 

Self Insurance Reserve 

Balance as per last financial statements 

Less: Transferred to retained earnings 

Less: Transfe rred to non controlling interest 

Closing balance 

Total 

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Group till date, less distribution paid to unitholder 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

(11,724.03) 

4,555.72 

(9,163.59) 

(16,331.90) 

3.14 

2.56 

5.70 

(16,326.20) 

31 March 2022 

(6,392.58) 

3,484.12 

(8,866.01) 

50.44 

(11,724.03) 

2.68 

0.46 

3.14 

68.13 
(S0.42) 

(17.71) 

(11,720.89) 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. milllon unless otherwise stated) 

Note 14: Long term borrowings (carried at amortised cost) 

Non•Currnnt 
Debentures 

6.65% • 8.20% Public NCO {secu red) (refer note A below) 

7.11% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.60% Non·convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 
7.85% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A .ind (i) below) 

7.917% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 
7.S3% Non-convertible debentures {secured) {refer note A and (i) below) 

8.85% Non•convert iblc debentures (secured) 

9.10"/4 Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.40% Non•convertiblc debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

6.72% Non•convertiblc debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

6.52% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7.00% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7.25% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7.40% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7.32% Non-convert ible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.50% Non-convert ible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

Term loans 

Indian rupee loan from banks (5ccurcd) (refer note 8 .ind (ii) below) 

Foreign currency loan from financial institution (secured) 

Total 

Current borrowings 

Cu rrent maturities of long term borrowings 

7.85% Non-convertible debentures {secured) 

9.57% Non-convertible Debentures of Rs. 10.000,00 each 
SAO% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (ii below) 

8.50% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (refer note Band (ii) below) 

Foreign currency lo.in from financial institution (secured) 

Total 

The above amount includes : 

Secured borrowings 

Unsecured borrowin s 

Total long term borrowinits 

(i) The above items represent new secured non-convertible debentures that have been issued by the Trust during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Trust has taken new Indian r_upce loan from banks of Rs. 22,700 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 27,600 million). 

Note (A): Non-convertlble debentures referred above are secured to the extent of: 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

9,886.75 9,872.40 

4,350.00 4,350.00 
2,500.00 2,500.00 

4,961.90 
4,970.49 

2,494.26 

1,989.20 

2,996.63 2,976.28 

3.497.64 

8,477.66 8,470.48 

3,991.70 1,488.66 

2,496.24 2.493.70 

1,496.17 1,494.65 

995.09 993.54 

3,990.50 3,991.06 
3,982.52 

53,607.39 48,100.13 

82,067.19 61,375.49 

1,835.88 

82,067.19 63,211.37 

1,35,674.58 1,11,311.50 

31 March 2023 31 M.irch 2022 

6,560.00 

13,993.83 
3,499.92 

3,991.21 
1,765.60 1,232.50 

250.62 

9,256.73 22,036.95 

1,44,931.31 1.33,348.46 

1,44,931.31 1,33,348.46 

(i} first p.:ri p.issu charcc on entire current assets including loans and advances, any receivable!> accrucd/reali:.cd 1rom iho:.e loans and advance!> exlcndt!d by the irust/Hold cos to its subs1d1anes (direct or indirect) mcludmg loans 10 all proJect 
SPVs and future SPVs; · 

(ii} First pari•passu charge on Escrow account of the Trust; 

(iii) Pledge of 99% over the equity share capital of alt SPVs except pledge of 73% over the equity share capita[ of PrKTCL. 

(iv) Exclusive charge on the ISRA/DSRA accounts created for respective facility. 

Note (BJ: Term loan from b.inks: 

The Indian rupee term loan from bank carries interest at the rate of 7.00% to 8.40% payable monthly. Loan amount installments shall be rep.iyable as per the payment schedule over 5 and 15 years from the date of disbur.sement. The term lo.in i5 
secured by 

{i) fi rst pari passu charge on ent ire current assets including loans and advances, any receivables accrued/realised from those loans and advances extended by the Trust/Hold cos to its subsidiaries (direct or indirect) including loans to all project 

SPVs and future 5PVs; 
(ii) First pari-passu charcc on Escrow account of the Trust; 

(iii) Pledge of 99% over the equity share capital of all SPVs except pledge of 73% over the equity share capital of PrKTCL. 

(iv) Exclusive charge on the !5RA/D5RA accounts created for respective facility. 

(This space is intent ionally left blank) 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

{All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

The below table shows the maturi ty p,or.te of outstanding NCO of the G,oup the principal of which h ,epayablc in full at the time of maturity : 

Rate of Interest Repayment 
Commencement Date 

3,000 9.10% Non-convertible debentures of t\ s. 10,00,000 each 29 July 2024 

50,000 7.85% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100,000 each 28 February 2028 

4,000 8.50"/4 Non-convertible debentures o f Rs. 10,00,000 each 01 March 2024 

2,500 7.00% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00.000 each 28 June 2024 

2,500 7.53% Non -convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 05 August 2025 

1,500 7 .25% Non-convert ible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 27 June 2025 

1,000 7.'10'!;. Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 26 December 2025 

2,500 8.60% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 31 August 2028 

50,000 7.917% Non-convertible debentures of Rs 100,000 each 28 February 2031 

2,500 8.40% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 14 June 2023 

1,000 8 .40% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 16 June 2023 

4,000 7.32% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 27 June 2031 

8,500 6.72% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 14 September 2026 

4,000·6.52% Non-convertible debentures of R~. 10,00,000 each 07 April 2025 

4,350 7.11% Non·convertiblc debenture~ of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

PubllcNCD 

6.65%Category l&II 

6.75%Catcgory Ill & IV 

7.45% Category I & ti 

7.6% Category Ill & IV 

7.7%Catcgory l & II 

7.9% Catego,y Ill & IV 
7.49%Categoryl &II 
7.69% Category UJ & IV 

7.95% Category I & II 
8.2% Catecorv 11 1 & 1v 

7. 72% Catecory I & II 
7.97% Cater,orv m & IV 

Financia l cove nants 

Rate of Inte rest 

14February2029 

Repayment 

Commencement D:ne 

06 May 2024 

06May2024 

06May2026 

06May 2026 

06May20Z8 

06 May 2028 

06May2028 
06May 2028 

06May2031 

OGMay2031 

06May2031 

06Mily2031 

2023-2024 

4,000.00 

1,500.00 

1,000.00 

2024-2025 

0.01 
101.82 

202-1:-202s 

3,000.00 

2,500.00 

2026-2027 

859.85 
964.74 

2025-2026 

2,500.00 

1,500.00 

1,000.00 

4,000.00 

2028-2029 

1,004.25 

409.09 
4.72 

120,34 

2026-2027 

8,500.00 

2031-2032 

126.46 
5,991.84 

4.72 
412.18 

2027-28 

5,000.00 

Loans from bank, debt securities contain certain debt covenants re la ting to limitation on interest service coverage rat io, debt service coverage ratio. Net Debt toAUM, Net Debt to EBITDA etc. The financial covenants are reviewed on 

availability of audited accounts of the respective borrower periodically. For lhe financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has salisfied all debt covenants prescribed in'the terms of loan from bank and fin ancial institutions. where 

applicable. 
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2028-2029 e. onward 

2,500.00 

5,000.00 

4,000.00 

4,350.00 



INOIAGRIOTRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 15: leases 

Non·Current 
Leasel ia b1llt les (refernote36) 

Current 
Lcascliab1lities(rcfcrnotc36) 

Note l&: Trade payables (carried at amortised cost} 

Tradepay.1bles 
- total ouutanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
- tolal outstandinc dues· of creditors olher than micro and small enterprises 

- to related parties (refor note 30) 
• to others 

Total 

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023 

Total oulstandinr, dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues or crnditors other than micro and smal l 
enterprises 
Disputed dues or micro and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises 
Total 

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors olher than micro and small 
enterprises 
Disputed dues of micro and smal! enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises 
Total 

Unbilled 

Unbilled 

Trade payables arc non-intcren bearing and arc normally settled on 30-90 days terms. 
For explanation on the Company's risk management policies, refer note 37. 

626.50 

626.50 

283.29 

283.29 

Not due 

Not due 

3.24 
28.96 

32.20 

13.64 

13,64 

31March20Z3 

93.30 

93.30 

15.03 

25.03 

31 March2023 

Outstanding for followlnr; periods from the due date of payment 
less than 1 year 1·2 years 2-3 years 

4.86 
70.95 

75.81 

0.50 
9.56 

10.0& 

Outstanding for followinq periods from the due date of payment 
Less than 1 year 1·2 years 2-3 years 

129.24 

129,24 

8.18 
27.30 

35.48 

8.61 

101.20 
639.54 

749.35 

0.01 
4.77 

4.78 

23.77 

23.77 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31March202Z 

26.58 

26.58 

15 .04 

15.04 

31March2022 

9.05 

102.35 
374.89 

486.29 

More than 3 years 

More than 3 years 

0.87 

0.87 

Total 

Total 

8.61 
740.74 

749.35 

9.0S 
477.24 

486.29 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 17: Other financial liabilities 

Non-Cummt 

VGF liability 

Others 

Total 

Current 

Derivative instruments at fair value 

foreign exchange forward contracts 

Cross currency interest rate swap 

Other financia l liabilities at amortised cost 

VGF!iability 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 

Payables for purcha se of property, plant and equipment 

Distribution payable 

Payable towards project acquired/# 

- To related party (refer note 30) 

-To others 

Employee payable 

Tariff payable to beneficiaries@ 

Others• 

Total 

"'Other payables are non-int erest bearing and have .in .iverage term of six months .ind includes amounts pert.iining to provision for expenses. 

For explanation on t he Company's risk management policies, refer note 37. 

31 March 2023 

270.81 

40.77 

311.58 

13.87 

984.33 

943.52 

13.04 

1,291.19 

27.79 

35.34 

895.72 

3.00 

4,207.80 

4,207.80 

@Tariff payables to beneficiaries incudes Rs. 895.72 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 1,406.45 million) payable to beneficiaries due to CERC order on determination of COD on certain elements of project. 

31 March 2022 

270.11 

16.30 

286.41 

6.19 

7.04 

13.23 

13.12 

1,109.17 

917.33 

11.38 

1108.97 

450.24 

30.25 

1,406.45 

6.91 

5,053.82 

5,067.05 

U liability is towards acquisition of equity shares of NRSS XXIX Transmission limited, Odis ha Generation Phase•II Transmission Limited, East-North Interconnection Company limited, Gurgaon•Palwal Transmission limited, Parbati Koldam 

Transmission Company limited, NER II Transmission limited, Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited and Khargone Transmission limited pursuant to respective sha re purchase agreements. 

Note 18: Employee Benefit Obligations 

Non current 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 39) 
Provision for leave benefit 

Tota l 

Current 

Provision for gratuity (refer note 39) 

Provision for leave benefit 

Long term incentive plan (refer note 40) 

Tota l 

Note 19: Other current H.ibilitfes 

Current 

Withholding taxes (TDS) payable 

Advance from customers 

WCTpayable 

Professional tax payable 

GST payable 

Provident fund payable 

Others 

Total 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

6.14 

5.32 

11.46 

0.73 
0.64 

17.52 

18.89 

31 March 2023 

£,R0C.: 

' ~,t 
'.:.::::D~ 

40.92 

270.52 

0.38 

0.25 

7.40 

3.35 

89.25 

412.07 

31 March 2022 

4.07 

4.36 

8.43 

0.47 

0.50 

22.36 

23.33 

31 M.irch 2022 

23.27 

166.62 

0.38 

0.04 

22.45 

1.62 

66.11 

280.49 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 20: Deferred tax liability (net) 

Deferred tax liability 
Property, plant and equipment : Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortisation for fi nanc ial reporting 
Service concession reciev;ib le: Impact of difference betwee n tax depreciation and effective rate of interest for financial reporting 
Recoverable from beneficiaries 

Gross deferred tax liablllty (A) 

Deferred tax asset 
Financial assets 
Tai,;:Losses 

Gross deferred ta ,c asset (B) 

Net deferred tax liability (A·B) 

Reconciliation of deferred ta,c liability 

Opening deferred tax liability, net 
Dcforred tax liabtl1ty (net of asset) acquired durine: the year 
Deferred tax credit/ (charge) recorded in statement of profit and loss 

Closing deferred tax liability, net 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March .2023 and 31 March 2022 are: 

-Current tax 
- Deferred tax 
- Income tax for earlier years 

Income tax e,cpenses reported in the statem<!nt of profit and loss 

Reconciliation oft.ix expense and the .iccountlng profit multiplied by India's domestic ta,c rate for 31 M.irch 2023 and 31 March 2022: 

Accounting profit before income tax 
At India's statutory income t.ix rate of 25.17% (31 March 2022: 25.17%) 
Impact of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of t~e Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust 
Income tax for earlier years 
Impact on deferred tax due to change in tax rates 

At the effective Income tax rate 
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

16,519.39 14,995.31 
231.81 600.76 

(648.74) (649.63) 

16,102.46 14,946.44 

69.91 93.60 
1S,074.36 13,803.40 

15,144.27 13,897.00 

958.19 1,049.44 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,049.44 921.39 
117.08 

(91.25) 10.97 

958.19 1,049.44 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

119.78 43.66 
(91.25) 10.97 

1.26 5.34 

29.79 59.97 

31 Much 2023 31 March 2022 

4,687.58 3,492.72 
1,179.86 879.12 

(1,151.33) (830.12) 

1.26 
10.97 

29.79 59.97 
29.79 59.97 

1. As at 31 March 2023, based on the expected future profitability of the SPVs, the management has recognised deferred tax assets on the unabsorbed tax depreciation carried forward only to the extent of deferred tax liability. 

2. The Group has Rs. 11,120.52 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 13,923.31 million) of tax losses/ unabsorbed depreciation carried forward on which deferred tax asset has not been recognised. If the Group was able to reCognise all unrecognised 
deferred tax assets, profit after tax would have increased and equity would have increased by Rs. 2,798.81 mi llion (31 March 2022: Rs. 3,504.50 million). 

Further, for the calculation of deferred ta)( assets/liabilities, the Group has not considered tax holiday available under the Income TJx Act for some of the project SPVs for the computation of deferred tax assets/liabilities. The management based 
on estimated cash flow workings for these project, believes that since there will be losses in the initial ye.irs of these project, no benefit under the Income tax Act would accrue to these projects in respect of the tax holiday. Management wilt re• 
assess this position at eac h balance sheet date. 

Note 21: Revenue from contracts with customers 

Note 21.1: Disaggregated revenue information 
Type of service 
Power transmission services (refer note A below) 
Reve'"!ue from sale of electrkitiy {solar) (refer note B below) 

Total 

31 March 2023 

22,376.64 

941.48 

23,318.12 

31 March 2022 

21,614.28 

607.55 

22,221.83 

(Al Revenue from contracts with customers comprises of revenue from power trJn sm ission services rendered in India to Long Tc-rm Transmi ssion Customers {LTTCs) pursuant to the respective Transmission Services /1.grcements {TSAs) executed by 
the Group with L TTCs. The TSAs are executed for a period of 35 / 25 years and have fixed tariff charges as approved by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) (e)(cept some escalab!e portion and some incentlves/penJlties relating to 
transmission assets availabilities). Under the TSAs, the Group's perform.ince obligation is to provide power tr.in smission services. The Group is required to ensure that the transmission assets meet the minimum avai lability crite ria under the 
respective TSAs fail ing which could result in certain disincentives/penalties. The performance obligation is satisfied over-time as the customers receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group's performance JS the Group performs. The 
payment is generally due within 60 days upon receipt of monthly invoice by the customer. The Group receives payments as per the pooling arrangements specified under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Sharing of Inter State 
Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010 {'Pooling Regulations'). In the Point of Connection (Po() mechunism, the t ransmission charges to be recovered from the entire system are allocated between users based on their locat ion in the 
grid. Under the PoC mechanism, all tht' charges collected by the Central-Transmission Utility (i.e. Power Grid Corporation of India limited) from LTTCs are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmis~ion Service Providers from the pool in proportion of the 
respective billed amount. 
(B) Revenue from sale of solar power generated is recognised on accrual basis (net of deviations as per the Deviation Settlement Mechrmi sm) on the basis of the billings as per the long term Power Pllrchase Agreement with Solar Energy 
Corporation of India (SECI) and includes unbilled revenues accrued upto the end of the accounting period. 

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not disclosed the remaining performance oblication related disc losure s ~ince the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's 
performance completed to date. 
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INOIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Consolldated Financial Stat~ments for the year ended 31 March 2023 
{All amounts in Rs. million unless otheiwise stated) 

Note 21.2: Reconciliation of the amou nt of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price 

Revenue as per contracted price 

Adjustments: 
Incentives earned for hieher asset availabilities 
Surcharges received for late payments 
Rebates given for early payments 

Tota l revenue from contracts with customers 

Project wise break up of revenue from contracts with Customers 

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited 
Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited 
Maheshwaram Transmission Limited 
RAPP Transmission Company Limited 
Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited 
Patran Transmission Company Limited 
NRSS XXIX Transmission limited 
Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited 
East North Interconnection Company limited 
Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited 
Jhajjar KT Transco Private L~mited (note c) 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited (noted) 
NER II Trans'mission Limited 
lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited (note b) 
lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private Limited (note b) 
Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private Limit ed (note a) 
Khargone Transmission Limit ed (note a) 

Total revenue from contr;:icts with customers 

31 March 2023 

22,6)0.94 

630.6S 
166.78 

(110.25) 

23,318.12 

31 March 2023 

2,704.90 
1,524.58 

581.25 
456.76 
752.50 
319.88 

S,224.69 
1,609.01 
1,508.77 
1,465.82 

32S.68 
1,394.29 
4,221.64 

460.25 
481.23 
142.36 
144.51 

23,318.12 

a. In the current financial year, The Trust has acquired Raichur Scholar Transmission Company Private Limited and Khargone Transmission Limited w.e.f. 09 Novemeber 2022 and 02 March 2023 respectively. 

b. In the previous year, the Trust has acquired lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited and lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private limited with effect from 13 July 2021. Amounts stated above pertain to post acquisition revenue. 

31 March 2022 

21,66S.43 

508.S6 
159.02 

(111.18) 

22,221.83 

31 March 2022 

2,717.86 
l,S46.12 

580.72 
4S7.18 
773.37 
318.60 

5,021.84 
1,648.67 
1,-194.32 
1,494.28 

292.47 
1,088.26 
4,157.23 

305.54 

325.37 

22,221.83 

c. Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited has entered into a transmission agreement with Haryana Vidyut Prasaran Nigam limited (HVPNLJ for obtaining eKclusive right to construct, operate and maintain the transmission lines on design, build, finance, 
operate and transfer (DBFOT) basis for a specified period (concession period) commencing from the date of grant of the Transmission License and receive monthly determinable annuity payments. The agreement provides an option for extension 
of the concession period. Upon completion of concession period or on termination of agreement, transmission lines will vest with the grant or free and dear of all encumbrances. ln terms of para 16 of Appendix D to lndAS 115, cost of construction 
of transmission lines has been recogn ized as a part of financia l assets under the head service concess ion receivable. Annuity payments received under the agreement have been accounted as revenue from contracts with customers. 

d. Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited had filed tariff petit_ion in FY 2021-22 for truing up of the tariff for period 2014-19 and revised petition of tariff for period 2019-24 with CERC for its approval. However these petition are yet to be 
disposed off by CERC. Hence. company has been recognizing the revenue basis the filed petition order for 2019-24 for 2022-23. 

Note 22: Other Income 

Sale of scrap 
Reversal of provision for doubtful custom deposit 
Profit on sale of property, plr1nt ;:ind equipment 
Reimbursements received 
Deferred income on VGF 
Miscellaneous income 

Tota l 

Note 23: Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident fund 
Long term incentive plan {refer note 40) 
Gratuity expense (refer note 39) 
Staff welfare expenses 

Tota l 

31 March 2023 

106.12 

0.01 
19.80 
46.45 
48.53 

220.91 

31 March 2023 

299.84 
11.19 
6.98 
6.04 

27.91 

351.96 

31 March 2022 

28.86 
1.39 
0.19 

43.55 
13.12 
86.00 

173.11 

31 March 2022 

238.13 

8.7S 
17.90 
2.71 

20.86 

288.35 



IND IA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. mllllon unless otherwise stated) 

Note 24: Other expenses 

Project management fees (refer note 30) 

Investment management fees (refer note 30)U 

Power and fuel 
Rent 
Rates and taxes 
Insurance expenses 
Vehicle hire charges 
Loss on sale of assets 
Director Sitting Fee 
Security charges 
Earn out expenses 
BayCharces 
Advertisement expenses 
Right of way charges 
Corporate social responsibllity 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

# For all SPV's except ParbaU Koldam Company Transmission Limited 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1.42 1.06 
450.30 434.1 2 

40.27 41.20 

9.01 6.95 
158.63 125.21 

204.09 252.43 

56.22 36.87 

0.16 
6.11 5.93 

43.68 46.05 

{0.35) 

102.53 53.18 

0.17 4.90 

31.88 35.81 
19.12 28.29 

181.43 91.31 

1,304.86 1,163.12 

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Investment Management Agreement dated 29 Ma rch 2022, Investment Manager is entitled to fees@ 1.75% p.a. of difference betwee n revenue from operations and operating expenses jother than fees of 
the Investment Manacer) or 0.25% of AUM of each SPV, whichever is lower. For this purpose, operatine expenses wou ld not include depredation, fina nce costs and income tax expense. 

# For Parbatl Koldam Company Transmissio n limited (SPV) 
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 2 March 2021 as amended, Investment Manager Is entitled to fees@ 1.00% of difference between revenue from operations and operating expenses (other than fees of the Investment 
Manager) of the Company, per annum. For this purpose, operating expenses would not include depreciat ion, finance costs and income tax expense. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 2S: Finance Cost 

Interest on financial liabilities memured at amortised costlt 
Other bank and finance charges 

Discounting on Factoring 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 3a) 

Total 

# Includes foreign exc hange loss which is considered as adjustment to borrowing cost amounting to Rs. 53.23 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 126.93 mi llion) 

Note 26: Depreciation and amortization expense 

Depreciation or tangible assets 

Depreciation on Right of use asset s 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

Total 

Note 27: Earnings per unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during t he year. 

31 M arch 2023 

10,100.28 

4.64 

3.98 

10,108.90 

31 March 2023 

6,991.65 

10.73 
38.ll 

7,040.70 

31 March 2022 

10,487.34 

5.85 

4.01 
4.28 

10,501.48 

31 March 2022 

6,615.67 

10.64 

28.55 

6,654.86 

Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on 

conversion of all the dilutive potentia l units into unit capital. 

The following reOects in the profit and unit data used in the basic and diluted EPU computation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Profit after tax for calculating bask and diluted EPU (Rs. in milli on) 

Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and diluted EP U (No. in million) 

Earnings Per Unit: 

Basic and Diluted (Ru ees/unit 

Note 28: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

4,555 .72 

700.18 

6.51 

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue-, cxpenscs, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resu lt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

i . Applicability of AppendlK D - Service Concession Arrangements of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contr3ctS with customers 

3,484.12 

693.14 

5.03 

The Group through its subsidia ries acts as a t ransmission licensee under the Electricity Act, 2003 holding valid licenses for 25-35 years. The subsldlarJes have entered Into Transmission Services Agreements {"TSA") with long Term Transmission 
Customers ("LTTC") through a t ariff based bidding process to Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ("BOOM") the transmission infrastructure for a period of 25-35 years. The management of the Company is of the view that the granter as defined 

under Appendix D of Ind AS 115 ("Appendix D") requires transmission licensee to obtain va rious approvals under the regulatory framework to conduct its oper.:itions both during the period of the license as well as at the end of the license period. 

However, in the view of m.:inagement, the grantor's Involvement and approvals are to protect public interest and are not intended to control, through ownership, beneficial enti tlement or otherwise, any significant residual interest in the 

transmission infrastructure at the end of the term of the arranecmcnt . Accordinely, m~naeement is of the view that Appendix Oto Ind AS 115 is not app!iczb!c to the Group for ::ill tr::nsmis:ion infrastructure operating on a DOOM bcisis. The 

Group also holds transmission infrastructure pertaining to Jhajjar KT Transco Private limited whic h operates on a Design, build, finance, operate and transfer ("DBFOT") basis. The company has operating and maintaining the power transmission 

system including sub·station constructed to provide services for a specified period of time In accordance with the transmission aereement entered Into with the [lrantor. Under Appendix D t o Ind AS 115, this arrangement is considered as Service 

Concession Arrangement and in accordance with pa ra 16 of the Appendix D to Ind AS 115, rights to receive the consideration from the erantor for providing services has been recognised as "financial assets". Accordingly the Group is of the view 

that Appendix D - Service Concession Arrangements of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers is applicable to this infrastructure asset . 

ii. Classification of Unitholdcrs' funds 

Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, lndiGrid is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows of JndiGrid for each financlal yea r. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders ' funds 

contains a contractual obligation of the Trusl to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. The Unitholders' funds could therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which contain both equity and liability components in 

accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-0ct-2016 and No. CtR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated 29-Nov-2016) issued under the lnvlT Regulations, 

t he unitho1ders' funds have been classifi!!d as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirem!!nts of Section H of AnneKurc A tO t he SEBI Circular dated 20·0Ct·2016 dealine with the minimum disclosures for key financial statemen ts. In 
li ne with the above, the dividend payable to unit holders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by th!! lnv!!stment Manager. 

iii. Acqulsltlon of Transmission SPVs classified as asset acquisitions 
The Group acquires operat ional t ransmission SPVs/ Solar SPVs from the Sponsor or from third party. The purchase consideration primarily pertains to the fair value of the transmission asset s and solar assets. All such assets are operational assets 

with fixed tariff revenues under the Transmission Services Ar,reements {TSAs) / Power Purchase Acreemcnts jPPAs) for 35/25 years. The only key act ivity for these SPVs is the maintenanw of the transmission assets which is outsourced to third 

parties . There are no employees in these entities and no other significant processes are performed for earning tariff revenues. 

Based on ev<1 luation of the above fact pattern vis-a•vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS and also keeping in view the re levant BUidance on similar fact pattern available under accountinB standard s applicable in other 

jurisdictions, the management has classified the acquisition of transmission SPVs and solar SPVs as asset acquisition. 
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Notes to Consolidated Fin ancial Statements for the yea r ended 31 March 2023 
{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

iv. Consolidation of Khargone Transmission Limited ('KgTL') as a subsidiary 

The Group acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Kharcone Transmission limited ("Kell") with effect from 02 March 2023 from Sterlite Power Transmission lim ited {SPTL)) (referred as "the seller") pursuant to Share Purchase Aercement dated 
Zl January 2023 ("SPA") . The Group has finalised purch.ise consider.ition for acquisition of entire stakC in Kg TL and has entered into a binding agreement with the Seller to acquire remaining 51% paid up equity c;ipital in Kg Tl from the Seiter. The 
Group has beneficial interest based on the rir,hts available to it under the SPA. 
Based on the cont ractual terms of the a[:rcemcnt, the Group has following rights: 

•Right to nomin;ite all directors on the board of directors of the Kg TL; 
•Right to direct the selling shareholders to vote according to its instructions in the AGM/EGM or any other meeting of shareholders of Kg TL; 
• Non-disposal undertaking from the selling shareholders for the remaining 51% equity stake in Kgll; 

Considering the requirements under Ind AS 110, the Group has assessed whether it controls KgTL on the basis the above rights under the agreement and the fact that the Group has acquired 49% and have paid for the balance 51% conside ration 
(subject to certain ;igreed hold back ;imount). Based on the assessment, management h;is concluded that the Group controls Kg TL in spite of the fact that it has acquired only 49% of the paid up capital of Kg TL. 

Accordingly, the Group has consolidated Kg Tl assuming 100"/4 equity owKgTLship and no non-controlling interest {NCI) has been recognised in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Remaining purchase consideration payable to the selling 
shareholders is recognized as financial liability in the consolidated Ind AS financial stat ements. 

v. Consolldatii;m of NER and GPTL as a subsidiary 

The Group had acquired 49% and have paid for the balance 51% consideration (subject to certain agreed hold back amount) of NER & GPTL. Based on the assessment, management has concluded that the Group -controls both ent ities in spite of 
the fact that it has acquired only 49% of the paid up capital of both entities. Further, based on the legal opinion both the entit ies are considered as Special Purpose Vehicle as per requirements of Securities EKchange Board of India's Invite 
Regulalions. 

Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the repor1 ing date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asse1s and liabili ties or fa ir value disclosures 
within the ncKt financial year, arc described below. The Trust based its assumptions and estimates on par.imetcrs av.iilable when the financi.il statements were prepared. histing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to m;irket changes or circumstances arising th;it are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes arc reflected in the assumptions when they occu r. 

(a) Fair valuation and disclosures 
SEBI Circulars issued under the lnvlT Regulations require disclosures relating to net assets at fair value and total re turns at fair value (refer note 29A and 29B). 
In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets). the Group engages independent qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the 
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques .ind inputs to the model. The management reports the valuation report a11d findings to the Board of the Investment Manager ql/artcrly to explain the cause of fluctua tions in the fair value 
of the transm ission/ sola r projects. The input s to the valuation models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 

considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value. 

(b) Impairment of non-current assets 
Non-current assets of the Group primarily comprise ~f property, plant & equpiment and service concession recievable. 

The provision for impairment/(revers.il) of impairment of property, plant & equpiment and service concession receivable is made based on the difference between the carrying amounts and the recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of 
the property, plant & equpiment and service concession recievable has been computed by external independent valuation experts based on va lue in use calculation for the underlying transmission/ solar projects of SPV's (based on discounted 
cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the recoverable amounts of individual portfolio assets computed by the valuat1011 experts, the Group tests impairment on the amounts invested in the respective subsidi.iries of company. The 
valuation e11:ercise so carried out considers various factors including cash flow projections, changes in interest rates, discount rates, risk premium for market conditions including the impact of COVID-19, e tc. 

Based on the valuation eKerdse so carried out, there is a net impairment reversal of Rs. 120.14 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 . net impairment reversal of Rs. 54 .97 million), which is primarily on account of maturity of 
SPV assets. Th.e key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying projects arc disclosed and further explained in Note 29A. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 29A: Fair value measurements 

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than t hose with carrying amounts that are reasonable approKimations of fair values: 

Rs. in million 
Carrying value Fair value 

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Financi.il assets at amortized cost 

Trade receivables 4,180.21 3,898.15 4,180.21 3,898.15 
Cash & cash equivalent 3,166.23 11,873.37 3, 166.23 11,873.37 

Other bank balance 3,973.19 3,647.87 3,973.19 3,647.87 
Other financial assets 5,910.83 5,485.35 5,910.83 5,485.35 

Financial assets at Fair Value 

Investments in mutual funds 4.462.46 1,.451.73 4,462.46 1,451.73 

Total 21,692.92 . 26,356.47 21,692.92 26,356.47 

Financial llabilltles at amortized cost 

Borrowings 1,44,931.31 1,33,348.46 1,44,931.31 1,33,348.46 

Trade payables 749.35 486.29 749.35 486.29 
Lease Liabilities 118.33 41.62 118.33 41.62 
Other financial liabilities 4,519.38 5,340.23 4,519.38 5,340.23 

Financial assets at Fair Value 
Derivative Instruments 13.23 13.23 

Total 1,S0,318.37 1,39,229.83 1,50,318.37 1,39,229.83 

The management has assessed that the financial assets and financial liabilities as at year end are reasonable approximations of their fair values. 

The Group is required to present the statement of total assets at fair value and statement of total returns at fair value as per SEB! Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 as a part of these financial statement s• Refer Statement 

of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value. · 

The inputs to the valuation models for computation of fair value of assets for the above mentioned statements are taken from observable markets where possible. but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing 

fai r values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates. Inflation rates, etc. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement required for disclosures categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as 

shown below: 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 

Significant unobservable inputs Input for 31 March 2023 Input for 31 March 2022 Sensitivity of input to the 

fair value 

WACC 7.70% to 8.53% 7.55%to9.12% +.0.5% 

·0.5% 

Tax rate (normal tax and MAT) Normal Tax • 25.168% Normal Tax• 25.168% t2% 

-2% 
lnrlation rate R_evenue(Esclable): 5.00% Revenue(Esclable):S.00% +1% 

Expenses: 2.14% to 4.75% E)(penses: 2.46% to 4.84% -1% 

Note 29B: Fair value hierarchy 

The management has assessed that the? financial assets and financial liabilities as at year end other than above arc reasonable approKimations of their fair values . 

(Rs in million) 

Increase /(decrease) in fair value 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

(10, 744.00) (10,168.42) 

10,446.00 11,434.87 

(580.0S) (520.00) 

531.80 471.00 
(3,127.86) (3,173.14) 

2,574.20 2,604.90 

. The Group is required to present the statement of total assets at fair value and statement of total returns at fair value as per SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 as a part of these financial statements· Refer Statement 

of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at F~ir Value. 

The Property. plant and equlpmerits / Service concession receivable of the group mainly compose of Transmission/ Solar assets ( which are SPV e ntities/ subsidiary of the group, a fair valuation activity is done by the manageme nt as explained 

above, which is carried out by external valuation expects. On the basis of valuation exercise carried out, the below fair value numbers are determined for PPE and Service concession receivable. 

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022: 

Assets for which fair values are disclosC?d: 
Property, plant and equipment and service concession receivable 

Investments in mutual funds 

Liabilities measured at fair value through profit a.nd loss 
Derivative instruments (Liability) 

There have been no transfers among level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. 

Date of valuation 

31March2023 

31 March 2022 

31 Ma rch 2023 
31 March 2022 

31 March 2023 

31 March 2022 

Quoted prices in active 

markets 
(Level 1) 

Fair value measurement using 
Significant observable 

·inputs 

(Level2 

4,462.46 

1,451.73 

13.23 

(Rs. in million) 

Significant unobservable 

inputs 

Level 3) 

2,23,315.41 

2,08,073.78 

• StatemC?nt of net asset at fair value and statement of total returns at fair value require disclosures recarding fair value of assets (liabilities at comidcred at book values). Since the fair values of assets other than property, plant and equipment 
approximate their book valuC?s, hence only property, plant and equipment and seivice concession has been disclosed above. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the yea r ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise slated) 

Note 30: Related party disclosures 

I. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 • Related Party Oisdosures 

(a) Entity with significant influence over the Trust 
Esoteric II Pte. Ltd • Sponsor 

Sterlite Power Trnnsmission Limited (SPTL) • Sponsor of lndiGrid 

lndigrid Investment Managers limited {formerly known as Sterlite Investment Managers limited) (IIML) • Investment manager of lndiGrid 

II. List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)1zv) of the lnvlT Regulations 

(a) Parties to lndiGrid 

Esoteric II Pie. lld (EPL) - Inducted Sponsor 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited (SPTL) - Sponsor of lndiGrid 

lndigrid Investment Managers limited (IIML) - Investment manager of lndiGrid 

A)<iS Trustee Services lir:r,itcd (ATSL) • Trustcc of lndiGrid (Axis Bank Ltd is Promoter)• 

(b) Promoters of the parties to lndiGrid specified in (a) above 

KKR Ingrid Co-Invest LP. - Caym;m Island• Promoter of EPL 
Twin Star overseas limited• Promoter of SPTL 

Electron IM Ptc. Ltd. • Promoter of IIML 

(c) Directors of the parties to lndiGrid specified in (a) above 

Directors of SPTL: 

Pravin Ag.irwa! 

PratikAgarwal 

A. R. Narayanaswamy 
Zhao Haixia (till 31 March 2022) 

Anoop Seth 

Manish Agarwal {from 17 December 202 1) 

Arun lalchand Todarwal (till 24 July 2021) 

Kamaljeet Kaur (from 29 June 2022) 

Directors of IIML: 

Harsh Shah (CEO & Whole-time director) (till 30 June 2022 and re-joined from 30 August 2022) 

Jyoti Kumar Agarwal {till 30 September 2022) 

TarunKataria 

Rahul Asthana (till 25 December 2022) 

AshokSethi 

Hardik Shah (from 30 November 2021) 

Jayashree Vaidhyanthan (from 30 November 2021) 

Ami Momaya (from 27 January 2022) 

Pratik /\garwal (till 14 January 2022) 

Sanjay Omprakash Nayar (till 27 January 2022) 

Key Managerial Personnel of IIML: 

Harsh.Shah (CEO & Whole-time director) (tlll 30 June 2022 and re-joined from 30 August 2022) 
Navin Sharma· (CFO) (from 19 April 2023) 

Urmil Shah (Company Secretary) (from 1 /\ugust 2022) 

Jyot i Kumar Agarwal (CFO) (till 30 June 2022) and (CEO & Whole-time director) (from 01 July 2022 till 30 September 2022) 

Divya Bedi Verma (CFO) (from 1 July 2022 till 1S February 2023). 

Swapnil Patil {Company Secretary) (till 31 July 2022) 

Directors of ATSL: 
Rajcsh Kumar Dahiya 

G;mesh Sankaran 

Deepa Rath (from 01 May 2021) 

Sanjay Sinha (till 30 April 2021) 

Directors of Esoteric II Pte. Ltd.: 

Tang Jin Rone 

Madhura Narawane (from 26 January 2022) 

Velasco A2onos Cecilio Francisco {till 26 January 2022) 

Relative of directors mentioned above: 

Sonakshi Agarwal 

Jyoti Agarwal 

Sujata Ast hana (ti ll 2S December 2022) 

Ma la Todarwaf (till 24 July 2021) 
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{All amounts in Rs. million unless oth<?rwisc stated) 

(B) Thi? transactions with related parties during th e year are as follows:-

Particulars 

1. Deposits Given 

Ster lite Power Transmission Limit!:!d 

2. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of PKTCL on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterl ite Power Transmission Limited 

3. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of lndigrid 1 limitcd on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

4. Consideration for equity shares of lndlgr!d 2 limited on account of events mentioned In SPA 

Stcrlitc Power Transm ission limited 

5. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of ENICL on account of events m!!ntioned in SPA 

Stedite Power Transmission Limited 

6. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of GPTL on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

7. Purchase of equity shares of NER 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

8. Rights Issue of unit capita! 

Esoteric It Pte. Ltd 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

9. Distribution to unit holders 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

lndigrid Investment Managers Limited (formerly Sterlite Investment Managers Limited) 

Esoteric II Ptc. Ltd 

Pravin Agarwal 

Harsh Shah 

Swapnil Patil 

Sonakshi Agarwal 

Jyoti Agarwal 

Sujati'.I Asthana 

Arun Todarwal 

'A. R. Narayanaswamy 

Mala Todarwal 

10. Trustee fee' 
Axis Trustee Services Limited (ATSL) 

11. Project mi'.lnagcment fees 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited 

12. Investment Management Fees 

lndigrid lnvestm·cnt Managers Limited 

13. Con sideration for equity shares of NER on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterlitc Power Transmission Limited 

14. Purchase of Project stores 

Sterlite Power Transmission Lim ited 

15. Advance given for stores 

Sterl ite Power Transmission limited 

16. Reimbursement of Expenses 

Ster!ite Power Transmission Limited 

17. Transfer of Employee rclatred liability 

lndigrid Investment Managers Limited 

18. Amount r!!covernd 

Ster lite Power Transmission Limited 

19. Purchase of equity shares of t<gTL 

Stcrlitc Power Transmission Limited 

Relation 

Subsidiary 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Prnject M anager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor/Entity with significant influence over the Trust 

Sponsor of lndiGrid 

Sponsor of lndiGrid 

Investment manager of tndiGrid 

Sponsor/Entity with significant 

Pi rector Of Sponsor (SPTL) and 

Investment Manager 

Whole time director of Investment Manager 

Company Secretary of Investment Manager 

Relative of director 

Relative of director 

Relative of director 

Director of Sponsor (SPTL) 

Director of Sponsor (SPTL) 

Relative of director 

Trustee 

Project manaccr of lndiGrid 

Investment m,macer of lndiGrid 

Entity with significant influence 

Project manager of lnd iGrid 

·Project manager of lndiGrid 

Project manager of lnd iGrid 

Investment manager ~f lndiGrid 

Project manager of lndiGrid 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entily with significant influence 

31 March 2023 

77.31 

3.84 

7.25 

2,171.24 

0.38 
0.02 

0.24 

0.08 

1.60 

0.03 

0.25 

0.02 

2.63 

1.42 

450.30 

255.87 

5.53 

8.76 

S.67 

1.26 

7.16 

135.13 

(Rs.in millions) 

31 March 2022 

36.00 

SO.OD 

(0.58) 

18.53 

(4.46) 

(0.57) 

5,179.33 

3,285.28 

44.72 

14.09 

6.55 
2,100.73 

1.05 

0.18 
0.06 

0.24 

0.30 
l.SS 

0.05 

0.25 

0.05 

3.32 

434.12 

10.SB 



INOIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Consolidated Fin.lncial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

20. Purchase of loan of Khargonc Transmission limited 

Ster lite Power Transmission Limited 

Particulars 

21. Deposit made to IT department on behalf of PKTCL & NRSS 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

22. Insurance claim recovery for TATA Projects• NER 
Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

23. Deposits against revenue loss (NRSS} 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

24. Directors sitting fees 

Prabhakar singh 

Rahul Asthana 

Saumil Shah 

Prasad Paranjape 

(C) The outstanding balances of related oarties are as follows:• 

Particulars 

1. Project Manager fees payable 

Sterlite Power Transmiss ion Limited 

2. Investment Manager fees payable 
lndigrid Investment Managers Limited (IIML) 

3. Payable towards project acquired 

Sterlite Povier Transmission Limited 

4. Management fees payable 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited 

5. Deposits given 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited 

Relation 

Sponsor and Project Ma nager/ 
Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Pro ject manager of JndiGrid 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Independent Director 

Independent Director 

Independent Director 
Independent Director 

31 March 2023 

253.28 

19.19 

3.92 

34.63 

4.84 

0.63 

0.97 

31 Marth 2023 

1.70 

99.34 

1,291.19 

0.)6 

36.00 

•rhe Group has entered into banking transaclions in the nature of loans taken, theed deposits made and interest thereof in the normal course of business with Axis Bank Limited in professional capacity. 

Details in respect of related party transactions Involving acquisition of lnvlT assets as required by Para 4.4(b)(lv) of Section A of Annexure A to SEBI Clrtular dated 20 October 2016 are as follows: 

For the year ended 31 March 2023: 

(A) Summary of the valuation reports (issued by the irldependent valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations): 

Rs. In million 

Particulars K,Tl 

Enterprise value 14,97S.OO 

Method of valuation Discounted cash flow 

Discounting rate (WACC) 8.30% 

(C) M:teri.11 conditions or obllgations in relation i.o i.he ttansaclions: 

Atqulsitlon of Khargone Transmission Ltd (KgTL): 

31 March 2022 

4.80 

0.23 

0.66 

(Rs in Million) 

31 March 2022 

1.22 

96.75 

1,108.97 

0.16 

36.00 

The Group acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Khargone Transmission Limited ("Kg TL") with effect from 02 March 2023 from Slerlite Power Transmission Umit€d (SPTLU (referred as "the seller") pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated 

21 January 2023 ("SPA"). The Group has finalised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake in KgTL and has entered into a binding agreement with the Seller to acquire remaining 51% paid up equity capital in Kg Tl from the Seller. The 

Group has beneficial interest based on the rights available to it under the SPA. 

Based on the contractual terms or the agreement, the Group has following rights: 

•Right to nominate all directors on the board of directors of the Kg TL; 

•R ight to direct the selling shareholders to vote according to its instructions in the AGM/EGM or any other meeting of shareholders of Kg Tl; 

•Non•disposal undertaking from the selling shareholders for the remaining 51% equity stake in Kg Tl; 

Considering the requirements under Ind AS 110, the Group ha s assessed whether it controls KgTL on the ba~i~ the above rights under the agreement and the fact that the Group has acquired 49% and have paid for the balance 51% consideration 

(subject to certain agreed hold back amount). Based on the assessment, management has concluded that the Group controls Kg TL in splte of the fact that it has acquired only 49% of the paid up capital of KgTL. Further, based on the legal opinion 

KgTL is considered as Special Pu rpose Vehicle as per requirements of Securities Exchange Board of India's Invite Regulations. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Notes to Consolidated Financ.lal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 31: Capital and other Commitments 

(a) The Group has entered into a framework agreement with GR lnfraprojccts Limited ('GRll') to acquire 100% stake in Raji::arh Transmission limited. 

(b) The Group has entered into transmission services ai::recmcnt (TSA) with long term transmission customers pursuant to which the Group has to transmit power of contracted capacity and ensu re minimum availabi lity of transmission line over 

the period of the TSA. The TS/\ conta ins provision for disincentives and penalties in case of certain defaults . 

(c) The Group has taken o ffice building on lease which has lease term of 5-9 years with lock-in-period of 3 years 

(d) The Group has capital commitment (net of advances) of Rs. 1,340.03 million (31 March 2022 : Rs. 1,622.86 million) pertaining to ongoing capital work in progress. 

(e) The Group has entered into Power Purchase Agreemen t ('PPA') with Solar Energy Corporation of India Limited ('SECI'), where !ndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited and lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private Limited is required to sefl power at a pre-fixed 

tariU of Rs. 4.43/kWh for a period of 25 years from the Commercial operation date to SECI. 

(f) The Group has entered into an Implementa t ion and Support Agreement with Andhra Pradesh Solar Power Corporation Private limited (APSPCL}. l\nnuat O&M charees arc payable for the period of 25 years from the commcrct.i l opcralion date 

to APSPCl 

(g) The letter of intent for development of Kallam Transmission Li mited (KTl) is awarded to conso rtium of 1Gl1 and 1Gl2 ("lndiGrid Consortium") by the REC Power Development and Consultancy limited (formerly known as REC Power Distribution 

Company Limited) on 30 November 2021 for a 3S•year period from the scheduled commercial operation date, on a Bu ild, Own, Operate and Maintain model. lndiGrid Consortium acquired the project on 28 December 2021 pursuant to Share 

Purchase Agreement ("SPA"). The project is currently under development with scheduled commissioning on September 2023. 

Note 32: Derivative instruments 

Bhopal Ohulc Transmission Company limited (BOTCll has entered into th!? following derivative instruments: 

(a) The following are the outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts entered i~to by the Company, for hedge purpose. 

Foreign Currency Amount Buy/Sell 

Year ended Currency Type (In million) Rs. In million) 

Hedge of foreign currency loan from financial institution 

31 March 2023 USS 
31 March 2022 USS 27.69 2,086.50 Buy 

(b) Cross currency interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at year end to hedge against exposure to variable interest out flow on loans/foreign currency fluctuations: 

Particulars 

Currency type 

No. of contracts 

Amount {USO 'million) 

Period of Contract 

Floating rate 

fixed rate 

The contract has been closed in the year ended 31 March 2023. 

Note 33: Contingent liablHty 

Particulars 

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt 

• Enti-y tax demand (refer note A) 

- VAT/CST Demand {refer note B) 

- Other Demands (refer note C) 

Total 

31-Mar-23 

USS 

1.39 

31 March 2021 to 30 August 

2022 

USO 6 Month libor + 2.10% 

to 3.80% 

7.02% on INR principal 

No. of contracts 

(Quantity) 

2 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

432.59 432.S9 

23.69 23.69 

32S.93 406.18 

782.21 862.46 

A. Entry tax cases includes disputes pertaining to demand of entry tax on movement of capital goods in the state of Madhya Pradesh. Out of the tota l demand Rs. 138.75 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 138.75 million) pertains to Jabalpur 

Transmission Company limited ('JTCL'), Rs. 165.80 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 165.80 million) pertains to Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company . limited {'BDTCL') and Rs. 13.30 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 13.30 million) pertains to RAPP 

Transmission Company limited ('RTCl ') which is pending with High Court, Jabalpur. 

Entry tax cases includes disputes pertaining to demand of entry tax on movement of capital goods in the state of Madhya Pradesh. The tota l demand Rs. 1.33 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 1.33 million) pertains to Bhopal Dhule Transmission 

Company limited ('BDTCL') which is pending with Commissioner (Appeals). 

Entry t ax cases includes disputes pertainine to demand of entry tax on movement of capital goods in the state of Chhattisearh. The total demand Rs. 113.41 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 113.41 million) pertains to Jabalpur Transmission Company 

limited {'JTCl') out of which Rs. 51.55 million (31 March 2022: Rs. S1.55 million) is pending with the Chhattisgarh High Court, Rs. 40.50 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 40.50 million) is pending with Chairman 'Chhattisgarh Commercial tax Tribunal, 

Raipur (C.G. ) and Rs. 21.36 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 21.36 mi llion) the notice for assessment has been received in the month o f October 2020 for which the Group has applied for a certified copy of the Assessment Order on 29 October 2020 

and is st ill awaiting a copy of the same. 

8. Sales tax demand of Rs. 17.99 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 17.99 milllon) for lndigrid limited ( IGl) pertains to demand under Delhi VAT Act, 2004 for non-submission of C Forms, Rs. 24.66 million pertains to FY 2014-15 has been settled during the 

previous year; Rs. 17.99 million pertains to demand under Delhi VAT Act, 2004 for non-submission of C Forms for FY 2015-16. The Group has filed an objection against the order with Assistant Commissioner of Delhi VAT Authorities. 

VAT demand notice of Rs. S.70 million (31 March 2023: _Rs. 5.70 million) for Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company limited (PKTCL) pertains to Jharkhand VAT Act, 2005. The Group has received the notice for assessment in the month o_f 

January 2020 and various submissions along with the requisite details and documents were made to the officer. The Group further applied for a certified copy of the Assessment Order on 01 October 2020 and is still awaiting a copy of the same. 

C. Ourine the financial year 2019 -20, land owners have filed a ca~e with the District Court, Jhajjar, Haryana towards compensation and interest thereon for the value of land over which the transmission line is passing. The Group is of the view that 

required amount of compensation to these landowners have already been paid and no further compensation is payable. further, these litigations arc barred by limitations. Based on the legal advice, the Group docs not anticipate any liability 

against the same and ha s disclosed a contingent liability of Rs . Nil {31 March 2022: Rs. 20.12 million). It also includes an amount of Rs. 111.27 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 173.39 million) for claims from farmers for additional Right of Way (RoW) 

compensation made against one of the subsidiaries. Further it includes an amount ~f Rs . 212.67 million (31 March 2022: 212.67 mill ion) for claims from one of the erstwhile EPC contract vendor against two of the subsidiaries. 

The Group has not provided for disputed liabili liC?s disclosed above arising from entry tax demands which are pending with different authorities mentioned above for it s decision. The Group is contesting the demands and the Group management, 

including it s legal advisors, believe that its posi tion will likely be uphe ld in the appellate process. No liability h.is been accrued in the co nsolidated financial statements for the demands raised. The Group rnarwgcment believes that the ultimate 

outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position. 

Others 

The total contingent liabili ty {except ROW and GST cl.iim against ISPl 1 and ISPl 2) 1s recoverable as per share purchase agreement h orn Selling Shareholders. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 34: Segment reporting 

The Groups·s activities comprise o f owning and investing in transmission SPVs and solar SPVs to generate cash flows for distribution to unit holders. Ba sed on the guiding principles given in Ind I\S - 108 NOperating Segments", this activity falls 

within a single operating segment and accordingly the disclosures of Ind AS -108 have not separately been given. 

Under Point of Connection (PoC) mechanism, Power Grid Corporation of India Limited ('PGCIL') is designated as Central Transmission Utility with the responsibility for billing and collecting of usage charges from Inter-State Transmission Services 

(JSTS) users . Hence the entire amount of trade receivables pertaining to transmission is receiv.:ib le from PGCIL and solar charges is receiva b le from SECI. 

Note 35: Details of Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 

P.:irticulars 

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to .:iny supplier as .:it the end of each accounting year . 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 

Interest due on above 

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to 

t he supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year. 

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 

interest spec ified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. 

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 

{v) The amount of further int erest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise for 

the purpose of disa!lowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Sma ll and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

8.61 9.05 

Interest payable as per section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is Nil (31 Mar~h 2022: Nil). Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 

basis of intimations received from the " suppliers"/ information available w ith the Group regardinc their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise!:. Act, 2006. 

Note 36: leases 

lndigrid limited (IGL) {a subsidiary of the GroUp) has lease contract for 2 office buildinc used in its operations which have lease term of 5-9 years with lock-in-period of 3 years. Further IGL's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's 

title to t~e leased assets. The lease liability has been measured by using the incremental borrowing rate. 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited (a subsidiary of the Group) has t aken leasehold laild which has lease term of 25 years fro~ th e commercial operation date (COD) in relation to which the company is required to pay a fixed annual operating and 

maintenance expenses for using common infrastructu re facilities. 

lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private Limited (a subsidiarv of the Group) has t aken leasehold land which has lease term o f 25 years from the commercial operation date (COO) in relation to which the company is required to pay a fixed annual operating 

and maintenance expenses for using common infrastructure facil ities. 

Maturity analysis of lease llabllities • Contractual undiscounted cash flows: 

Particulars 

31 March 2023 

Lease liability 

Tota l 

31 March 2022 

lease liability 

Total 

Note 37: Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Le5s than 3 months 

3.74 
3.74 

3.57 

3.57 

3 months to 

12 months 

21.27 

21.27 

11.47 

11.47 

1 toSyears More than S years 

67.93 71.89 

67.93 71.89 

28.57 9.20 

28.57 9.20 

(Rs. in million 

Total 

164.83 

164.83 

52.81 

52.81 

The Group's principal financial liabilit ies comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these finan:ial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include 

trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. 

The Group may be exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Investment Manager oversees the management of these risks. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the 

appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It iS, the Group's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which arc 

summarised below. 

The Risk Management policies of the Group are established to identify and analyse th!? risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems arc 

reviewed regu larly to reflect ch;:inges in market conditions and the Groups's activities. 

Man.:igement has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. 

(This space is intentionally left blank 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(Al Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price r isk such as equity 

price r isk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, bank deposits and investments 

Price Risk 
The Group invests its surplus funds in mutual funds which are linked to debt market s. The Group is exposed to price risk for investments in mutual funds that are classified as fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising from 
investments in mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification and investment in the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits approved by the Board of Directors. Reports on investment portfolio arc .submitted to the Group's 

senior management on a regular basis 

Particu lars % change in market value t-~-3_1 _M_a,_,h_2_0_23 __ ,-~_3_1_M_a_,c_h _20_2_2 --I 
Effect on loss before tax Effect on loss before t ax 

Mutual fund s 0.50% 22.31 7.2G 

Profit for the vea r would increase/ decrease as a result of ea ins / losses on mutual funds classified as at fair value throueh orofit or loss. 

Interest rate r isk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value o, the future ca sh flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chances in market interest rates . The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate primarily relates to the 

Group's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. To manage this, the Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specifi ed intervals, the difference between fi)(ed and va riable rate interest amounts 

calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. As at 31 March 2023, there are no borrowin~s of the Group at floating interest rates. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Group's foreign currency borrowings and payables in foreign currency (ii any). As at 31 March 2023, The Group did not have any exposure towards any assets / liabilities in foreign currency. 

(B)Credltrlsk 
Cred it risk is the risk that a count erparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leadinc to a financial loss. 

The Group through its subsidiaries is engaged in transmission business under BOOM (Bulld, Own, Operate and Maintain) model and currently derive Its revenue primarily from BOOM contracts with long term transmission customers {'LTTC'). The 

Group also holds transmission infrast ructure pertaining to Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited which operates on a Design, build, finance, operate and transfer ("DBFOT") basis. Oeing transmission licensee, the Group receives payments as per the 

pooling arrangements specified under the Central Electricity Regu latory Commission (Sharing of Inter State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2010 ('Pooline Regulat ions'). In the PoC method, the transmission charges to be recovered 
from the entire system are allocated between users based on their location in the grid. Under the PoC mechanism, all the charges collected by the Central Transmission Utility ('CTU') from LTTC's are disbursed pro-rata to all Transmission Service 

Providers ('TSPs') from the pool in proportion of the respective billed amount. Due to this, the TSP.s are Shielded against any potent ial default by a particular customer. If a particular customer delays or defaults, the delay or shortfall is prorated 

amongst all th(! TSPs. Bas(!d on past history of payments, payments due have always been paid and there have been no write•off's for due amounts. Due to the payment mechanism (!)(plained above as well as due to no history of any write-off's 

of payments which were due, the Group has not considered any e)(pected credit loss on the financial assets in the nature of trade rece ivables. During the various periods presented, there has been no chance in t he credit risk of trade receivables. 

However, this assessment may need a review if there is any change in the Pooling Regulations 

Similar mcchnism is being followed in solar ent iti'es acquired by t he group where there is only single customer i.e. Sola r En ergy Corporation of India (SECI) which is' a high rated public sector undertaking with credit rating of M+ as per ICRA 

Limited. The Group has obtain~d a Letter of Credit from SECI Limited to secure its credit risk associated with receivables. 

Credit risk from balances deposited/invested with banks and financial institutions as well as investments made in mutual fun ds, is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance wit h the Group's policy. Investments of surplus funds 

are made only with approved counterparties and within limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty limits arc reviewed by the top management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the 

Board of Directors. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through a couiiterparty's potential failure to make payments. Based on this policy, t he Group does not foresee any risk on account 
of credit losses, either in the bank deposits which arc made with AAA rated banks and also in regard to mutual funds which is primarily debt oriented funds. No loss allowances have been provided for any trade receivables, or other receivables 

from financing activit ies like cash and bank deposits, mutual funds and other similar deposits. Also, there have been no modifications in contractual cash flows on financial assets. 

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk fo r t he components of the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023 is the carrying amoun ts of trade and other receivables, cash and ca.sh equivalents and other assets as disclosed in Note 6, 7, 8, 9 and 10 

respectively. However, the credit risk is low due to reasons mentioned above. 

(C) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that t he Group may encounter difficulty in meetine its present and future obligations associated with financial liabilities that are required to be settled by deliverine cash or another financial asset. Th e Group's objective is 

to, at all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligations: The Group requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs mainly in t ransmission projects. The 

Group closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It aims to minimise these risks by generatin~ sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the available cash and cash 

equivalent s and liquid investments will provide liquidity. 

The l iquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The other fin.incial liabilities are with short term durations. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Groups's financial liabilities based 

on contractual undiscountcd payments: 

31 March 2023 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Tota l 

31 March 2022 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 

Other financial liabilities 

Derivatives 

Total 

Particulars Payable on demand 

Particulars Payable on demand 

Less than 3 months 

749 .3S 

3,200.40 

3,949.75 

Less than 3 months 

20,852.58 

486.29 
3,767.79 

13.23 

2S,119.89 

3 months to 

12 months 

9,256.73 

1,318.98 

10,575.71 

3 months to 
12 months 

2.925.95 

1,SS9.21 

4,485.16 

1to5years 

1,11,751.00 

l,11,751.00 

1 toS years 

41,295.83 

41,295.83 

More than S years 

23,923.58 

23,923.S8 

More than 5 years 

68,274.10 

68,274.10 

Total 

1,44,931.31 

749.35 

4,519.38 

1,50,200.04 

Total 

1,33,348.46 
486.29 

S,327.00 
13.23 

1,39,174.98 
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Nate 38: Capital management 
Far the purpose of the Graups's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable ta the unit holders of the Group. The primary objective or the Graup"s capital manageme nt is to ensure that it maintains a 

strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise unit holder value. 

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adj ustment s to it in light of changes in econo mic conditions and the> requirements of the financial covenants. Ta ma intain or adjust th e> capita! structure, the Group may adJust the distribution to 
unithold crs (subject to the provisions of lnvlT regul.itions which require distribution of at least 90% of the net distributable cash flows of the Trust to unit holders). return capital to unitho!dcrs or issu e new units. The Group monitors capita l using 
a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group's policy is to keep the ge.iring ratio optimum. The Group includ es withi n net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings and other payables less cash and cash 
equivalents, other bank balances and short term investments. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
less: Cash and cash equivalents 
Net debt (Al 

Unit capita l 
Other eq ui ty 
Total capital {B) 

Capital and net debt ((C) =(A)+ (8)) 

Gearing ratio (A)/(C) 

Financial Covenants 

31 March 2023 

1,44,931.31 
{3,166.23) 

1,41,76S.08 

65,903. 15 
(16,326.20) 

49,576.9S 

1,91,342.03 

74% 

31 March 2022 

1,33,348.46 
(11,873.37) 

1,21,475.09 

65,903.15 
(11,720. 89) 

54,182.26 

1,75,6S7.35 

69% 

ln order to achieve this overall objective, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest•bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 
There have been no breaches in the financia l covenants of any interest•bearinc loans and borrowing in the current year. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 Ma rch 2023 and 31 Ma rch 2022. 

Note 39: Post Employment Benefits Plan 

BDTCL, JTCL, MTL, RTCL, PKTCL, PTCL, NRSS, OGPTL, ENICL, GPTL, NER, ISPLl, ISPL2, KTL, IGL 

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Such plan is unfunded and and employees working under the above said companies are covered in this plan. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees arc based on the employee's service 
Every em ployee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at last drawn salary at the time of lcavtnr:. 

The employee do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing these benefits are met by the croup. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn 
salary) for each completed year of service. 

Changes In the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as fallows: 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 
Transferred from immediate holdi ng company/ subsidiary of immediate holding company 
Current service cost 
- Interest Cost on defined benefit obligation 
-Past service cost 
Benefit paid directly by the employer 
Remeasurements during the period due to: 
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in demographic assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/!oss due to change in financial assumptions 
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation due to experie nce 
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 

Details of defined benefit obligation 

Particulars 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 
Benefitllilblllty 

Net employee benefit expense recar,nlsed In the statement of profit and lass: 

Particulars 

Current service cost 
Inte rest cost on defined benefit obligation 
Past service cost 
Net ac tuarial (gain)/ loss recognised 
Expected return on plan assets 
Contribut ion by employer 
Net benefit expense 

Net emolovee benefit exaen se recognised in the other Camorehensive income: 

Particulars 

Actuarial (gain)/foss on obligation fo r the year 

Net (income)/expense far the year recognised in OCI 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in mlllion) 

31 March 2023 
{Rs. in million) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in million) 

4.54 

0.29 
S.76 
0.31 

(2.01) 

(0.11) 

(1.92) 

6.87 

6.87 

6.87 

5.76 
0.31 

6.07 

(2.02) 

(2.02) 

31 March 2022 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

1.96 

2.57 
0.13 

(0.15) 

(0.04) 

(0.03) 
0.10 
4.54 

4.54 

4.54 

2.57 
0.14 

2.71 

0.03 

0.03 
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Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows: 

Particu lars 

Oefined benefit obligation 

Plan assets 
Surplus/(defidt) 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 
Experience adjustments on plan assets 

The principal assumptions used In determining defined benefit obl!gatlon are shown below: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 

Expected rate of return on plan asset 

Employee turnover 
Salary escalation rate (p.a) 

Actual rate of return on plan assets 
Retirement age (vcars) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2023 
{Rs. In millionl 

6.87 

(6.87) 

7.40% 

10.00% 
7.00% 

58 

The estimated future salary increase, considered in actuaria l valuation, tJkes into account the effect of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

A quantative sensitivity analysis fo r significant assumptions as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as shown below: 

Partlculars 

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 

Obligation after +1% Change in discount rate 
Obligation after -1 % Change in discount rate 

Obligaticin after +1% Change in salary escalation rate 

Obligation after -1% Change in salary escalation rate 

The fo llowing is the expected payment of benefits in the future years: 

Particu lars 

Within the next 2 years 

Between 3 and 5 years 
Between 6 and 10 years 

Total expected payments 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in million} 

31 Ma rch 2023 
(Rs. in million) 

6.87 

{6.40) 

7.38 

7.38 

(6.39) 

1.44 

2.00 
3.29 

6.73 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in milllon) 

4.54 

(4.54) 

6.90% 

10.00% 

7.00% 

31 Maren 2022 
!Rs. in million) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 
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4.54 

(4. 22) 
4.88 

4.88 

(4.22) 

0.92 
1.27 

2.29 

4.48 

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Such plan is funded and employees working under Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited are covered under this plan. The gratuity benefits payable to the employees a re based on the 

employee's service Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at last drawn salary at the time of leaving. 
The employee do not contribute towards this plan and the full cost of providing tnese benefits arc met by the Company. Every employee who has completed fi ve years or more or service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 duys salary (last drawn 

salary) for each completed year of service. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblic:ation arc as follows: 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 

Trnnsfer in/(out ) obligation 

Current service cost 

• Interest Cost 

• Past service cost 

Benefit paid directly by the employer 

Rcmcasuremcnts during tnc period due to: 
Actuarial (ga1n)/loss due to ch.:inge in demographic assumptions 

Actuarial (gain)/loss due to change in financial assumptions 

Actuarial (r,ain)/!oss on oblip,ation due to experience 

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 

• Pertains to liabilities transferred on acquisit ion of Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited by the Group. 

Details of defined benefit obligation 

P.a rticu lars 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 

Fair value of plan assets 

Benefit recoflnltcd as advance r, ratu!ty 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 

(Rs. in million) 

31 Maren 2023 
(Rs. in mil lion ) 

5.02 

(0.22) 

0.47 

0.32 

{0.29) 

(0.15) 

(0.56) 

4.59 

4.59 

(12.72) 

(8.13) 

31 March 2022 

(Rs. in millfon) 

31 Maren 2022 
(Rs. in mi llion} 

6.05 

0.41 

0.41 

(0.41) 

(0.06) 

10.04) 

(1 .34) 

5.02 

5.02 

(11.90) 

(6.88) 
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Notes to Consolidated Flnancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

{All amounts in Rs. million unless othC?iwise stated) 

Net employee benefit expe nse recognised in the statement of profit and loss : 

Particulars 

Current service cost 
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 

Past service cost 
Expected return on plan assets 

Contribution by employer 

Net benefit expense 

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income: 

Particulars 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on oblig.:ition for the year 

Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 

Change in asset ceiling 

Net (income)/excense for the vear recognized in OCI 

Changes in Fair Value of plan assets: 

Particulars 

Opening value of plan assets 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation for the year 

Interest cost/(income) on plan assets 
Actual return on plan assets less intercst/( income) on plan assets 

Closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Amounts for the current and previous year are as follows: 

Particulars 

Defined benefit obligation 

Plan assets 
Surplus/ (deficit) 

The principal assumptlo~s used in determining defined benefit obligation are shown below: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Expected rate of re turn on plan asset 

Employee turnover 

Salary escalation rate (p.a) 

Actual rate of return on plan assets 

Retirement age (years) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in million) 

0.47 
0.32 

0.79 

31 March2023 
(Rs. in million) 

(0.71) 

(0.71) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in million) 

11.90 

0.82 

0.00 

12.72 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. In mllllon) 

4.59 
(12.72) 

8.13 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in milllon) 

7.40% 

10.00% 

7.00% 

58 

The estimated future sa lary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes Into account the effect of inflation, seniority, promotion and other re levant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

A quantatlve sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 Is as shown below: 

Particulars 

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 

Obligation after +1% Change in discount rate 

Obligation after •1% Change in discount rate 

Obligation after +1% Chance in sa lary escalation rate 

Obligation after -1% Change in salary escalation rate 

The following is the expected payment of benefits in th e future years: 

Particulars 

Within the next 2 years 

Between 3 and S years 

Between 6 and 10 years 

Total expected payments 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs, In million) 

4.59 

(4.31) 

4.90 

4.90 

(4.31) 

31 March 2023 
(Rs. in mllllon) 

0.97 

2.12 

1.43 

4.53 

31 March 2022 
{Rs. In mllllon) 

0.41 

0.41 

0.82 

31 March 2022 
(Rs.in million} 

(1.44) 

{1.44) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

11.24 

0.76 

(0.11) 

11.90 

31 M,mh2022 

{Rs. in mllllon} 

5.02 
{11.90) 

6.88 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

6.90% 

10.00% 

7.00% 

58 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. In mllUon) 

5.02 

(4.70) 

5.40 

S.39 

(4.69) 

31 March 2022 
(Rs. in million) 

1.03 

1.99 
1.76 

4.78 

(lt ... :-i 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Marth 2023 

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 40: Long Term Incentive Plan 

long Term Incentive Plan 2021 and 2022 

During the yea r ended 31 March 2023, the Group launched a Long•Tcrm !ncc>ntive Plan 2022 ("Scheme"). This Scheme has been formula ted by the Nominat ion and Remuneration Committee and approved by it at its meeting held on 20 May 2022 

and approved by the Boc1rd c1 t its meeting held on 20 May 2022. The Scheme is established with effect from 01 April 2022 and shall continue to be in force until : (i) its termination by the Board, or (ii) the date on which all of the Unit linked Rights 

av.iil.ible for issuance under the Scheme have been issued or have lapsed, or have been cancelled by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination and Remunerat ion Committee does not intend to re -issue such lapsed or 

cancelled Unit linked Rights, 

The Board, at its meeting held on May 26, 2021, has resolved to issue to Employees under the Scheme 2021, Unit Linked Right s, in one or more tranches, whereby each such Unit Linked Right con fers the right on the Grantee to receive Value in 

tc>rms of this Sc heme 2021. 

Partitulan 

Openinn balance as at the beginning of the year 

Transfer in/(out) obligation 

LTIP granted during th e year 

L TIP cancelled during the year 

Payment towards LTIPs vested 

Balance 

Provision for distribution 

Closing balance as at the end of the year 

31 Marth 2023 

22.36 

1.50 

5.29 

(14.43) 

14.72 

2.80 

17.52 

31 March 2022 

11.29 

15.23 

(0.12) 

(6.93) 

19.47 

2.89 

22.36 

During the year, the Group has granted 0.13 million units of India Grid Trust to eligible employees under the Long-Term Incentive Plan 202 1 and 2022 ("Scheme") as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and by the Board at 

the meetings held on 20 May 2022. 

Vesting of Unit Linked Rights shall be subject to the conditions that the Grantee is: 

a. in continuous employment with the Company; 

b. is not serving any notice of resignation/ termination on the date of such Vesting (except in the case of (a) death; (bl Permanent Incapacity suffered by the Grantee; or {c} Retirement; and 

c. is not subject to any pending disciplinary proceeding. 

The Value of the payout would be determined as per following formula: 

Value of the vested Unit Linked Rights = Number of Unit Linked Rights Vested • 30 days clos_ing volume weighted average# of lndiGrid market price +-(Distribution• earned on the unvested units). 

# Volume weighted average price of per unit is the 30 days closing average of lndiGrid market price (From 02 March 2023 to 31 March 2023). 

Distribution payout is subject to actual declaration accumulated on units and approval for India Grid Trust. 

Note 41: List of subsidiaries which are included in consolidation and lndiGrid's effective holding therein are as under: 

Effective ownership as on Effective ownership as on 

Name of the Entity 

Directly held by the Trust: 

lndigrid Limited {"IGL") 

lndigrid 1 Limited ("IGLl") 

lndigrid 2 Limited ("IGL2") 

P·atran Transmission Company Limited (nPTCL") 

East-North Interconnection Company Limited ("ENICL" ) 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited ("GPTL") 1 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private Li mited ("JKTPL") 

Parbat i Koldam Transmission Company Limited {'PrKTCL')1 

NER II Transmission Limited ("NER"}
1 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP} Private Limited ("ISP!") 

lndiGrid So!ar•II {AP) Private limited ("ISP2") 

Indirectly held by the Tru st (through subsidiaries): 

Bhopal Ohule Transmission Company limited ("BOTCL"J 

Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited ("JTCL") 

Puru lia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited ("PKTCL") 

RAPP Tran smission Company Limited ("RTCL") 

Maheshwaram Transmission limited ("MTL") 

NRSS XXIX Transmission Li mited ("NTL" ) 

Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited ("OGPTL") 

Kallam Transmission Limited ("KTL"f' 

Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private Limited rRSTCPL"f' 

Khargone Transmission Limited ("KgTL"f 

Country of incorporation 31 March 2023 31 Marth 2022 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 49% 

India 100% 

India 74% 

India 49% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 100% 

India 49% 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

49% 

100% 

74% 

49% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

100% 

0% 

0% 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

1. The Group acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Gurgaon Pa lwal Transmission limited ('GPTL') with effect from 28 August 2020 from Sterlite Power Transmission Limited ("SPTL"), (referred as "the Seller") pursuant to Share Purchase 
Agreement dated 28 August 2020 {"SPA"). The Group has finalised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake in GPTL ;md has entered into a binding agreement with the Selling Shareholders to acquire remaining 51% paid up equity 
capital in GPTL from the Selling Shareholders. The Group has beneficial interest based on the rights available to it under the SPA. 

2. The Group acquired 74% of paid up equity capital of Parbatl Koldam Transmission Company limited ('PrKTCL') with effect from 08 January 2021 from Reliance Infrastructure Limited {referred as "the Seller") pursuant to Share Purchase 
Agreement dated 28 .November 2020 ("SPA"). The balance 26% share in PrKTCl is hc!d by PowerGrid Corporation of India Limited ("PGCll"). 

3. The Group acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of NER II Transmission lim ited ("NE R") with effect from 2S March 2021 from Sterlite Power Transmission limited ("SPTL"), (referred as "the Seller") pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement 
dated OS March 2021, as amended on 25 March 2021 ("SPA"). The Group has finalised purchase considerat ion for acquisition of entire stake in NER and has entered into a binding agreement with the Semng Shareholders to acquire remaining 51% 
paid up equily capital in NER from the Selling Shareholders. The Group has beneficial interest based on right s available to it under SPA. 

4. The letter of intent ror development of Kallam Transmission limited (!:Tl) was awarded to consortium of JG ll and IGL2 ("lndiGrid Consortium") by the REC Power Development and Consultancy limited (formerly known as REC Power 
Distribution Company limited) on 30 November 2021 for a 35-year period from the scheduled commercial operation date, on a Build, Own, Operate and Maintain model. lndiGrid Consortium acquired the project on 28 December 2021 pursuant 
to Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA"). The project is currently under development with scheduled commissioning on September 2023. 

5. The Trust acquired 100% equity capital and management control of Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited ('RSTCPL') with effect from 09 November 2022 from Simplex Infrastructure limited, Patel Enginee ring limited and BS 

limited dated pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated 30 July 2022 ("SPA") 

6. The Trust acquired 49% equity capital and management control of Khargone Transmission limited ('KgTl') with effect from 02 March 2023 from Sterlite Power Transmission limited dated pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated 21 
January 2023 ("SPA") . The Group has acquired 49% and have paid for the balance 51% consideration (subject to certain agreed hold back amount).Considering the rights available to the Trust as per SPA, the Trust has concluded that it controls 
KgTL, and have considered KgTL as a wholly owned subsidiary from 02 March 2023. 

Note 42: Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 

Regulatory Assets/ (Liability) with respect to entity Parbati Koldam Transmission Limited: 
In accordance with the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities issued by ICAI, the reconcihation of the Ref:ulatory Assets/ (liabilities) of PrKTCl (a subsidiary of the Group) as on March 31, 2023 is as under: 

Particulars 
Regulatory Asset / (llablllty) 

Opening Balance 
Add; Accrued during the period 
For Current Period/ Year 
- Return on Equity 
Regulatory Asset/ {liability) on account of Deferred Account 

balance 
l ess: Deferred Tax on defferal Uability 

Total 

less: Payable/ (Recoverable) from beneficiaries 

Closing Balance 

Deferred Tax liability 
Opening Balance 
Add: Deferred Ta1< liability during the period/ y<?ar 
Total 
less: Recoverable from beneficiaries 
Closing Balance 

{Rs. in million! 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

(0.90) (6.93) 

0.16 1.21 
(0.74) (S.72) 

0.74 S.72 

649.64 656.S7 
(0.90) (6.93) 

648.74 649.64 
(648.74) (649.64) 

(i) Determination of Transmission service charges {TSC) chargeable by PrKTCL to its consumers is governed by CERC Tariff Regulation, 2019, whereby CERC determines the Transmission service charges wherein PrKTCl earns assured return of 15.5% 

p.a. post taK on CERC approved equity in the business. The rate review on account of grossing up with the actual taK rate or "tru ine up" process during the tariff period is being conducted as per the principle stated in CERC Regulations to adjust 
the tariff rates downgrade or upgrade to ensure recovery of actual tax paid and assured return on equity. 

(ii) During the truing up process, revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/shortfall In .ictual returns over returns entitled) arc detmmined by the regulator and arc permitted to be carried forward as regulatory assets/ regulatory liabilities which would be 
recovered/ refunded through future billing based on future tariff determination by the regulator. At the end of each accounting period, PrKTCL also determines regulatory assets/regulatory liabilities in respect of each accounting period on self 

true up basis. 

Market Risk 
PrKTCL is in the business of developing the Transmission Line for supplying the eletricity to beneficiary, therefore no demand risk anticipated because the License issued .by the CERC for 25 years. The Project is constructed under Cost Plus 

Contract. 

Regulatory Risk 
{i) PrKTCl is Operat ing under Regulatory Environment governed by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {CERC). Tariff is subject to Rate Regulated Activities. 

(ii) PrKTCl determine revenue gaps (i.e. surplus/ shortfall in actual returns over returns entitled) in respect of their regulated operations as given in the Guidance Note on Rate Regulated Activities and based on the principles laid down under the 
relevant tariff regulations/ tariff orders notified by the CERC and the actual or expected actions of the regulators under the applicable regulatory framework. Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue gaps are made in the respective 
years for the amounts which are reasonably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists in such determination. These adjustments/ accrua ls representing reve nue gaps arc carried forward as regulatory defferal account debit / credit 
balances which would be recovered/ refunded through future billing based on future tariff determination by the regulators in accordance with the respective electricity regulations. 
(iii) The key risks and mitigating actfons are also placed before the Audit Committee of PrKTCl. PrKTCl's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by PrKTCl, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to 
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and PrKTCL's activities. 
(iv) PrKTCL's risk for Regulatory Assets are monitored by the Regulatory Team under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Team identifies, evaluates and protect risks in close cooperation with PrKTCL's operating units. The board 
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas. 
{v) Regulatory Assets recognized in the Books of Accounts of PrKTCL arc subject to True up by CERC as per Regulation. 

(This space is intentionally left blank) 
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Notes to Consolidated Finandal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otheiwise stated) 

Net tax recoverable from beneficiaries: 

1. In accordance wi th the CERC tariff regulation for determination of tariff, the income-tax paid is considered for tariff determination (truing up). Accordingly, PrKTCl has considered deferred tax liability as on 31 March 2023 as Net tax recoverable 

from beneficiaries. 

2. As per the Standard, deferred taK on timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period should not be recognised. For this purpose, the reversal during the tax holiday period is adjusted against the deferred taK liability created t ill FY 

2022-2023. Therefore, the reversal of timing difference during the tax holiday period, would be considered to be out of the timing difference as at 31 March 2023 and reve rsed during the period ended 31 March 2023. 

Note 43: Code on Social Security . 

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') rc!.iting to employee benefits during employment and post •employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been pubhshed in the Garcttc of India. However, the date 

on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yel been issued. The Group will assess the impacl of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the 

Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group believes the impact of the chanr,e w ill not be significant. 

Note 44: Subsequent event 

On 12 May 2023, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs. 3.45 per unit for the period 01 January 2023 to 31 March 2023 to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration. 

Note 45: Other Information 

(i) The Group docs not have any Bcnami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami property under the Bcnami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) The Group does not have any transactions with Comp<1nies struck off. 

(iii) The Group have not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

(iv) The Group does not have any such transaction which ls not recorded in the books of accounts t hat has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in t he tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey 

or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(vi The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by .:iny bank or financial institution or other len~er. 

As per our report of even date 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Unit holders of India Grid Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Gr·ou nd Floor 
Pa nchshil Tec h Park, Yerwada 
( Nea r Don Bosco School l 
Pune - 411 006, Ind ia 

Tel · +9 1 20 6603 6000 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of India Grid Trust ("the Inv IT"), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 , 2023 , the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the 
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Unit Holders ' Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at March 
31 , 2023 , the Statement of Total Returns at fair value, the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows 
('NDCFs') of the Inv IT for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory notes (hereafter referred to as " the standalone financial statements" ). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended including any 
guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (the "Inv IT Regulations") in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the 
extent not inconsistent with Inv IT regulations, of the state of affairs of the Inv IT as at March 31, 2023, 
its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash movements and its movement of the unit 
holders' funds for the year ended March 3 1, 2023, its net assets at fair value as at March 3 1, 2023, its 
total returns at fair value and the net distributable cash flows of the Inv IT for the year ended March 31 , 
2023. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements' section of our repo11. We are independent of the Inv IT in accordance with the 
'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Inv IT 
Regulations and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter 
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
repo1t. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of 
the standalone financial statements section of our repo1t, including in relation to these matters. ~ ffo_~ary-~ 

S R BC & CO llP. a l 1m1ted L1ab1hty Part nership wrth LL P Ident ity No. AAB·43 I 8 
Reqd . Off ice : 22, Camac Street. Block '8', 3rd Floor, Kolkata 700 016 

i;; ~Re>G-- -~, 
\vt< ~ 
~~ .~/, 

~ 



SR BC & CO LLP 
Chartered Acco untants 

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit 
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our 
audit opinion on the accompanying standalone financial statements. 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and loans given to subsidiaries 
(as described in notes 6, 7,8 and 26 of the standalone.financial statements) 

Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
following: 

The InvlT has significant investments in 
subsidiaries and has granted loans to its 
subsidiaries both aggregating to Rs. 
2,04,908.08 million as at March 31, 2023. • 
The value of investments and loans 111 

aggregate comprise 94.66% of total assets 
in the Balance Sheet. 

The subsidiaries are 111 the business of 
own111g and maintaining transm1ss1on 
assets/ generation of solar power and have 
entered into Transmission Services 
Agreement ("TSA") with Long Term • 
Transmission Customers ("LTTC") and 
Power Purchase Agreement ("PPA") with 
Solar Energy Corporation of India 
("SEC!"). 

• 
At each repot1ing period end, management 
assesses the existence of impairment 
indicators of investments in subsidiaries and 
loans given to subsidiaries. In case of • 
existence of impairment indicators, the 
investment and loan balances are subjected 
to impairment test, where the fair value of 
the subsidiary is compared with the value of • 
investments and loans given to such 
subsidiaries. 

The processes and methodologies for 
assessing and determining the fair value of 
the subsidiary 1s based on complex 
assumptions, that by their nature imply the 

• 

use of the management's judgment, 111 • 

pa11icular with reference to identification of 
forecast of future cash flows relating to the 
period covered by the respective 
subsidiary's transmission license/ solar 
power purchase agreement, debt equity 
ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, residual 
value, etc. 

We obtained an understanding of the Inv!T' s 
process on assessment of impairment of 
investments in subsidiaries and loans to 
subsidiaries and the assumptions used by the 
management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. We have tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls. 

We obtained and read the valuation rep011 of the 
lnvlT's independent valuation expe1t, and 
assessed the expert's competence, capability and 
objectivity. 

We evaluated the independent valuation expert's 
methodology, assumptions and estimates used in 
the calculations. 

We tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues 
considered in the respective valuation models are 
in agreement with TSAs / PP As/ tariff orders. 

We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
and validity of the data used in the calculations. 

In performing the above procedures, we involved 
valuation specialists to perform an independent 
review of methodology and key assumptions used 
in the valuation. 

We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the notes to the standalone financial statements. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Considering the judgment invol ved 111 

determination of fair values due to inherent 
unce1tainty and complexity of the 
assumptions used in determination of fair 
values, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

Classification of unit holders' funds as equity 

(as described in Note 26 of the standalone.financial statemenL\) 

The lnvlT is required to distribute to Our audit procedures included, among others: 
Unitholders not less than ninety percent of 
its net distributable cash flows for each • 
financial year. Accordingly, a pottion of the 
unitholders ' funds contains a contractual 
obligation of the Trust to pay to its 
Unitholders cash distributions. The 
Unitholders' funds could therefore have 
been classified as compound financial 
instrument which contains both equity and • 
liability components in accordance with Ind 
AS 32 - Financial Instruments: 
Presentation. However, in accordance with 
SEBI Circulars No. CIR/IMD/DF/ 114/2016 
dated October 20, 2016 and No. 
CIR/IMD/DF/127/2016 dated November 
29, 2016 ("SEBI C irculars") issued under 
the lnvlT Regulations, the unitholders' 
funds have been classified as equity in order 
to comply with the mandatory requirements 
of Section H of Annexure A to the SEB I 
Circular dated October 20, 2016 dealing 
with the m1111mum disclosures for key 
financial statements. 

Considering the judgment required for 
classification of unit holders' funds as 
equity and liability, this is considered as a 
key audit matter. 

We obtained and read the requirements for 
classification of financial liability and equity 
under Ind AS 32 and evaluated the provisions of 
SEBI C irculars for c lass ification/presentation of 
unit holders funds in the financial statements of an 
Infrastructure Investment Trust. 

We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the standalone financia l statements for compliance 
with the relevant requirements of lnvlT 
regulations. 

Computation and disclosures relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement 
of Total Returns at Fair Value as per InvIT regulations 

(as described in Note 26 of the standalone financial statements) 
The lnvlT is required to disclose Statement Our audit procedures included, among others, the 
of Net Assets at Fa ir Value and Statement following: 
of Total Returns at Fair Value pursuant to 
SEBI circulars issued under the lnvIT • 
regulations which requires fair va luation of 
the assets. Such fair valuation has been 

We read the requirements of Inv IT regulations for 
disclosures re lating to Statement of Net Assets at 

of,~ ~a~1 
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SR BC & CO LLP 
Char tered A ccou ntant s 

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

carried out by the independent valuer 
appointed by the lnvIT. 

For the purpose of the above, fair value is • 
determined by forecasting and discounting 
future cash flows . 

The processes and methodologies for 
assessing and determining the fair value is 
based on complex assumptions, that by their 
nature imply the use of the management's 
judgment, in pa1ticular with reference to • 
identification of forecast of future cash 
flows relating to the period covered by the 
respective subsidiary' s transm1ss1on 
license/ solar power purchase agreement, 
debt equity ratio, cost of debt, cost of equity, 
residual value, etc. 

Considering the judgment involved m 
determination of fair values due to inherent • 
unce1tainty and complexity of the 
assumptions used in determination of fair 
values, this is considered as a key audit 
matter. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Other Information 

Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair 
Value. 

We discussed with the management and obtained 
an understating of the InvlT's policy on the 
assessment of fair value and the assumptions used 
by the management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. We have tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls. 

We obtained understating of the lnvIT's process 
for preparation statement of Net Assets at Fair 
Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair 
Value as per Inv IT regulations and the assumption 
used by the management, including design and 
implementation of controls, validation of 
management review controls. We have tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls. 

We obtained and read the valuation repo1t of the 
lnvIT's independent valuation expett, and 
assessed the expett's competence, capability and 
objectivity. 

We evaluated independent valuation expe1t's 
methodology, assumptions and estimates used in 
the calculations. 

We tested on sample basis that the tariff revenues 
considered in the respective valuation models are 
in agreement with TSAs / PP As/ tariff orders. 

We tested completeness, arithmetical accuracy 
and validity of the data used in the calculations. 

In performing the above procedures, we used 
valuation specialists to perform an independent 
review of methodology and key assumptions used 
in the valuation. 

We read and assessed the disclosures included in 
the notes to the standalone financial statements. 

The Management of lndigrid Investment Managers Limited (the "Investment Manager") is responsible 
for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Ann 
repmt but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

e,c.-
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SR BC & CO LLP 
Chart ered A ccoun t ant s 

Annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information identifi ed above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such 
other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Management of the Investment Manager ('the Management') is responsible for the preparation of 
these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position as at March 
31, 2023, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and and the 
movement of the unit holders ' funds for the year ended March 31, 2023, the net assets at fair value as 
at March 31, 2023, the total returns at fair value of the Inv IT and the net distributable cash flows of the 
lnv!T for the year ending March 31, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of the Inv IT regulations 
, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as defined in Rule 2( I )(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the 
extent not inconsistent with lnvlT regulations. This responsibility also includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of 
lnv!T to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Inv IT or 
to cease operations, or has no rea listic alternative but to do so. 

The Management is also responsible for overseeing the lnvlT's financial repo1ting process . 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
repo1t that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materia l misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can ar ise from fraud or error and are considered materia l if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these standalone financial statem ents. 

As pa1t of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and ~~;:::: 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The ris Q.--
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SR BC & CO LLP 
Ch artered A ccoun ta nt s 

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Inv!T's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unce1iainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Inv!T's ability to continue as a going concern. 
lfwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
rep01i to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor's repo1i. However, future events or conditions may cause the Inv IT to cease to continue 
as a gomg concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters . We describe these matters in our auditor' s 
repo1i unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our repo1i because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the pub! ic interest benefits 
of such communication. 

l-
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SR C & CO LLP 
Chart ered Accou nt an t s 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) The Balance Sheet and the Statem ent of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehens ive 
Income are in agreement with the books of account; 

(c) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined in Rule 2( I )(a) of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended, to the extent not inconsistent with 
lnvlT Regulations. 

(d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Trust. 

For S R B C & CO LLP 
Cha1iered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 

o9,. 

\~ 
per Huzefa Ginwala 
Partner 
Membership Number: 111757 
UDIN: 23 I I I 757BGYQJU3534 
Place of Signature: Pune 
Date : May 12, 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023 

{All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Investment in subsidiaries 

Financial assets 
i. Investments 

ii. loans 
iii. Other financia l assets 

Other non-current assets 

Current assets 

Financial assets 
i. Investments 
ii. Cash and cash equivalent 

iii. Bank Balances other than (ii) above 

iv. Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

Unit capital 

Other equity 

Retained earnings/ (accumulated deficit) 

Total unit holders' equity 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i. Borrowings 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

i. Borrowings 

ii. Trade payables 

a. Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 

b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

iii. Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Notes 
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2.2 

For SR BC& CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants lndlgrld Investment Managers limited (as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

Place; Pune 

Date : 12 May 2023 

Place . Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

\.) 

ti(\.> 
-~ · ;, 

Urmll Shah 

.. 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number A23423 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 

0.49 

64.66 

•'M,921.40 

3,071.84 

1,56,914.84 

118.30 

41.91 

2,05,133.44 

69.74 

1,949.33 

3,110.76 

6,190.18 

4.90 

11,324.91 

2,16,458.35 

65,903.15 

3,296.07 

69,199.22 

1,35,674.58 

1,35,674.58 

9,256.73 

1.58 

73.83 

2,238.26 

14.15 

11,584.55 

1,47,259.13 

2,16,458.35 

31 March 2022 

\ 
<1.; 

f1}":>3-
.,a;;(n Sha~ma 

0.92 

75.74 

42,734.91 

6,231.37 

1,32,476.19 

456.90 

31.83 

1,82,007.86 

7,846.97 

2,322.58 

3,261.35 

13,430.90 

1,95,438.76 

65,903.15 

2,293.62 

68,196.77 

1,07,486.42 

1,07,486.42 

17,215.53 

55.87 

2,483.37 

0.80 

19,755.57 

1,27,241.99 

1,95,438. 76 

Chief Financia l Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 



!NOIA GRID TRUST 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

INCOME 

Revenue from operations 

Dividend income from subsidiaries 

Income from investment in mutual fund s 

Interest income on investment in fixed depos its 

Other income 

Total income {I) 

EXPENSES 

Legat and professional fees 

Annual listing fee 

Rating fee 

Valuation expenses 

Trustee fee 

• Statutory audit fees 

• Other services (including ce rtification) 

Other expenses 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Finance costs 

Impai rm ent of investment in subsidiaries 

Total expenses (11) 

Profit before tax (111=1-11) 

Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Income tax for earlier years 

Tax u:pense (IV) 

Profit for the year (Ill-IV) 

Other comprehensive income 

Other com prehensive income to be reclassifi ed to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Other comprehensive income not to be recla ssified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 

Other comprehensive income for the year 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per unit 

Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 

(Computed on the basis of profit for the year) 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Th e accompanying notes are an integral part of the financia l sta tements. 

As per our report of even date 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Notes 
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2.2 

ForSRBC&COLLP 

Chartered Accountants lndlgrid Investment Managers limited (as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

. . I . vlJ .. _,,.,,, 
\\) (,.. l ::,..-~ -

per ~Ginwal~ 

Partner 

Membership Number · 11175 

Place: Punc 

Date : 12 MaY 2023 

, ., I t) , 
.' fto.."t:' ~--· 

i / - Harsh Shah 

CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 0249612i 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

•'' 
v. · t_,"' 

\.) 
Urmil Shah 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number A23423 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 

21,807.67 

221.90 

74.57 

184.61 

22,288.75 

102.15 

11.38 

24.77 

5.35 

6.75 

5.54 

0.38 

33.37 

12.31 

10,009.55 
1,879.20 

12,090.7S 

10,198.00 

31.88 

0.08 

31.96 

10,166.04 

10,166.04 

14.52 

31 March 2022 

20,025.39 

282.66 

55.26 

106.52 

19.03 

20,488.86 

71.69 

9.83 

28.36 

8.25 

3.32 

5.43 

0.64 

21.79 

1.75 

9,432.83 

1,672.75 

11,2S6.64 

9,232.22 

23.62 

23.62 

9,208.60 

9,208.60 

13.29 

~\ev-~CR .,.~·· . 
fJ"a"Vln Sharma 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' EQUITY FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

A. Unit capital 

Balance as at 01 April 2021 
Units issued during the year (Refer note 13) 

Issue expenses 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Units issued during the year (Refer note 13) 

lssuc expenses 

Balance as at 31 March 2023 

8. Other equity 

Balance as at 01 April 2021 

Profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 

Less: Distribution during the year (refer note below) 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive income 

Less: Distribution during the year (refer note below) 

As at 31 March 2023 

Note: 

Nos. in million 

583.49 
116.69 

700.18 

700.18 

Retained earnings/ 
(Accumulated deficit) 

1,951.03 

9,208.60 

(8,866.01) 

2,293.62 

10,166.04 

(9,163.59) 

3,296.07 

Rs. in million 

53,145.69 
12,836.49 

(79.03) 

65,903.15' 

65,903.15 

(Rs. in million) 

Total other equity 

1,951.03 

9,208.60 

(8,866.01) 

2,293.62 

10,166.04 

(9,163.59) 

3,296.07 

The distribution relates to the distributions made during the financial year along with the distribution related to the last quarter of FY 2021-22 and does not include the distribution relating to the last quarter of FY 2022-23 

which will be paid after 31 March 2023. 

The distributions made by lndiGrid to its unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) of lndiGrid under the lnvlT Regulations and hence part of the same includes repayment of capital as well. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the firlancial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Fors RB C& co LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

\\~~ 
per Huzefa Ginwala 

Partner 

Membership Number: 111757 

Place : Pune 

Date : 12 May 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

lndlgrld Investment Managers limited (as Investment Manager of India Grid Trust) 

CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02496122 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 

\,) ~ -
>'" ,, ...... 

UrmllShah 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number: A23423 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 

(All .amounts in Rs . million unless otherwise stated) 

A. Cash flow (used in) operating activities 

Net profit as per statement of profit and loss 

Adjustment for taxation 

Profit before tax 

Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries 

Interest income on non convertible debentures 

Finance cost 
Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries 

Dividend income from subsidiaries 

Income from investment in mutual funds 

Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 

Operating loss before working capital changes 

Movements in working capital: 

• trade pJyabtes 

• other current and non-current financial li r1bi lities 

• other current und non-current liabili ti es 

- other current and non-current financial asset 

- other current and non-current asset 

Changes in working capital 

Cash (used in) operations 

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) 

Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A} 

B. Cash flow (used in) investing activities 

Putchase of property plant and equipment (including capital work-in·progress) 

Purchase of equity sharcs/NCD/CCD / loan of subsidiaries 

l oans given to subsidia ries 

Loans repaid by subsid iaries 

Interest income on loans given to subsid iar ies 

Dividend received from subsidiaries 

Interest income on investment in fixed deposits 

Income from investment in mutual funds 

Investment in mutual funds 

Proceeds from mutual funds 

Investment in fixed deposits (net ) 

Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) 

C. Cash flow (used in)/from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of unit capital 

Unit issue expense incurred 

Proceeds of long term borrowings 

Repayment of long term borrowings 

Payment of upfront fees of long term borrowings 

Finance costs 

Payment of distribut ions to unitho!ders 

Net cash flow (used inJ/from financing activities (C) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (A+ B + C) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of year (0) 

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year (A+ B + C + D) 

31 March 2023 

10,166.04 

31.96 

10,198.00 

12.31 

1,879.20 

(276. 17) 

10,009.55 

(21,531.50) 

(221.90) 

(74.57) 

(184.61) 

(189.69) 

19.54 

(6.89) 

13.35 

(2.3 1) 

(3.05) 

20.64 

(169.05) 

(43.89) 

(212 .94) 

(0.80) 

(1,126.27) 

(28,213.83) 

4,028.46 

18,650.39 

221.90 

139.20 
74.57 

(19,965.61) 

19,895.87 

(449.58) 

(6,745.70) 

37,699.99 

(17,433.20) 

(156.51) 

(9,887.35) 

(9,161.93) 

1,061.00 

(S,897.64) 

7,846.97 

1,949.33 

31 March 2022 

9,208.60 
23.62 

9,232.22 

1.75 

1,672.75 
(467.21) 

9,432.83 

(19,558.18) 

(282.66) 

(55.26) 

(106.52) 

(130.28) 

55.87 

(381.64) 

(9.16) 

(34.841 
(3.42) 

(373.19) 

(503.47) 

(31.32) 

(535.79) 

(76.52) 

(6,997.63) 

(26,827.23) 

5,713.00 

16,885.69 

282.66 

64.39 

55.26 

(44,432.58) 

44,432.58 

(1,899.53) 

(12,799.91) 

12,836.49 

(79.03) 

51,600.00 

(31,440.18) 

(272 .57) 

(9,503.03) 

(8,864.21) 

14,277.47 · 

_941.77 

6,905.20 

7,846.97 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Components of cash and cash equivalents: 

Balances with banks: 

- On current accounts /\ 
- Cheques on hand 

- Deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 
Cash in ha nd 

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11} 

"Out of total amount, Rs. 13.04 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 11.38 million) pertains to unclaimed distribution to unitho!ders. 

Reconciliation between opening and clos ing balances for liabilities arising from financing activities (including current maturities) :-

Particulars 

01 April 2021 
Cash flow 

- Interest 

- Proceeds/(repayments) 

Accrual 

31 March 2022 

Cash flow 

• Interest 

• Proceeds/(repayments) 

Accrua l 

31 March 2023 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Fors RB C& CO LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registr.Jtion No. 324982E/E300003 

per Huzefa Ginwala 

Partner 
Membership Number: 111757 

Place: Pune 
Date : 12 May 2023 

~ -uH~ah 
CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02496122 
Place : Mumbai 

Date: 12 May 2023 

.., . s"' \) .... 
Urmll Shah 

Company Secretary 
Membership Number A23423 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 

31 March 2023 

15.33 

1,934.00 

1,949.33 

31 Marc h 2022 

7,846.97 

7,846.97 

long term borrowings 
(Including current 

maturities) 

f\lc,....~\ 
/"' . 

..»avin ~harma 

1,06,333.30 

(9,503.03} 
19,887.25 

8,965.62 
1,25,683.14 

(9,887.35} 

20,110.28 

10,009.57 
1,45,915.64 

Chief Financia l Officer 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 12 May 2023 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

Disclosures Pursua nt To SEBI Circulars 

(SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMO/OF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 and No. CIR/IMO/DF/127 /2016 dated 29 November 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regulations) 

A. STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE AS AT 

Particulars 31 March 2023 

Book value Fair value 

A. Assets 2,16,458.35 2,38,429.94 

B. Liabilities (at book va lue) 1,47,259.13 1,47,259.13 

C. Net Assets (A-8) 69,199.22 91,170.81 

D. Number of units 700.18 7D0. 18 

E. NAV (C/DI 98.83 130.21 

· (Rs. in• million) 

31 March 2022 

Book va lue Fair value 

1,95,438.76 2,20,394 .66 

1,27,241.99 1,27,241.99 

68,196.77 93,152.67 

700.18 7D0.18 

97.40 133.04 

Fair values of subsidiaries/SPVs arc calculated based on their independent fair value done by experts appointed by the Trust. The fair value of all these revenue-generating assets is determined using this method. The Trust 

holds 100% equity/beneficial interest in all SPVs except PrKTCL, in which it holds 74% with the balance 26% held by PGCIL and accounted for as non-controlling interest in the financial statements. 

Project wise breakup of fa ir value of assets as at 31 March 2023 

Project 

lndigrid limited 

lndigrid 1 limited 

lndigrid 2 limited 

Patran Transmission Company limited 

East North Interconnection Company limited 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission limited 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private limited 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited 

NER II Transmission limited 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private limited 

JndiGrid Solar-II {AP) Private limited 

Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited• 

Khargone Transmission limited' 

Subtotal 

Assets (in lndiG rid) 

Tota l assets 

• The Trust has acquired Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited with effect from 09 November 2022 

I# The Trust has acquired Khargone Transmission limited with effect from 02 March 2023 

B. STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURNS ATFAIR VALUE 

Particulars 

Total comprehensive income (as per the statement of profit and loss) 

Add/ (less): other changes in fair value not recognized in total comprehensive income 

Total Return 

Notes: 

31 March 2023 

54,281.67 

47,243.47 

15,218.70 

2,722.06 

11,803.75 

12,166.19 

3,334.96 

6,539.18 

53,410.65 

3,302.01 

3,501.42 

2,776.62 

16,650.89 

2,32,9Sl.57 
5,478.37 

2,38,429.94 

31 March 2023 

10,166.04 

(2,984.31) 

7,181.73 

(Rs. in million) 

31 March 2022 

47,499.06 

48,175 .26 

15,031.54 

2,723.03 

12,141.93 

12,505.91 

3,550.85 

9,792.84 

53,811.13 

4,117.89 

4,116.47 

2,13,465.91 
6,928.75 

2,20,394.66 

31 March 2022 

9,208.60 

(4,818.901 

4,389.70 

1. Fair value of assets as at 31 March 2023 and as at 31 March 2022 and other changes in fair value for the year then ended as disclosed in the above tables are based on fa ir valuation report issued by the independent 

valuer appointed under the lnvlT regulations. 

2. Sensitivity analysis with respect to significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement has been disclosed in Note 27A. 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI Circulars 

{SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/114/2016 dated Oc~ober 20, 2016 and No. CIR/JMD/DF/.127/2016 dated 

November 29 2016 issued under the lnvlT Regu lations) 

A) Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) of India Grid Trust 

Descri ption 

Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the form of interest 

Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets in the form of dividend 

Any other income accruing at lndiGrid level and not captured above, including but not limited to interest/return on surplus cash invested by lndiGrid 

Cash flows received from the Portfolio Assets towards the repayment of the debt issued to the Portfolio Assets by lndiGrid 

Proceeds from the Portfolio Assets for a capital reduction by way of a buy back or any other means as permitted, subject to applicable law 

Proceeds from sale of assets of the Portfolio Asset not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re-invest, or if such proceeds are not intended to be invested 

subsequently 

Total cash inflow at the lndlGrid level (Al 

l ess: Any payment of fees, interest and expense incurred at lndiGrid level, including but not limited to the fees of the Investment Manager and Trustee 

less: Costs/retention associated with sale of assets of the Portfolio Assets: 

-related debts settled or due to be settled from sa le proceeds of Portfolio Assets; 

-transaction costs paid on sa le of the assets of the Portfolio Assets; and 

-capita l gains taxes on sa le of assets/ shares in Portfolio Assets/ other investments. 

l ess: Proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested in accordance with Regulation 18{7)(a) of the lnvlT Regulations 

less: Repayment of external debt at the lndiGrid level and at the level of any of the underlying portfolio assets/special purpose veh icles (Excluding refinancing) 

Less: Income tax (if applicable) at the standalone lndiGrid level 

Less: Amount invested In any of the Portfolio Assets for service of debt or interest 

Less: Repair work in relation to the projects undertaken by any of the Portfolio Assets 

Total cash outflows/ retention at lndlGrid level (B) 

Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 

(THIS SPACE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK) 

Vear ended Ye;ucnded 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

(Audited) (Audited) 

17,768.08 16,885.69 

221.90 282.66 

259.18 161.96 

1,665.40 4,132.52 

19,914.S6 21,462.83 

(10,236.69) (9,371 .42) 

{31 .96) {23.62) 

{597.79) {2,609.64) 

(35.00) 

(10,866.44) (12,039.68) 

9,048.12 9,423.15 
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1. Trust information 

India Grid Trust ("the Trust'' or " lndiGrid") is an irrevoca ble trust settled by Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (the "Sponsor") 
on October 21, 2016 pursuant to the Trust Deed under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and registered with Securities 
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") under the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 (as amended from time to 
t ime) as an Infrastructure Investment Trust on November 28, 2016 having registration number IN/lnvlT/16-17/0005. The Trustee 
of lndiGrid is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the "Trustee"). The Investment manager for lndiGrid is lndigrid Investment Managers 
Limited {the "Investment Manager" or the "Management"). 

With effect from September 20, 2020, Esoteric II Pte. Limited has also been nominated as sponsor of the Trust. 

The objectives of lndiGrid are to undertake activities as an infrastructure investment trust in accordance with the provisions of 
the lnvlT Regulations and the Trust Deed. The principal activity of lndiGrid is to own and invest in power transmission/ solar 
assets in India with the objective of producing stable and sustainable distributions to unitholders. 

As at March 31, 2023, lndiGrid has following project entities ("Special Purpose Vehicles" or "SPVs") or Transmission infrastructure 
projects on Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ('BOOM') or Build, Own and Operate (BOO) basis: 

1. Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited ('BDTCL') 
2. Jabalpur Transmission Company Limited ('JTCL') 
3. RAPP Transmission Company Limited ('RTCL') 
4. Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited ('PKTCL') 
5. Maheshwaram Transmission Limited ('MTL') 
6. Patran Transmission Company Limited ('PTCL') 
7. NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited ('NTL') 
8. Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited {'OGPTL') 
9. East-North Interconnection Company Limited ('E NICL') 
10. Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited ('GPTL') 
11. Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited ('PrKTCL') 
12. NER II Transmission Limited ('NER') 
13. Kallam Transmission Limited ('KTL') 
14. Raichur Solapur Transmission Company Private Limited ('RSTCPL') 
15. Khargone Transmission Limited ('KgTL') 

As at March 31, 2023, lndiGrid has following project entities which are transmission infrastructure projects developed on Design, 
Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer ('DBFOT') basis: 

1. Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited ('JKTPL') 

These SPVs have executed Transmission Services Agreements ("TSAs") with Long term transmission customers un.der which the 
SPVs have to maintain the transmission infrastructure for 25 or 35 years post commissioning. 

As at March 31, 2023, following project entities which are engaged in generation of electricity through Solar projects developed 
Build, Own, Operate and Maintain ('BOOM' ) basis: 

1. lndiGrid Solar - I (AP) Private Limited ('lndiGrid Solar - I') 
2. lndiGrid Solar - II (AP) Private Limited ('lndiGrid Solar- II') 

These SPVs have executed Power Purchase Agreements ("PPAs") with Solar Energy Corporation Limited ('SECI') for sale of 
electricity for 25 years post commissioning. 

The address of the ·registered office of the Investment Manager is Unit No 101, First Floor, Windsor Village, KoleKalyan Off CST 
Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Santacruz (East) Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400098, India. The financial statements were authorised for 
issue in accordance with resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager on 12 May 2023. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial sta tements are the separate financial sta tements of the Trust and comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement 
of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Equity for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets 
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at fair value as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the Statement of Net Distributable Cash 
Flows ('NDCFs') for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes in 
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 (as amended), prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Ind AS") read with SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended and the circulars issued thereunder ("lnvlT 
Regulations") . 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets which have been measured 
at fair value. 

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees Millions, except when otherwise indicated. 

The Group has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.As at March 31, 

2023, current liabilities exceed the current assets of the Trust because of current maturity of the long-term borrowings. Trust is 

exploring the options to refinance the current maturity of the long-term borrowing when they become due for repayment. As 

per regulation 20 of INVIT regulations 2014, the Trust is eligible for a total debt (net of cash and cash equivalents) of 70% to AUM. 

As at March 31, 2023, the total debt (net of cash and cash equivalents) to AUM is within the prescribed limits 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Trust in preparing its financial statements: 

a) Current versus non-current classification 

The Trust presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when 
it is: 

Expected to. be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period or 
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period . 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Trust classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

Operating cycle of the Trust is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash 
equivalents. The Trust has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

b) Foreign currencies 

The Trust's financial statements are presented in INR, which is its functional currency. The Trust does not have any foreign 
operation. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Trust at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date 
the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 
the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates 
at the dates of the initial transactions. 
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c) Fair value measurement 

The Trust measures financial instruments such as mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Trust. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset t akes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest 
and best use. 

The Trust uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable; 

Level 3· Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recogn ise_d in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Trust determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries, the Trust engages independent qualified external valuers to perform 
the valuation . The management works closely with the external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and 
inputs to the model. The management in conjunction with the external valuers also compares the change in fair value with 
relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. The management reports the valuation report and 
findings to the Board of the Investment Manager on a quarterly basis to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the 

transmission/ solar projects. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movement in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be 
remeasured or reassessed as per the Trust's accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs 
applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant 
documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Trust has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes. 

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 27B) 
Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 26) 
Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 27A) 

di Revenue Recognition 

The specific recognition criteria described below must be met before revenue is recognised. 

Interest income 

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the 
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or 
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a. shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial 
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Trust estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider 
the expected credit losses. 
For compulsory convertible debentures being equity instrument, the interest income is recognised on the basis of actual interest 
rate. 
For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried in the balance sheet at fair value, interest income is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when right to receive is established. 

Dividends 

Income from dividend on investments is accrued in the year in which it is declared, whereby the Trust's right to receive is 
established. 

e) Taxation 

Current income tax 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date . 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or 
loss (either in _other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation 
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment 
by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the 
treatment. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any 
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unus.ed tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, 
except: 

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss; 
In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse 
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Trust relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere in the 
financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things, reflect the potential impact of climate-related -~ 

development on the business, such as increased costs as a result of measures to reduce carbon emission. cj''"1
io G.,! 

,. ii 
,.(\,..,. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised 
or the liability is settled, ba sed on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised outside statement of profit or loss. 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

Sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses. 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/value added/goods and service taxes paid, except: 

When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case, the 
tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable. 
When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 

balance sheet. 

f) Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long­
term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the plant and equipment are required to 
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. 

likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a 

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit 
or loss as incurred. No decommissioning liabilities are expected or be incurred on the assets of plant and equipment. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

(Life in number of years) 

Asset Category Useful Life considered Useful life (Schedule II#) 

Data processing equipments 3 3-6 

g) Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured 

at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis. Software is amortised over the estimated 
useful life ranging from 5-10 years. 

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposa l proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of 

profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised. 

h) Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sa le are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs 

are expensed in the period in which t hey occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Trust incurs in 
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an 
adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

i) Leases 

The Trust assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to 

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, 

Trust as lessee -·· ::.-=· ·:--//4~1.~ C 

I C, b~e,c.. 

t,.~, 
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The Trust applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low­

value assets. The Trust recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use 

the underlying assets. 

Right-of-use assets 
The Trust recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available 

for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for 

any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial 
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right­

of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the 

assets. 

Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Trust recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments 

to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any 

lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under 

residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 

reflects the Trust exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are 

recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that 

triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Trust uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement 

date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the ~ommencement date, the amount of 

lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying 

amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 

(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a 

change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Trust applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those 

leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option): It also 

applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. 

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term. 

j) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Trust assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, 
or when annual impairment testing for an· asset is required, the Trust estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset' s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the.estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of 
disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation 
model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or 
other available fair value indicators. 

The Trust bases its impairment calculations on detailed budget and forecast calculations. These budgets are prepared for the 
entire project life. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses 
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Trust estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that 
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the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a 
revaluation increase. 

The Trust assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the introduction of emission-reduction legislation 

that may increase costs. These risks in relation to climate-related matters are included as key assumptions where they materially 

impact the measure of recoverable amount, these assumptions have been included in the cash-flow forecasts in assessing value­

in-use amounts. 

k) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Trust expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under 
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 
is recognised as a finance cost. 

I) Investments in subsidiaries 

The Trust accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses (if any) in its separate financial 

statements. Investments accounted for at cost which are held for sale are accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105, Non­

current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when they are classified as held for sale. 

m) Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity. 

Financia I assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit 
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that 
require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) 
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Trust commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics 

and the Trust's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant 

financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient, the Trust initially measures a financial asset at 

its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that 

do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Trust has applied the practical expedient are measured at the 

transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

i. Debt instruments at amortised cost 
ii. Debt instruments. at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 
iii. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
iv. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the.amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and 
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b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

This category is most relevant to the Trust. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income 
in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This 
category generally applies to interest receivable and loans given to subsidiaries (Refer Note 8 and 9) 

Debt instrument at FVTOCI 

A 'debt instrument' is classified as FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, 
and 

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and 
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned 
whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method. The Trust does not have financial 
assets which are subsequently measured at FVTOCI. 

Debt instrument at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Trust may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at 
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
(referred to as 'accounting mismatch') . 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

Equity investments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and 
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Trust may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Trust makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Trust decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale 
of investment. However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

De recognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Trust's balance sheet) when: 

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
The Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Trust has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Trust has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 
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When the Trust has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it 
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownersh ip. When it has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Trust continues to recognise the 
transferred asset to the extent of the Trust's continuing involvement. In that case, the Trust also recognises an associated liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Trust 
has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Trust could be required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

Majority of the financial assets of the Trust which are not reflected at fair value pertain to investments in/ loans to subsidiaries 
and other receivables. Considering the nature of business, the Trust does not foresee any credit risk on its investments/ loans 
given to subsidiaries. However, these subsidiaries are SPV entities having Power Purchase Agreement with Long Term 
Transmission Customers for a period of 25/35 years. Hence, this needs to be tested for impairment. Majority of the other 
receivable pertain to receivable from su bsidiary companies only. Also, the Trust does not have any history of impairment of other 
receivables. 

For the financial assets which are reflected at fair value, no further impairment allowance is necessary as they reflect the fair 
value of the relevant financial asset itself. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The Trust's financial liabilities include borrowings and related costs, trade and other payables and derivative financial instrument. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are 
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered 
into by the Trust that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date 
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses 
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. 
However, the Trust may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inte aL. 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss . 

• ,,f•;0' ,~ '/ 
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This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15. 

De recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Embedded derivatives 

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract -
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An 
embedded derivative cause some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified 
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, 
credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to 
a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies 
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or 
loss. 

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Trust does not separate 
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract. 
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their 
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts· are not held for 
trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in 
fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

The Trust determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no 
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are 
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes 
to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Trust's senior management determines change in the business model 
as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Trust's operations. Such changes are evident to external 
parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Trust either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to 
its operations. If the Trust reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date 
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Trust does not restate 
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for: 

Original Revised Accounting Treatment 
classification Classification 
Amortised Cost FVTPL Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous 

amortised cost and fair value is recognised in statement of profit or loss. 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. EIR 
is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount. 

Amortised cost FVTOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between previous 
amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change in EIR due to 
reclassification. 

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost carrying 
amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against fair value. 
Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had always been measured at 
amortised cost. 

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other 
adjustment is required. 

FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit or loss at the 
reclassification date. 
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Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

n) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered an integral part of the Trust's cash management. 

o) Cash distribution to unit holders 

The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is authorised, and a legal obligation 

has been created. As per the lnvlT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the 

Investment Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in unitholders equity. 

p) Earnings per unit 

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to unit holders of the Trust (after deducting 

preference dividends and attributable taxes if any) by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. The 

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a 

rights issue, split, and reverse split (consolidation of units) that have changed the number of units outstanding, without a 

corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per unit, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to unit holders of the 

Trust and the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 

potential units. 
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(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Particulars 

Gross block 

As at 01 April 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2022 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2023 

Depreciation 

As at 01 April 2021 

Churge for the year 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2022 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2023 

Net Block 

As at 31 March 2022 

As at 31 March 2023 

Note 4: Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross block 

As at 01 April 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March.2022 

Additions 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2023 

Amortization 

As at 01 April 2021 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2022 

Charge for the year 

Disposals 

As at 31 March 2023 

Net Block 

As at 31 March 2022 

As at 31 March 2023 

Note 5: Capital work-in-progress {CWIP) 

Opening balance 

Additions 

Transfer / capitalised/ disposed 

Total 

Data Processing Equipment 

1.29 

1.29 

1.29 

0.37 

0.37 

0.43 

0.80 

0.92 
0.49 

Intangible assets 

77.12 

77.12 

0.80 

77.92 

1.38 

1.38 

11.88, 

13.26 

75.74 

64.66 

Total 

1.29 

1.29 

1.29 

0.37 

0.37 

0 .43 

0.80 

0.92 
0.49 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1.89 

(1.89) 
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Note 6: Investments in subsidiaries 

Equity investments, at cost (unquoted) 

lndigrid Lim ited ("IGL") 

[17.67 million (31 March 2022: 17.67 million) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-upj (refer note 7) 

Less: Provision for impairment (Refer Note 26) 

lndigrid 1 Limited {"IGLl") 

[94.42 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 93.35 million) of Rs.10 each fu lly paid up} 

lndigrid 2 limited ("IGL2") 
[26.05 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 26.05 million) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) 

Patran Transmission Company limited ("PTCL") 

(SO million (31 March 2022: SO million) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up] 

East-North Interconnection Company limited ("ENICL") 

(1 .05 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 1.05 million) of Rs. lOeach fully paid up) 

Gurgaon-Palwa l Transmission limited {"GPTL ") 

[0.34 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 0.34 million) of Rs. 10 each fully paid upJ 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private limited ("JKTPL"} 

122.66 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 22.66 million) of Rs . 10 each fully paid up) 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited {"PrKTCL") 

{201.90 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 201.90 million) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up) 

NER II Transmission limited ("NER") 

(1.14 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 1.14 million) of Rs. l Ocach fully paid upJ 

lndiGrid Solar- I (AP) Private Limited ("ISPL-1") 

{12.00 million equ ity shares (31 March 2022: 12.00 million) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] 

lndiGrid Solar- II (AP) Private limited (" ISPL-11 ") 

[12.00 million equity shares (31 March 2022: 12.00 million) of Rs.10 each ful ly paid up} 

Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited ("RSTCPL") 

(80.00 million equity shares (31 March 2022: Nil) of Rs. 10 each fully paid upj 

Khargone Transmission limited ("KgTL") 

[0.77 million equ ity shares (31 March 2022: Nil) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up] 

Preference shares, at cost (unquoted} 

lndigrid limited (''IGL") (formerly known as "Sterlite Grid 1 Umited'') 

(27 .06 million (31 March 2022: 27.06 million) 0.01% Optionally convertible redeemable non cumulative preference shares ("OCRPS'') of Rs . 10 each fully paid-up] 

less: Provision for impairment (Refer Note 26) 

~ The OCRPS are either convertible into equity shares o f IGL in the ra tio of 1:1 or redeemable solely at the option o f IGL with in a period of 7 years from the date of issue. 

Compulsorily-convertible debentures (unquoted) (at amortised cost) 

lnd iGrid Solar~I (AP) Private Limited ("lSPl-1") 

(81.63 mitlion compulsorily convertible debentures (31 March 2022: 81.63 million) of Rs. 10 each! 

lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private limited ("ISPL-11") 

[81.00 million compulsorily converti ble debentures (31 March 2022: 81.00 million) of Rs. 10 each] 

Total non-current investments 

31 March 2023 

6,049.09 

(5,494.55) 

554.54 

14,377.09 

536.84 

735.53 

1,290.26 

909.63 

1,397.97 

3,205.52 

19,536.70 

63.54 

70.42 

103.53 

135.13 

1,001.96 

1,001.96 

472.74 

530.00 

44,921.40 

31 March 2022 

1,929.22 

(1,929.22) 

14,041.18 

536.84 

735.53 

1,290.26 

905.79 

1,418.21 

3,205.52 

19,280.83 

78.73 

85.17 

1,001.96 

(1,001.96) 

550.81 

606.04 

42,734.91 
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Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 
Name of subsidiary 

Directly held by the Trust: 

lndigrid Limited ("IGL") 

lndigrid I limited ("IGLl") AA 

lndigrid 2 limited ("IGL2") "" 

Patran Transmission Company limited {"PTCL") 

East-North Interconnection Company Limited 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited {"GPTL") 1 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited ("JKTPL") 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited {'PrKTCL')
2 

NER II Transmission Limited ("NER")3 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited (" ISPL-1")4 

lndiG rid Solar-II {AP) Private limited {"ISPL-ll"f
1 

Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private Limited {"RSTCPL") 

Khargone Transmission Limited {'KgTL')6 

Indirectly held by the Trust (through subsidiaries) : 

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company Limited ("BDTCL") 

JabalpurTransmission Company Limited ("JTCL") 

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited ("PKTCL") 

RAPP Transmission Company Limited ("RTCL") 

Maheshwaram Transmission Limited ("MTL"I 

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited ("NTL") 

Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited ("OGPTL") 

Kallam Transmission Limited ("KTL")
5 

Country of incorporation 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

India 

ownership interest% 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

49% 49% 

100% 100% 

74% 74% 

49% 49% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 0% 

49% 0% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

100% 100% 

1. The Trust acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Gurgaon Palwal Transmission limited ('GPTL') with effect from 28 August 2020 from Sterlite Power Transmission limited (referred as "the seller") pursuant to Share 

purchase Agreement dated August 28, 2020 ("SPA"). The Trust had finalised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake in GPTL and had entered into a binding agreement with the Selling Shareholders to acquire 

remaining 51% paid up equity capital in GPTL from t he seller. The Trust had beneficial interest based on the rights available to i t under the SPA. 

2. The Trust acquired 74% of paid up equity capital of Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited ('PrKTCL') with effect from January 08, 2021 from Reliance Infrastructure limited (referred as "the Selling Shareholder") 

pursuant to Share purchase Agreement dated November 28, 2020 ("SPA"). The balance 26% share in PrKTCL is held by PowerGrid Corporation of India Limited ("PGCIL"). 

3. The Trust acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of NER II Transmission Limited {"NER") with effect from March 2S, 2021 from Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (SPTL)) and Sterlite Grid 4 Limited {'SGL4'), (together 

referred as "the Selling Shareholders") pursuant to Share purchase Agreement dated March 05, 2021, as amended on March 25, 2021 {"SPA"). The Trust had fina lised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake 

in NER and had entered Into a binding agreement with the Selling Shareholders to acquire remaining 51% paid up equity capital in NER from the Selling Shareholders. The Trust had beneficial interest based on rights 

available to it under SPA 

4. The Trust acquired 100% of paid up equity capita l of tndiGrid Solar-I {AP) Private limited ( ('ISPLl') and lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private Limited ('ISPL2') with effect from July 13, 2021 from FRV Solar Holdings XI B.V. and 

Fotowatio Renewable Ventures S.l (together referred as '"'the Selling Shareholders'"') pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated December 18,2020 {"SPA"). 

5. The letter of intent for development of Kallam Transmission limited (KTL) is awarded to consortium of IGll and JGL2 ("lndiGrid Consortium") by the REC Power Development and Consultancy Limited (formerly known as 

REC Power Distribution Company Limited) on Novmeber 30, 2021 for a 35-year period from the scheduled commercia l operation date, on a Build, Own, Operate and Maintain model. lndiGrid Consortium acquired the 

project on December 28, 2021 pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA"} . The project is currently under development with scheduled commissioning on September 2023." 

6. The Trust acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Khargone Transmission limited {'KgTL') with effect from 02 March 2023 from Sterlite Power Transmission limited (referred as "the seller") pursuant to Share Purchade 

Agreement dated January 21, 2023 ("SPA"). The Trust has finalised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake in KgTL and has entered into a binding agreement with the seller to acquire remaining 51% paid up 

equity capital in KgTL from the seller. The Trust has beneficia l interest based on the rights available to it under the SPA. 
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Note 7: Investments 

Non-Current 

Non-convertible debentures (unquoted) (at amortised cost) 

lndigrid Limited ("IGL") 

(665.82 million (31 March 2022: 665.82 million) 0.01% Non-convertible debentures of Rs 10 each)U 

Less: Provision for impairment (Refer Note 26) 

Total 

Current 

Unquoted mutual funds (valued at fair value through profit or loss) 
Aggregate book and market value of unquoted investments 

Aditya Birla Sun life Overnight Fund -Growth -Direct Plan - 4,088.88 units 

HDFC Overnight Fund -G rowth- Direct plan - 4,222.41 units 

ICICl Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan•Growth Option• 57,964.45 units 

ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund -Growth- Direct plan -1,220.51 units 

Kotak Overnight Fund -Growth- Direct plan - 3,097.41 units 

Nippon India Overnight Fund• Direct Growth Plan • 2,17,963.91 units 

Total 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

3,071.84 6,915.54 

(684.17) 

3,071.84 6,231.37 

3,071.84 6,231.37 

4.96 
14.05 
19.31 

1.47 
3.70 

26.25 

69.74 

U Non Convertible debenture (NCO} of Face value of Rs. 10 each were issued by lndigrid limited and were redeemable on or after July, 2024. During the current year, the due date of redemption of NCO was revised to July, 

2033. Since the interest rate for the NCD is below market rate, Rs. 4,119.87 million has been re-classified as equity contribution in subsidiary disclosed under investment in subsidiary. 

Note 8: Loans (unsecured, considered good} 

Non-current 

loan to subsidiaries {refer note 28) • 

Total 

Details of loan to subsidiaries 

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company limited 

Jabalpur Transmission Company limited 

Maheshwaram Transmission limited 

RAPP Transmission Company Limited 

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company Limited 

Patran Transmission Company Limited 

NRSS XXlX Transmission limited 

Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission limited 

East North Interconnection Company limited 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private limited 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company limited 

NER II Transmission Limited 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private limited 

lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private limited 

lndigrid Limited 

lndigrid 1 Limited 

lndigrid 2 limited 

Kallam Transmission Limited 

. Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private Limited 

Khargone Transmission Limited 

Total 

Rate of Interest Secured/ unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.75% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

9.20% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% UnsecUred 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

15.75% Unsecured 

15.00% Unsecured 

IS.SO% Unsecured 

14.00% Unsecured 

14.00% Unsecured 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1,56,914.84 1,32,476.19 

1,56,914,84 1,32,476.19 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

17,149.32 8,825.32 
19,167.86 19,167.86 

3,943.81 3,943.81 
2,020.54 2,053.52 
3,523.45 3,612.50 

1,566.10 1,571.86 

23,743.64 24,288.06 
10,951.24 10,951.24 

8,269.83 8,410.97 
9,783.28 9,783.28 
1,462.52 1,549.81 
2,901.65 3,481.42 

28,105.73 28,105.71 

2,628.22 2,841.34 
2,738.95 2,776.51 

827.72 583.23 

0.02 93.03 
256.06 253.12 
903.60 183.60 

2,083.36 
14,887.94 

1,56,914.84 1,32,476.19 

"" loans are non-derivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries upon expiry of period of their respective Transmission Services & Power Purchase Agreement. Further, the subsidiaries are entitled to prepay 

all or any portion of the outstanding principal with a prior notice. 
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Note 9: Other financial assets {unsecured, considered good) (carried at amortised cost) 

Non-Current 

Security deposits 

Other bank balances (refer note 12)# 

Total 

Current 

Interest receivable from subsidiaries (refer note 28) 

Advances receivable in cash or kind 

Interest accrued on deposits 

Others 

Total 

31 March 2023 

38.90 

79.40 

118.30 

6,071.90 

4.45 

113.73 

0.10 

6,190.18 

# Includes amount of Rs 79.40 million (31 March 2022: NIL) is kept in Debt Service Reserve Account ('DSRA') / Interest Service Reserve Account {'ISRA') as per borrowing agreements with lenders. 

Note 10: Other assets (unsecured, considered good) 

Non-Current 

Advance income tax, including TOS {net of provisions) 

Others 

Total 

Current 

Others 

Total 

Note 11; Cash and cash equivalents {carried at amortized cost) 

Balance with banks 

- in current accounts "' 

Deposi t with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Total 

31 M arch 2023 

40.34 

1.57 

41.91 

4.90 

4.90 

31 March 2023 

15.33 

1,934.00 

1,949.33 

31 March 2022 

38.90 

418.00 

4S6.90 

3,190.79 

2.19 

68.32 . 

0.05 

3,261,3S 

31 March 2022 

28.41 
3.42 

31.83 

31 March 2022 

7,846.97 

7,846.97 

Balances with banks on current accounts does not earn interest. ShOrHerm deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash-requirement of the Trust and 

earn interest at the respective deposit rates. 

"'Out of total amount, Rs. 13.04 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 11.38 million) pertains to unclaimed distribution to unitholders. 

Note 12: Other bank balances 

Non-Current 

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 r:nonths 

Amount disclosed under head "other non current financial asset" (refer note 9) 

Total 

Current 

Deposit with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 

12 months# 

Deposit with original maturity for more than 12 monthsfl 

Total 

31 March 2023 

79.40 

(79.40) 

1,927.94 

1,182.82 

3,110.76 

31 March 2022 

418.00 
(418.00) 

1,092.08 

1,230.50 

2,322.58 

ti Includes amount of 2,993.76 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 2,322.58 million) kept in Debt Service Reserve Account ('DSRA') / Interest Service Reserve Account ('ISRA') as per borrowing agreements with lenders. 



!NOIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 13: Unit Capital 

a. Reconciliation of the units outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period 

As at 01 April 2021 

Units issued during the year {refer note be low ) 

Issue expenses (refer note below) 

As at 31 March 2022 

Issued during the year 

As at 31 March 2023 

Note: 

31 March 2023 

Number of units 

In million 

583.49 

116.69 

700.18 

700.18 

31 March 2022 

Amount 

Rs. in million 

53,145.69 

12,836.49 

(79.03) 

65,903.15 

65,903.15 

i) The Trust offered an issue of up to 116,695,404 units of India Grid Trust ("lndigrid" and such units, the "units"), for cash at a price of Rs. 110.00 per unit (the "issue price" ), aggregating to Rs. 12,836.49 million to the 

eligible unitholders (as defined in the Letter of Offer) on a rights basis in the ratio of one lot for every five lots (each lot comprising 1,701 units) held by them on the record date, being 30 March 2021 (the "Issue") in 

accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulation s, 2014 including the rules, circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, including the SEBI Rights Issue Guidelines (the 

"lnvlT Regulations"). The issue opened on 06 April 2021 and closed on 13 April 2021, which was exteiided to 16 April 2021. The Allotment Committee of the Board of Directors of lndiGrid Investment Managers Limited 

('Investment Manager'), considered and approved allotment of 116,695,404 rights units to the eligible unitholders of lndiGrid on 22 April 2021. 

ii) Issue expenses of Rs. 79.03 million incurred in connection with issue of units had been reduced from the Unitholders capital in accordance with Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. 

b. Terms/rights attached to units 

The Trust has on ly one class of units. Each unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in the Trust. Each holder of unit is entitled to one vote per unit . The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net 

Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once in every six months in each financial year in accordance with the lnvlT Regulations. The Investment Manager approves distributions. The distribution will be in proportion 

to the number of units held by the unitholders. The Trust declares and pays distribution in Indian rupees. 

A unitholder has no equitable or proprietary interest in the projects of lndiGrid and is not entitled to any share in the transfer of the projects (or any part thereof) or any interest in the projects (or any part thereof) of 

lndiGrid, A unitholder's right is limited to the right to require due administration of lndiGrid in accordance with the proyisions of the Trust Deed and the Investment Management' Agreement. 

c. Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust 

Esoteric II Pte. Limited 

Government of Singapore 

Larsen And Toubro Limited 

31 March 2023 

(Nos. in million) 

165.90 
140.18 
39.02 

%holding 

23.69% 

20.02% 

5.57% 

31 March 2022 

(Nos. in million) 

165.90 

140.18 

38.07 

%holding 

23.69% 

20.02% 

5.44% 

d. The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date. Further the Trust has not issued any units for 

consideration other than cash fr<;>m the date of incorporation till the balance sheet date. 

Note 14: Other Equity 

Retained eamings/ (Accumulated deficit) 

Balance as per last financial statements 

Add: Profit for the year 

Less: Distribution paid to unitholders 

Closing balance 

Retained earnings are the profits earned by the Trust till date, less distribution paid to unitholder 

31 March 2023 

2,293.62 

10,166.04 

(9,163.59) 

3,296.07 

31 March 2022 

1,951.03 

9,208.60 

(8,866.01) 

2,293.62 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

{All amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 15: long term borrowings (carried at amortised cost) 

Debentures 
6.65% - 8.20% Public NCD (secured) (refer note A below) 

7.11% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.60% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7 .85% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 

7 .917% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 

7 .53% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and (i) below) 

9.10% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.40% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

6.72% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

6.52% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7 .00% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7 .25% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

7 .40% Non-convertible debentures (secured) {refer note A below) 

7 .32% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.50% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

Term loans 

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) {refer note Band (ii) below) 

Total non-current borrowings 

Current maturities 

8.85% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

9.10% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A below) 

8.40% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and {i) below) 

8.50% Non-convertible debentures (secured) (refer note A and {i) below) 

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (refer note D and (ii) below) 

Total current borrowings 

The above amount includes: 

Secured borrowings 

Unsecured borrowings 

Total short term borrowings 

(i) The above items represent new secured non-convertible debentures that have been issued by the Trust during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Trust has taken new Indian rupee loan from banks of Rs. 22,700 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 27,600 million). 

(A) Non-convertible debentures referred above are secured to the extent of: 

31 March 2023 

9,886.75 
4,350.00 
2,500.00 

4,961.90 
4,970.49 
2,494.26 
2,996.63 

8,477.66 

3,991.70 
2,496.24 
1,496.17 

995.09 

3,990.50 

53,607.39 

82,067.19 

82,067.19 

1,3S,674.S8 

3,499.92 
3,991.21 

1,765.60 

9,256.73 

1,44,931.31 

1,44,931.31 

31 March 2022 

9,872.40 
4,350.00 
2,500.00 

2,976.28 
3,497.63 
8,470.48 

1,488.66 
2,493.70 
1,494.65 

993.54 
3,991.06 
3,982.53 

46,110.93 

61,375.49 

61,375.49 

1,07,486.42 

1,989.20 

13,993.83 

1,232.50 

17,215.53 

1,24,701.95 

1,24,701.95 

(i) first pari passu charge on entire current assets including loans and advances, any receivables accrued/realised from those loans and advances exte"nded by the Trust/Hold cos to its subsidiaries (direct or indirect) 

including loans to all project SPVs and future SPVs; 

(ii) First pari-passu charge on Escrow account of the Trust; 

(iii) Pledge of 99% over the equity share capital of all SPVs except pledged of 73% over the equity share capital of PrKTCL. 

(iv) Exclusive charge on the ISRA/DSRA accounts created for respective facility. 
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INOIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

The below table shows the maturity profile of outstanding NCO of the Trust the principal of which is repayable in full at the time of maturity : 

Rate of Interest 

3,000 9.10% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

50,000 7.85% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100,000 each 

4,000 8.50% Non-convertible debf.!nturcs of Rs. 10,00,000e.Jch 

2,500 7.00% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 eilch 

2,500 7.53% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

1,500 7.25% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

1,000 7.40% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

2,500 8.60% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

50,000 7.917% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 100,000 each 

2,500 8.40% Non-convertible debf.!ntures of Rs. 10,00,000 e.ich 

1,000 8.40% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

4,000 7.32% Non-convertible debenturf.!s of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

8,500 6.72% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

4,000 6.52% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000 each 

4,350 7.11% Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 10,00,000each 

PublicNCD 

6.65%Categoryl&ll 

6.7S% Cater,orv HI & IV 
7.45%Category l &II 

7.6%Categorylll &IV 
7.7%Catcgoryt&II 
7.9%Categoryll!&IV 
7.49%Categoryl&II 
7.69%CategoryUl&IV 
7.95%(.Jter,oryl&II 
8.2%Categoryll!&IV 
7.72%Cater,ory1&11 
7.97%Cillcgorylll&IV 

(B) Term loan from bank 

Rate of Interest 

Repayment 
Commencement Date 

29Ju!y2024 

28 February 2028 

01 March2024 

28June2024 

05August2025 

27June2025 

260ecember2025 

31August2028 

28February2031 

14June2023 

16June2023 

27 June2031 

14Septembcr2026 

07April202S 

14 rcbruary2079 

Repayment 

!;ommencement Date 
06May2024 
06 rv1ily20,'4 
06May2026 

06May2026 
06May2028 
06May2028 
06May2028 

06May2028 
06May7031 
06May2031 
06May2031 
06May2D31 

2023-2024 

4,000.00 

2,500.00 

1,000.00 

2024-2025 

O.Dl 
101.82 

2024-2025 

3,000.00 

2,500.00 

2026-2027 

859.85 
964.74 

2025-2026 

2,500.00 

1,500.00 

1,000.00 

4,000.00 

2028-2029 

1,004.25 
409,09 

4.72 
120.34 

2026-2027 

8,500.00 

2031-2032 

126.46 
5,991.84 

4.72 
412.18 

2027-28 

5,000.00 

The Indian rupef.! tf.!rm loan from bank carries interest at the rate of 7.00% to 8.40% payJble monthly. Loan amount installments shall be repayable as per the payment schedule over 5 ilnd 15 yeilrs from the d.Jte of disbursement. The term loan 
is secured by 

(i) first pari passu charge on f.!ntire currf.!ntassets including loans and advances. any receivables accrued/realised from those !oans and advances extended by the Trust/Hold cos to its subs1dianes (direct or indirect) including loans to all project 
SPVsandfutureSPVs; 
(ii)Firstpari-passuchargeon Escro111acco11ntoflheTrust; 

(iii) Pledge of99% over the equity share capital of all SPVs except pledged of 73%over the equity share Cilpital of PrKTCL 
(iv)ExclusivechargeonthelSRA/DSRAaccountscreatedforrespectivefacility 

Finilnclalcovenants 
loans from bank, debt securities contain certain debt covenilnts relating to limitation on interest service coverage ratio, debt service coveraee ratio, Net Debt to AUM, Net Debt to ElllTDA etc The financial covenant~ are reviewed on availability 
of audited accounts of the respective borrower periodically. For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Trust has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in the terms of(oan from bank and financial institutions, where applicable 

Note 16: Trade payables (carried at amortised cost) 

Trade payables 

·totaloutstandingduesofmicroandsmallenterprises 
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterpri~es 

-toreliltedparties(refernote28) 

-to oth ers 

Total 

Ageingscheduleasat31March2023 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises 
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Total 

Ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 

Total outstilmling dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises 
Disputed dues of micro and small enterprises 
Oisputedduesofcrf.!ditorsotherthanmicroandsma!lenterprises 

Total 

Unbilled 

Unbilled 

Tradepayab!esarenon-interestbearingandarenormallysettledon30-90days terms. 

For explanation on the Company's risk manaeernent policies, refer note 33. 

46.06 

46.06 

34.08 

34.08 

Not due 

Not due 

0.02 
25.35 

25.37 

31March2023 

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment 
Lessthanlyear l-2yea~ 2-3years 

1.56 
1.74 

3.30 

0.47 

0.47 

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment 
lessthanlyear 1-2years 2-3years 

21.49 0.30 

21.49 0.30 

1.58 

1.92 
71.91 

75.41 

0.21 

0.21 

31 March2022 

0.07 
55.80 

55.87 

Morethan3years 

Morethan3years 

2028-2029 & onward 

2,500.00 

5,000.00 

4,000.00 

4,350.00 

Total 

1.58 
73.83 

75.41 

Total 

55.87 

55.87 



JNDIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 17: Other financial liabilities {carried at amortised cost) 

Current 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Distribution payable 
Payable towards project acquired It 
- Tore!atedparty(refornote28) 

-To others 
Others 

Total 

31March2023 31 March 2022 

984.33 981.19 
13.04 11.38 

1,213.10 1,108.97 
27.79 374.92 

6.91 
2,238.26 2,483.37 

2,238.26 2,483.37 

It liability is towards acquisition of equity shares of NRSS XXIX Transmission limited, Odisha Generation Phase-II Transmission Limited, East-North Interconnection Company Limited, Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission limited, Parbati Koldam 
Transmission Company limited, NER II Transmission limited, Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited and Khargone Transmission Limited punuant to respective share purchase agreements. 

For explanation on the Company's risk management policies, refer note 33. 

Note 18: Other current liabilities 

Withho1dingtaxcs(TDS)payable 

GSTpayable 

Total 

Note 19: Tax Expense 

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 a_nd 31 March 2022 are: 

-Current tax 
-lncometaxforearlteryears 

Income taK expenses reported In the statement of profit and loss 

Reconclliatlon of tax eKpcnse and the accounting profit multlplled by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022: 

Accounting profit before income tax 
At India's statutory income tax rate of 42.74% ( 31 March 2022: 42.74%) 

Impact of exemption u/s 10(23FC} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 available to the Trust 

lnc9metaxforcarlicryears 
At the effective income taK rate 
Income ta~ expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 
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31 March 2023 

31 March 2023 

14.15" 

14.15 

31.88 
0.08 

31.96 

31March2023 

10,198.00 

4,358.63 

(4,326.67) 

0.08 
31.88 
31.96 

31March2022 

0.78 

0.02 

0.80 

31 March 2022 

23.62 

23.62 

31March2022 

9,232.22 

3,945.85 
(3,922.23) 

23.62 
23,62 



INOIA GRIO TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 20: Revenue from o erations 

Interest income on loans given to subsidiaries {refer note 28) 

finance Income on non-convertible debentures issued by subsidiary on E/R basis 

Total 

Note21: 0therincome 

Processing fees on loan given to subsid ia,y_(refer note 28) 

Miscdl<mcous income 

Total 

Note 22: Other ex enses 

lnvestmentmanagementfces(rcfcrnotc28} 

Rates a nd taxes 

Insurance expenses 

Misce!lancouse11penses 

Total 

Note 23: flnilnce Cost 

Interest on financial liabilities measured a t amortised cost 

Other bank and fi nance charges 

Total 

Note 24: De rec ia tion and amortitation expense 

Dep rcciationoftancibleassets 

Amortisation of intangible assets 

Total 

Note 25: Earnings per unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU amounh are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to unit hold tors by the weighted average number o f units outstanding during the year. 

31March2023 

21,531.50 
276.17 

21,807.67 

31 March 2023 

31March2023 

8.50 
16.23 

0.11 
8.53 

33.37 

31 March 2023 

10,009.53 

0 .02 

10,009.SS 

31March2023 

0.43 
ll .fl8 

12.31 

31March2022 

19,558.18 

467.21 

20,025.39 

31 March 2022 

31March2022 

18.8!> 

0. 18 

19.03 

6.53 

7.91 
0.98 

6.37 

21.79 

31 March 2022 

9,429.84 

2.99 

9,432.83 

31 March 2022 

0.37 
1.38 

1.75 

Diluted EPU amounts arc calculated by d ividing the profit for the year a ttributa ble lo uni t holdCfs by the weighted avcr.igc number of unia outstanding during the year p lus the we ighted averace number of units lhal would be issued on conversion 

of all the dilut ive potential units ln to unit capital 

The following reflects In the profit and unit data med in the basic and diluted EPU computation 31March2023 31March2022 

Profit afte r tax for calculating basic and diluted EPU (Rs. in million) 10,166.04 9,208.60 

Weighted average number of units in calculating basic and dil!-lted EPU (No. in million) 700.18 693.14 

Eaming~P1:rUnlt: 

Basic and DIiuted (Rupees/unit 14.S? 13.29 
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. mfllion unless otherwise stated) 

Note 26: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Trust's financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures Uncerta inty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result.in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

(a) Classlfication of Unitholders' funds 
Under the provisions of the lnvlT Regulations, lndiGrid is required to distribute to unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net distributable cash flows ol lndiGrid for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders' funds contains 

a contractual obligation of the Trust to pay to its unit holders cash distributions. The unitholders' funds could therefore have been classified as compound financial in5trument which contain both equity and liability components in accordance with 

Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/!MD/DF/114/2016 dated 20-0ct-2016 and No. CIR/IMD/OF/127/2016 dated 29 November 2016) issued under the lnvlT Regulations, the 

unitholders' funds have been classified as equity in order to comply with the mandatory requirements of Section Hof Anne~ure A to the SEBI Circular dated 20 October 2016 dealing with the minimum disclosures for key financial statements. In line 

with the above, the distribution payable to unit holders is recognised as liability when the same is approved by the Investment Manager. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerninc the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a sicniricant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities or fair value disclosures 

within the next financial year, are described below. The Trust based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Trust. Such changes arc reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

(a)Fairvaluationanddisclosures 

SEBI Circulars issued under the lnvll Regulations require disclosures rdating to net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value. 

In estimating the fair value of investments in subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independent qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The management works closely with the valuers to 

establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The management reports the valuation report and findings to the Board of the Investment Manager quarterly to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the 

transmission/ solar projects. The inputs to the valuation models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of 

inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value. 

(b) Impairment of non-current assets 

Non-current assets of the Trust primarily compnse of investments in subsidiaries. 

The provision for lmpairment/{reversal) of impairment of investments in subsidiaries is made based on the difference between the carryinc amounts and the recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount of the investments in subsidiaries has been 

computed by external independent valuation experts based on value in use ca!culation for the underlying projects (based on discounted cash flow model). On a periodic basis, according to the recoverable amounts of individual portfolio assets 

computed by the valuation experts, the Trust tests impairment on the amounts invested in the respective subsidiary companies. 

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the underlying projects are disclosed and further explained in Note 27A. 
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Notes to Standalone Finandal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 
(All amounts In Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 27A: Fair value me.isurements 

Set out below, is 3 comparison by class of thec.irrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrving amounts that arc reasonable approximations of fair values: 

Car in value 
Partlculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

Fin.1ncial assets at Amorti1ed cost 
Cash & cash eouivalent 
Other bank balance 
Investment 
loan 
Otherfin.anci.ilasscts 

Financlal assets at hfr Value 
Investments in mutual funds 

Total 

Financial llabllltles al amortized cost 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other fin ancial liabilities 

Total 

The manacement has assessed that the financial assets and financial liabilities as .it year end are reasonable appro)(imations of their fair values . 

1.949.33 
3.190.16 
3.071.84 

1.56.914.84 
6.229.08 

69.74 

1,71,424.99 

l,44,931.31 
75 .41 

2,238.26 

1,47,244.98 

7,846.97 
2.740.58 
6.231.37 

132.476.19 
3.300.25 

1,52,595.36 

1,24,701.95 
55.87 

2,483.37 

1,27,241.19 

(Rs.inmlllion) 
Fair value 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

1.949.33 
3.190.16 
3.071.84' 

1 S6.914.84 
6.229.08 

69.74 

1,71,424.99 

1,44,931.31 
75.41 

2,238.26 

1,47,244.98 

7,846.97 
2.740.58 
6.231.37 

1.32.476.19 
J.300.25 

1,52,595.36 

1,24,701.95 
55.87 

2,483.37 

1,27,241.19 

The Trust is rcquir~ lo present the statement of total assets al fair va lue and statement of total returns at fair value as per 5EB1 Circular No.ClR/IMO/OF/114/2016 dated 20 October 2016 as a part of these financial slatements• Refer Statement of 
Net Assets at Fair Value and Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value. 

The inputs to thev;iluation models for compu tation of fa ir value of as!.etS for the above mentioned statements are takC'n from observable markets where possible. but where this is not f('asiblc, a decree of judeemcnt is required in eslablishinc lair 
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as WACC, Tax rates, Inflat ion ra1es. elC. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fa ir value measurement required for disclosmes categorised within level 3 ot the fair value hierarchy togell1er with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as 
shown below: 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 
Rs In million) 

Significant unobservable inputs Input for 31 March 2023 Input for 31 March 2022 Sensitivity of input to the lncrease/(decrease)infairvalue 

WAC( 7.70%to8.53% 7.55%10 9.12% 

Tax rate (norma!tax and MAT) NormalTax-25.168% NormalTax-25.168% 

lnllat1onrate Revenue(Esdable): 5.oo~, Revenue(E~clable): 5.00% 
Expenses: 2.14% to 4.75% Expenses: 2.46% to 4.84% 

Note 278: Fair value hierarchy 

The following table provides lhe fair value measurement hierarchy of the Trust 's assets and liabilities: 

O.uantilatlvc disclosures fair Yalue measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022: 

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: 
Investment In subsidiaries(includingloantosubsidiaries) 

lnvestmentslnmutualfunds 

There have been no transfcaamong level 1, level 2 and level 3. 

Date of valuation 

31March2023 
31March2022 

31 ty,arch 2023 
31 March 2022 

fairvalue 

-+-0.5% 
0.5% 

-+-2% 
2% 

tl% 

-]% 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

(10,744.00) (10,168.42) 
10,446.00 11,434.87 

(580.08) (520.00) 

531.80 471.00 
(3,127.86) (3,173.14) 
2,574.20 2,604.90 

(Rs. in million) 
Fair value measure ment using 

Quoted prices in active Significant observable Significant unobservable 
markets inputs inputs 
(Levell) (level2 (Levell) 

69.74 

2,26,879.67 
2,06,398.37 

(THIS SPACE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK) 



INDIA GRID TRUST 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

Note 28: Related party disclosures 

I. List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind AS 24 • Related Party Disclosures 

la) Name of related party and nature of its relationship: 

Subsidiaries 

lndi3rid Umitcd(!Gl) 

lndigrid 1 limited (!GU) 

lndi3rid2 limited(IGL2) 
Bhopal Dhule Transmission Company limited (BOT CL) 
JabalpurTransmission Company limited (JTCL) 

~ahcshwaram Transmission limited (MTL) 

RAPP Transmission Company limited (RTCL) 

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company limited (PKTCL) 

Patran Transmission Company limited (PTCL) 

NASS XXIX Transmission limited (NTL) 

Odisha Generation Phase II Transmission limited (OGPTL) 

East-North Interconnection Company limited (ENJCL) 

Gurgaon-Pa!wal Transmission limited (GPTL) 

JhajjarKTTranscoPrivateUmited(JKTPL) 

Parbati Koldam Trnnsmission Company limited (PrKTCL) 

NER II Transmission limited (NER) 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private limited (ISPL1) ( from 13 July 2021) 

lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private limited (ISPL2) (from 13 July 2021) 

Kallam Transmission limited (KTL) (from 28 December 2021) 

Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited (RSTCPL) {from 9 November 2022) 

Khargone Transmission limited (Kgll) (from 2 March 2023} 

(b) Other related parties under Ind AS-24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year 

Entitles with significant Influence over the Trust 

Esotericl!Pte.ltd - Sponsor(EPL) 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited (SPTll - Sponsor of lndiGrid 

lndi3rid Investment Managers limited (IIML) - Investment manaeer of lndiGrid 

II, List of related parties as per Regulation 2(1)(zv) of the lnvlT Regulations 

la) Parties to lndiGrid 

Esoteric II Pie. Ltd (EPL) - lnductedSponsor 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (SPTL) - Sponsor of lndiGrid 

lndigrid limited (I Gt)· Project Manacer of lndiGrid (for all SPV's) 

lndigrld Investment Managers limited (IIML) - Investment manager of lndiGrid 

Axis Trustee Services limited (ATSL) - Trustee of lndiGrid (Axis Bank Ltd is Promoter)• 

(b) Promoters of the parties to lnd!Grld specified In la) above 

KKR ln3rid Co·lnvest LP.· Cayman Island · Promoter of EPL 

Twin Star Overseas limited - Promoter of SPTL 

Electron IM Pte. Ltd. - Promoter of IIML 

(c) Directors of the parties to lndiGrid specified in la) above 

Directors of IIML: 

Harsh Shah (CEO & Whole-time director) (till 30June 2022 and re-joined from 30 August 2022) 

Jyoti Kumar Agarwal {ti!l 30 September 2022) 

TarunKataria 

Rahu1 Asthana (till 2S December 2022) 

AshokSethi 

Hardilc Shah (from 30 November 2021) 

Jayashrec Vaidhyanthan (from 30 November 2021) 

Ami Momaya (from 27 January 2022) 

PratikAgarwal (till 14 January 2022) 

Sanjay Omprakash Nayar (till 27 January 2022) 

Directors of SPn: 

PravinAearwal 

PratikAgarwal 
A. R. Narayanaswamy 

ZhaoHaixia(ti!l31 March 2022) 

AnoopSeth 

M<inishAcarwal (from 17 December 2021) 

Arun t;:!chJndTod::r,:.i! (t: !121Jul·;2021) 

Kamaljeet Kaur (from 29 June 2022) 

Key Managerial Personnel of IIML: 

Harsh Shah (CEO & WhohHime director) (till 30June 2022 and re-joined from 30 Aunust 2022) 

Navin Sharma (CFO) (from 19 April 2023) 

Urmil Shah (Company Secretary) (from 1 Aucusl 2022) 

Jyoti Kumar Agarwal {CFO) (till 30 June 2022) and (CEO & Whole-time director) (from 01 July 2022 till 30 September 2022) 

Oivya Bedi Verma (CFO) (from 1 July 2022 till lS February 2023) 

Swapnil Pam (Company Secretary) (lill 31 July 2022) 

Directors of ATSL: 

Raje5hKumarDahiya 

Ganesh Sankaran 

Deepa R.ith (from 01 May 2021) 
Sanjay Sinha (till 30 April 2021) 

Directors of Esoteric II Pte. ltd.: 

Tang Jin Rong 

Madhura Narawane (from 26 January 2022) 

Velasco Azonos Cecilio Francisco {lill 26 January 2022) 

Relative of directors mentioned above: 

Sonakshi Atarwal 

Jyoti Agarwal 

Sujata Asthana (till 2S December 2022} 

Mala Todarwal (till 24 July 2021) 



INDIA GRID TRUST 
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated) 

(B) The transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:-

Particulars 

1. Unsecured loans given to subsidiaries 

Bhopal Ohule Transmission Company limited (BDTCL) 
JabatpurTransmission Company Limited (JTCL) 

Mahcshwaram Transmission limited (MTL) 

RAPP Transmission Company Limited (RTCL) 

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company limited (PKTCL) 

Patran Transmission Company Limited (PlCL) 

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited (NRSS) 

Odtsha Generation Phase 11 Transmis~ion limited (OGPTL) 

East-North Interconnection Company Limited (ENICL) 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission limited (GPTL) 
Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited (JKTPl) 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited (PrKTCL) 

NER II Transmission Limited (NER) 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private limited (IGSl) 

lndiGrid Solar-I! {AP) Private Limited (IGS2) 

Kallam Transmission Limited (KTL) 

lndigridUmited(IGL) 

lndigrid 1 Limited(IGll) 

lndigrid 2 Limited(IGL2) 
Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private limited {RSTCPL) 

Khargone Transmission Limited (KgTL) 

2. Repayment of loan from subsidiaries 

Bhopal Dhule Transmission Compan.y limit,:,d {BDTCl) 

Jabalpur Transmission Company limited (JTCL) 

Maheshwaram Transmission Limited !MTL) 

RAPP Transmission Company Umiled (RTCL) 

Purulia & KharagpurTransmission Company Limited (PKTCL) 

Patran Transmission Company Limited (PTCL) 

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited (NRSS) 

Odisha Generation Phase II Transmission limited (OGPTL) 

East-North Interconnection Company limited {ENICL) 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited (GPTL) 

JhajjarKTTranscoPrivatelimitcd(JKTPL) 

Parbati Kol dam Tram,mission Company limited (PrKTCL) 

NER 11 Transmission limited {NER) 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited (IGSl) 

lndiGrid Solar-II (AP) Private Limited (IGS2) 

Kallam Transmission limited (KTL) 

lndigridlimited(IGL) 

lndigridllimited(IGll) 

!ndigrid2Limited(IGt2) 
Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Pnvate limited (RSTCPI.) 

KhargoneTransmissionlimited(KgTL) 

3. Purchase of loan of Khargone Transmission limited 

SterlitePowt>rTransmissionlimited 

4. Interest income from subsidiaries 

Bhopal Ohulc Transmission Company limited (BDTCL) 

JabalpurTransmission Company Limited (JTCL) 

Maheshwarari1 Transmission limited (MTL) 

RAPP Transmission Company limited (RTCL) 

Purulia & Kharagpur Transmission Company limited (PKTCL) 

PatranlransmissionCompanylimited(PTCL) 

NRSS XXIX Transmission Limited (NRSS) 

Odisha Generation Phase II Transmission limited (OGPTl) 

East-North Interconnection Company Limited {ENICq 

Gurgaon-Palwal Transmission Limited (GPTL) 

Jhajjar KT Transco Private Limited (JKTPL) 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited (PrKTCL) 

NER II Transmi~~iun Limited (NER) 

lndiGrid Solar-I (AP) Private Limited (IGSl) 

lndiGrid So!ar-11 (AP) Private Limited {IGS2) 

KallamTransmissionlimited(KTL) 

lndigrid limited(IGL) 

lndigridllimited(IGLl) 

lndigrid2limited(IGL2) 
Raichur Sholapur Transmission Company Private Limited (RSTCPL) 

KhargoneTransmissionlimited(KeTL) 

5. Dividend income from subsidiaries 
Parbati Kotdam Transmission Company Limited (PrKTCL) 

JhajjarTranscoPrivatelimited (JKTPL) 

6. Loan arrangement fees received from subsidiaries 

Parbati Koldam Transmission Company Limited (PrKTCL) 

7. Deposits Given 
Stt'.'rlite Power Transmission limited 

8. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of lndigrid 1 Limited on account of events mentioned in SPA 

SterlitePowerTransmissionlimited 

9. Consideration for equity shares of lndigrid 2 Limited on account of events mentioned in SPA 

SterlitePowerTransmissionlimited 

10. Adjustment in consideration for equity shares of ENICL on account of events mentioned in SPA 

SterlitePowerTransmissionlimlted 

Relation 

Subsidiary 
Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entitywithsicnificantinf!uence 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

Subsidiary 

SponsorandProjectManager/ 

E11t1tywiths1gnif1cantinfluence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

[ntitywithsignificantinfluence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entity with significant influence 

SpomorandProjectManager/ 

Entit withsir,nificantinfluence 

31March2023 

8,324.00 

1,500.00 

38.78 

381.45 

8.30 

23.00 

29.0S 

720.00 

]60.67 

188.36 

2.94 

2,098.47 

14.638.81 

1,500.00 

71.77 
89.04 

S.76 

925.87 

141.14 

95.58 

579.75 

236.12 

66.62 

16.18 

281.36 

15.10 
,us 

253.28 

2,410.28 

2,879.29 

591.57 

30S.14 

S39.67 

23S.77 

3,818.79 

1.642.69 

1,261.47 

1,467.49 

22S.62 

282.34 
4,215.86 

533.42 

539.89 

SS.84 

114.54 

35.51 

93.12 

114.46 

168.74 

201.90 

20.00 

77.31 

(Rs.in millions) 

31March2022 

1,185.00 

363.91 

61.40 

73.33 

88.45 

67.80 

487.41 

5,409.80 

283.21 
7,66].38 

143.01 

3,792.24 

905.36 

2,911.34 

1,856.51 

183.60 

242.13 

93.03 

17.36 

690.40 

18.32 

168.94 

142.82 

226.23 

1,754.36 

187.93 

914.19 

630.32 

286.86 

310.82 

105.20 

70.00 

80.00 

1,239.73 

2,856.80 

589.97 

318.60 

557.65 

249.67 

3,920.38 

1.SS9.S9 
1,304.78 

1,437.73 

246.67 

143.34 

4,180.04 

395.64 

388.28 

3.33 

70.03 

4.7S 

91.22 

282.66 

18.85 

36.00 

(0.58) 

18.53 

(4.46) 
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(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated} 

Particulars 

11, Adjustment In consideration for equity shares of GPTL on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterlite Power Transmission limited 

12. Purchase of equity shares of NER 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

13, Adjustment In consideration for equity shares of NER on account of events mentioned in SPA 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

14. Purchase of equity shares of Kg TL 
Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

15. lnvC?stmcnt In right Issue! of subsidiary 

lndigrid 1 Limited(IGLl) 

16. Rights Issue of unit capital 

EsotericllPte. Ltd 

SterlitePowerTransmission lin1ited 

17. Trustee fee 

Axis Trustee Services Limited {ATSL) 

18, Investment Management Fees 

lndigridlnvestmentManagerslimited 

19. Distribution to unit holdC!fs 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

lndigrid !nvestmcntMan agers limited 

EsotericllPte. Ltd 

PravinAgarwal 

Harsh Shah 

SwapnilPatil 

SonakshiAgarwa1 

Jyoti Agarwal 

SujataAsthana · 

Arun Todarwal 

A. R. Narayanaswamy 

MalaTodarwal 

20. Deposit made to IT department on behalf ot'PKTCL & NRSS 

Sterlite Power Transmission Limited 

ICI The outst;mdln bal;mccs of related nartles are as follows:-

Particulars 

Unsecured loan receivable from subsidiaries 

lntmcstrcceivablefromsubsidiaries 

Non •Convertib!e Debentures of subsidiary (including accrued interC!St on EIR) 

Compulsorily-convertible debentures of subsidiary 

Investment in equity shares of subsidiary ((')(eluding provision for impairment) 

Optionally convertible redeem able preference shares (excluding provision for impairment) 

Payable towards project acquired 

Deposits given 

Trade payable 

Relation 

SponsorandProjectManaccr/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Project Manaccr/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Sponsor and Project Manager/ 

Entitywith significantinffuence 

Sponsor and ProjectManaeer/ 

Entity with significant influence 

Subsidiary 

Sponsor/Entitywithsir,nificantinfluencC! overtheTrust 

Sponsorof!ndiGrid 

Trustee 

tnvC!Stment manager of !ndiGrid 

SponsoroftndiGrid 

Investment manager of lndiGrid 

Sponsor/Entity with significant 

influence over the Trust 

Director of Sponsor (SPTL) and 

Investment M anager 

Who!e time director of Investment Manager 

Company Secretary of Investment Manaecr 

Relative of director 

Relative of director 

Relative of director 

Director of Sponsor (SPTL) 

Director of Sponsor (SPTt) 

Relative of director 

Spomor and Project Manaeer/ 

EntitvwlthsiP,nificantinfluence 

31March2023 

3.84 

255.87 

135.13 

258.59 

2.63 

8.50 

7.25 

2,171.24 

0.38 
0.02 

0.24 

0.08 

1.60 

0.03 

0.25 

0.02 

19.19 

31 March 2023 

1,56,914.84 

6,071.90 

3,071 .84 

1,002.74 

48,411.25 

1,001.96 

1,213.10 

36.00 

1.92 

•The Trust has entered into banking transactions in the nature of loans taken, fixed deposits made and Interest thereof in the normal course of business with Axis B:mk Limited in profess ional capacity. 

Octal!s in respect cf r ;,,-!ated party .:ronsactlcm liwclvlng .acquisition cf ln11IT .;;;;.cts ;;;; rcqu1rcd by I';;; ;; 4.4(b)(lv) c f S..: ctlon A c f Ann12xure A to Srnl Circular dated 20 Ocl-obe r 201G arc as follows: 

For the year ended 31 March io23: 
(A) Summary of the valuation reports {issued by the independent valuer appointed under the lnvlT Regulations}: 

(Rs in million\ 

Particulars KgTL 

Enterprise value 

Method of valuation 

Discounting rate (WACC): 

(8) Material conditions or obligations In relation to the transactions: 

Acquisition ofKhargonc Tr.i nsmission Ltd (Kell): 

14,975 

Discounted Cash Flow 

8.30% 

31 March 2022 

(0.57) 

5,179.33 

10.58 

3,28S.28 

44.72 

3.32 

6.53 

14.09 

6.55 

2,100.73 

l.OS 

0.18 

0.06 

0.24 

0.30 

1.55 
0.05 

0.25 

0.05 

(RsinMilllonJ 

31 March 2022 

1,32,476.19 

3,190.79 

6,915.54 

1,156.85 

43,S07.28 

1,001.96 

1,108.97 

36.00 

0.07 

The Trust acquired 49% of paid up equity capital of Kharcone Transmission Limited ("KgTL") with effect from 02 March 2023 from Sterlite Power Transmission Limited (SPTL)) (referred as "the seller") pursuant to Share Purchase Agreement dated 21 

January 2023 ("SPA" ). The Trust has finalised purchase consideration for acquisition of entire stake in Kg TL and has entered into a binding agreement with !he Seller to acquire remaining Sl¾ paid up equity capital in KgTl from the Seller. The Trmt 

ha s beneficial interest based on the rights available to it under the SPA. 

Based on the contractual terms of the ac;eement, the Trust has following rights: 

•Right to nommate all directors on the board of directors of the KgTL; 

•Right to direct the selfing shareholders to vote according to its instructions in theAGM/[GM or any other meeting of shareholders of Kg TL; 

•Non-disposal undertaking from the sellinc shareholders for the remain inc S1% equity stake in KgTL; 

Considering the requirements under Ind AS 110, the Group has assessed whether it controls KgTL on the basis the above rights under the agreement and the fact that the Group has acquired 49% and have paid for the balance S1% consideration 

{subJect to certain agreed hold back amount). Based on the assessment, manacement has concluded that the Group controls Kc TL in spite of the foct that it has acquired only 49% of the paid up capital of K(:Tl. 

For the year ended 31 March 2022: 

- No acquisition from related party for the year ended 31 March 2022 
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Note 29: Capital and other Commitments 

The Trust and GR Infra projects Limited ('GRIL') have entered into a framework agreement to acquire 100% stake in Rajgarh Transmission Limited 

Note 30: Contingent liability 

TheTrusthas nocontingent liability to be reported. 

Note 31: Segment reporting 

The Trust's acl!vities ~ompriseof owninr.and investing in transmission and s-olar SPVs to generate c.ash flows for distribution to unilholders. Based on the guidine principles given m lnd AS · l08 "Operatmg Secments'', this activity falls within a sinr.le 

operating segment a nd accordirigly the d~clo~ures of Ind AS -108 have no t separa1ely been given. 

Note 32: Det.iils of Dues to Micro .ind Small Enterprises .is defined under MS MEO A,t, 2006 

Partf,ulars 

(1) The principal amount and the interest due ther{'()n (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier :as at the end of each accountlnr, year 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 
Interest due on above 

{ri) The amount of interest paid by the buyer m terms of section 16, of lhe Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 alone with the amounts of the payment made to the 

suppherbeyond the appointed dayduringeachaccountingyear. 

(iii) lhe amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay In making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 

in terest specified under Micro Sm.;rll and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006. 

(iv) The .imount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 

(v) The .;rmount of further in I er est remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years. until such date when the interest dues as above are actua lly paid 10 the small enterprise for the 

purpose of d isallowance as a deductible e1Cpcnditure under sc<tion 23 of the Mitro Small and Medium Enterprise Develo pment Act, 1006 

31March2023 31March2022 

1.58 

Interest payable .is per section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Cntcrprises Developm<mt Acl, 2006 is Nit (31 Mar,h 2020: Nil) . Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 1dent1fled on the basis 

of Int imations received from the "supl?liers" / information avallilble with the Company regarding thei r status under the Micro, Small and Medium EnterpriSl'!i Ac!, 2006. 

Note 33: Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Trust's principa l financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilit ies is to financ e the Trust's operations. The Trust's principal finan cial assets include investments, loans, cash and 

bank balances and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations. 

The Trust may be e11:posed to market risk, credit risk and liquid ity ri~k. The Investment Manager oversees the management of these rish . All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist tt!ams that have the 

appropria te skills, experience and supervision. It is the Trust's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken . The management reviews and agrees policies fo r manar,inr, each of these risks, which arc summarised 

below. 

The Risk Management policies of the Trust are estabhshed lo identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust, to set appropriate nsk limits and controls and to monitor ,isks and adherence to limits. Risk manar,ement policies and systems are 

reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and lhe Trust's a<tivit1es. 

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Trust's risk m,magem!!nt lramework. 

IA)Marketrisk 

Markt?t risk is the risk that the fair value of futu re cash flows of a financial instn.rm('nt will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk such as l"QUity price 

risk . Financia l instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings and investments. 

PriceRlsk 
The Company invests its surplus funds in mutual funds which are linked to debt markets. The Company is exposed to pr ice risk for investments In mutual funds that are classified as fair value through profit or loss. To manaee Its price risk arising from 

investments ln mutual funds, the Company d!v"ersifies its portfolio. Diversification and investment in the portfolio is done in accordance with the lim its approved by the Board of Directors. Reports on investment portfolio are submitted to the 

Company's senio r management on :a regular basis 

Particulars 

Mutual funds 0.50% 0.35 

Profit for the VQ'ar would increase/ decrease as a rnsult of ca ins/ lones on mutual funds dassHied as at fair value throul!h orofit or loss 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futurccar.h flows of a f1nancial 1ns trument will flu,tuate because of chani:cs in market interest rates. The Tru st's borrowmgs are at fixed rate, hence the Trust is not exposed to Interest rate risk. 

Forefan ,urrency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will flu ctuate because of changes in foreign e1Cchange rates. The Trust did not have any exposure in foreign currency as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. 

Equity price risk 

The Trust's investmencs in equity shares of subsidiaries ilre susceptible to market price risk ar ising from uncertainties about future values of those Investments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the senior management on a regular 
basis. The Board of Directors of the tnvestment Manager reviews and approves all equity investment decisions 

At the reporting date, the exposure to equity investments in subsidia ry at carrying value was Rs. 42,916.7 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 41,578.06 million). Sensitivity analyses of significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement are 

disclosed in Note 27A. 

(B)Credltrlsk 
Credit risk is the risk th at a counterparty will not meet itsobhgations under a financial instrument or customer contract, lcadinc: to a financial loss. The Trust is exposed to credit risk from its mvesting activities including loans to subsidiaries, deposits 

with banks and other financial instruments. As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the credit risk is considered low since substantial transactions of the lrust are with its subsidiaries. 
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(CJ liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Trust may encounter difficulty in mN!linc its present and future oblieations associated with financial liabilities that are required to be settled by deliverme cash or another financial asset. The Trust's objective is to, at 

all times, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral obligation s. The Trust requires funds both for short term operational needs as well as for long term investment programs maJnly in transmission projects. The Trust closely 

monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system . It alms 10 minimise these risks by eeneraling sufficient cash flows from its current operations, which in addition to the av.iilable cash and cash equiva lents Jnd liquid 

investments will provide liquidity . 

The liquidity risk is man.1ccd on the basis of e~pected maturity dates of the fin.inci.il liabilities. The other finanClal liabilities arc with short term durations. The t.ib!e below summarises the maturity profile of the Trust's finMcial liabilities based on 

contractua1undiscounted payments: 

31March2023 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other fin ancial liabilities 

Total 

31 March2022 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Other financial liabilit ies· 

Total 

Partic:ulars 

Particulars 

Note 34: Capital management 

Payable on demand 

Payable on demand 

Lessthan3months 3monthsto 
12 months 

9,256.73 
75.41 

997.37 1,240.89 

1,072.78 10,497.62 

Lessthan3months 3monthsto 

12months 

14,292.58 2,925.95 

55.87 
999.48 1,483.89 

15,347.93 4,409.84 

ltoSyears MorethanSyears Total 

1.11,751.00 23,923.58 1,44,931.31 

75.41 
2,238.26 

1,11,751.00 23,923.58 1,47,244.98 

1to5years Morethan5ycars Total 

39,209.31 68,274.11 1,24,701.95 

SS.87 
2,483.37 

39,209.31 68,274.11 1,27,241,19 

For the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital includes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributJble to the unit holders of the Trust. The primary object ive of the Trust's capital management Is to ensure that it maintains a strong 

credit ratinc and healthy capital ratios in order to supporl its business and ma~imise unit holder value. 

The Trust man.iccsitsupital structure and makes adjustments to 11 in liCht of chances In economic condit ions and the rcquiremenls of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital Slructurc, the Trust may .idjusl the distribution to 

unitholders (subject to the provisions of Inv IT regulat ions which require d istribution of at least 90% ol the net d istributable cash flows o f the Trust to unit holders), return capital to unitholdcrs or issue new units. The Trust monitors capital using a 

gcJring ratlo, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net dt'bt . The Trust's policy is to keep 1he gearing ra tio opt imum . The Trust includes within net debt, interest bearing loam and borrowings and olher payables less cash and cash 

equivalents, other bank balances .1nd short term investments . 

Partltulars 

Borrowings 

Less:Cash andcashcquiva lents 

Netdebt (A) 

Unit capital 

Other equity 

Total capilal (B) 

Capltal and net debt {(C) =(A)+ (B}I 

Gearing ratio {Al/(C} 

Financial Covenants 

31 March2023 

1,44,931.31 

(1,949.33) 

1,42,981.98 

65,903.15 
3,296.07 

69,199.22 

2,12,181.20 

61% 

31March2022 

1,24,701.95 
(7,846.97) 

1,16,854.98 

65,903.15 
2,293.62 

68,196.77 

1,85,051.75 

'"' 
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Comp.iny's capita l manacement, amongst other things, a ims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attadied to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. 

Them have been no breaches in the financia l covenants of any interest -bearinc loans and borrowing in the current year. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022. 

Notc35:Subscqucntcvent 

On 12 May 2023, the Board of directors of the Investment Manager approved a distribution of Rs. 3.45 per unit for the period 01 January 2023 to 31 March 2023 to be paid on or before 15 days from the date of declaration. 

Note 36: Other Information 

(i) The Trust does not have any Bcnami property, where any proceed inc has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Oen a mi property under the Bcnami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(u) The Trust docs not have any transactions with Compames struck off 

(iii) The Trust have not traded or invested in cryptocurrcncv or Virtual Currency durinc the fina ncial year 
!iv) The Trust does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts thJt has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Ta.11 Act, 1961 (such JS, scJrch or survey or 

any Olher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
(v) The Trust has not been'dedared as a wilfu l defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

As per our report of even date 

ForSRBC&COLLP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003 

po, 

Partner 
MembcrshipNumbcr:111757 

Place :Pu nc 
Date: 12May2023 

For and en behalf of the Board of Directors of 

lndlpid Investment Man11ers Umlted (IS Investment M1n11er of Ind la Grid Trust) 

~ ·· 

CEO & Whole Time Director 

DIN: 02496122 

Place:Mumbai 

Date : 12 May2023 

Company Secretary 

Membership Number: A23423 

Placc : Mumbai 
Date : 12 May 2023 

~lo.:::.'.!i 
,,,,,,.,,,..----.. 

N1vlnSh1rma 

ChiefFinandalOfficer 

Place:Murnliai 

Date: 12May2023 



~ ndiGrid INOIGRIO INVESTMENT MANAGERS LIMITED 

Annexure-A 

Format of the Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 
1 Name of the Company India Grid Trust 

2 CIN I N/I nvlT /16-17 /0005 

3 Outstanding borrowing of company as on March 31, Rs. 14,493.13 Crore 
2023 (in Rs er) 

4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along [ICRA] AAA (Stable) 

with name of the Credit Rating Agency CRISIL AAA (Stable) 
IND AAA (Stable) 

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be BSE Limited 

paid, in case of shortfall in the required borrowing 
under the framework 

We confirm that we are a Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular 

SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018. 

For and on behalf of the lndiGrid Investment Managers Limited 

(Repres::ing India Grid Trust as its Investment Manager) I\\ ~ 

0 -"-',,~ ,~~ 
Urmil Shah Nav~harma 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Contact Number: 022-6924 1311 
Date: 27.04.2023 

CC to-
Axis Trustee Services Limited 
The Ruby, 2nd Floor, SW, 29, Senapati Bapat Marg, 
Dadar West, Mumbai- 400 028, Maharashtra, India 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 
Universal Insurance Building, Ground Floor, 

Sir P.M Road, Fort, Mumbai Maharashtra - 400 001 

Chief Financial Officer 

IndiGrid Investment Managers Limited 
(formerly known as Sterlite Investment Managers Limited) 

Registered & Corporate Office: Unit No. 101, First Floor, Windsor, Village KoleKalyan, off CST Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Kalina, 
Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400 098, Maharashtra, India CIN: U28113MH2010PLC308857 

Ph: +91 72084 93885 I Email: compllanceofficer(ci}1ndiqpd.com I www.indigrid.co.in 



~ ndiGrid INDIGRID INVESTMENT MANAGERS LIMITED 

Annex - XII-B2 

Format of the Annual Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate 

1. Name of the Company: India Grid Trust 

2. CIN: NA 

3. Report filed for FY: 2022-2023 (T) 

4. Details of the Borrowings (all figures in Rs. Crores): 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 
1 3-Year Block Period* FY 2022-2023 (T) 

FY 2023-2024 (T + 1) 
FY 2024-2025 (T +2) 

2 Incremental Borrowing done in FY 2022-2023 3,770.00 
(a) 

3 Mandatory borrowing to be done through debt securities in FY 2022-2023 943.00 
(b) = (25% of a) 

4 Actual borrowing done through debt securities in FY 2022-2023 1,500.00 
(c) 

5 Shortfall in the borrowing through debt securities, if any, for FY 2021-2022 NIL 
carried forward to FY 2022-2023 
(d) 

6 Quantum of (d), which has been met from (c) NIL 
(e) 

7 Shortfall, if any, in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities for FY NIL 

2022 -2023 {after adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY 2021 -2022 
which was carried forward to FY 2022-2023} 
(f}= (b)-[(c)-(e)] 

5. Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previous block (all figures in Rs. crore): 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 
1 2-Year Block Period FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24 

2 Amount of fine to be paid for the block, if applicable Not Applicable 
Fine = 0.2% of {(d)-(e)} 

For and on behalf of the lndiGrid Investment Managers Limited 

(Repre:::g India Grid Trust as its Investment Manager) ~~ 

\J ·'ll-·s \\l~ 
Urmil Shah Nav· Sh:r~a 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Contact Number: 022-6924 1311 
Date: 09.05.2023 

Chief Financial Officer 

*As per SES/ Circular No. SEBIJHOJDDHSJDDHS-RACPOD1JPJCIR/2023/ doted March 31, 2023, the contiguous block of two years over which large 
corporates need to meet the mandatory requirement of raising minimum 2S% of their incremental borrowings in a financial year through issuance of 
debt securities is extended to a contiguous block of three years 

IndiGrid Investment Managers Limited 
(formerly known as Sterlite Investment Managers Limited) 

Registered & Corporate Office: Unit No. 101, First Floor, Windsor, Village KoleKalyan, off CST Road, Vidyanagari Marg, Kalina, 
Santacruz (East), Mumbai - 400 098, Maharashtra, India CIN: U28113MH2010PLC308857 

Ph: +91 72084 93885 I Email: co pli;;inceofficer@lndlgrld.com I www.indigrid.co.in 
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